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Characteristics of GEM ("GEM") of the Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
ERABMAXZBMRATE (THB3ZFr) GEM (TGEM)) 25

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk

may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may
be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Viva China Holdings Limited
(the "Company”, which together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

During 2021, the Group has experienced extraordinary changes. During the first
year of the 14th Five-Year Plan, the PRC government has been accelerating

the establishment of a new economic development and consumption pattern
featuring “domestic economy circulation” to expand domestic demand. Together
with the widely applied vaccination for COVID-19 and other favorable conditions
that mitigate the repeated impact from the pandemic, the economy has grown
steadily. The PRC's economy showed strong resilience during the entire 2021
and recorded an annual increase of 8.1%. In particular, consumption expenditures
became the core momentum by contributing 65.4% to the economic growth,
Targeting at the huge consumption market, the Group further expanded its
multi-brand apparel and footwear consumable goods business. After acquiring
Bossini, a lifestyle apparel brand well known in Mainland China and Hong Kong,
the Group launched Bossini.X positioning as street fashion during the year and
actively expanded its store network in Mainland China. In early 2022, the Group
finished its acquisition of Amedeo Testoni, a century-old Italian luxury brand. It is
also expected that the Group will complete its acquisition of Clarks, a century-
old British footwear brand, within 2022. Through the steady development of self-
own brands and the acquisitions of other brands, the Group’s multi-brand apparel
and footwear consumable goods business begins to take shape and thereby lay a
foundation for the sustainable development of the Group.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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Thanks to the enthusiastic sports atmosphere during the year, the sports
experience business has also been promoted. Chinese athletes achieved
marvellous results in the Olympics Games that were delayed by one year, and
the Beijing Winter Olympics held in early 2022 further stimulated the public’s
enthusiasm to take exercise. In the meantime, the State Council issued the
National Fitness Program (2021-2025) in the second half of 2021 to advocate
the fitness among all citizens. It is expected that the development of sports
industry will be accelerated and brings the overall scale of the national sports
industry to RMB5 trillion. During the year, sports parks and ice-skating rinks within
the Group reopened and customer flows gradually resumed, which significantly
improved the results of sports experience segment.

EXPANDING THE SCALE OF THE MULTI-BRAND APPAREL
AND FOOTWEAR CONSUMABLE GOODS BUSINESS

During the year, the Group continued to focus on the prime consumer segment
and actively sought opportunities to expand its multi-brand apparel and footwear
consumable goods business. In particular, the LNG and Bossini brands in the
Greater China market rolled out offline retail stores to increase brand awareness
and market coverage. By the end of 2021, Bossini.X, has opened a number

of retail stores in the first- and second-tier cities in China. LNG, the Group's
affordable luxury brand, has also completed its repositioning by launching new
store images and a new brand logo, and formed the styles of its various product
lines. During the year, a number of physical stores were opened in the high-end
business areas in the first-tier cities such as Chongging, Shanghai, Shenzhen and
Nanjing.

Given that the market demand remained uncertain as the pandemic continued
during the year, we believe that it will take time to nurture and grow the brand. In
the future, the Group will invest more in sales channel expansion, supply chain and
marketing. Meanwhile, in order to enhance operational efficiency, the Group will
focus on improving the store operational efficiency and strengthening the control
of back-office operation expenses so as to improve the competitiveness and
sustainability of the Group.

In order to further expand its business, the Group continued to search for and
acquire a number of high-quality brands with potential during the year, including
Amedeo Testoni, a century-old Italian luxury brand, whose acquisition was
completed in early 2022, and Clarks, a British footwear brand that is nearly

two hundred years old, whose acquisition is in progress. After the acquisitions,
the Group's brand portfolio will be enriched to meet the needs of the prime
consumers in different areas such as sports and leisure, street fashion, affordable
luxury and high-end luxury. The Group’s market share in the Greater China region
and overseas markets can also be increased.

Chairman’s Statement £ &R
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Chairman's Statement £ i &

PROMOTING THE SPORTS EXPERIENCE BUSINESS
DURING THE BIG YEAR OF SPORTS EVENTS

We came across a big year of sports events. A number of major events were held
successively, such as the Tokyo Olympic Games, the National Games of PRC in
2021, and the Beijing Winter Olympics in early 2022. In respond to the initiative
in the 14th Five-Year Plan to extensively carry out the nationwide fitness campaign
and promote the construction of community sports venues and facilities, the Group
strives to integrate sports into daily life and continues to expand the network of
sports destinations. Since Tongxiang Li Ning Sports Park and Hangzhou Li Ning
Sports Park put into operation in early 2022, the Group currently manages and
operates 10 sports parks.

The Group’s “All Star Ice Skating Club” currently operates 11 ice-skating rinks

in the first- and second-tier cities in China. Similarly, spurred by the various

top sports events, especially the Beijing Winter Olympics, our ice-skating rinks
recorded substantial growth in customer flow during the year and the revenue and
segment result largely improved compared with prior year. In 2022, the Group will
continue to expand its business in cities with strong consumption capacities such
as Beijing and Shanghai, and capitalize on the boom in winter sports to provide
the public with skating experience and various training services.

In terms of e-sports, the Group’s League of Legends e-sports team LNG achieved
outstanding performance during the League of Legends Pro League (LPL) in the
past year, and was qualified for the world championship during the Summer Split
in China for the first time and advanced to the group stage. We are all encouraged
and hope that it can achieve better results this year. Along with the upsurge of
e-sports and the increasing popularity of the LNG team, the Group’s apparels and
footwears brands including the LNG brand are expected to be further promoted
and will gain recognitions from the younger generation.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Looking ahead, the multi-brand apparel and footwear consumable goods business
will continue to be the main business of the Group. With the pursuit of high-quality
life and fashion trends by the prime consumer groups, the Group will closely
monitor the market trends while formulating its brand strategies, so as to meet
the preferences of the target consumer groups. In the future, on the one hand, we
will focus on the operation of the consumer brands of apparel and footwear, and
on the other hand, by providing sports experience services, we will interact with
the target consumer groups to further understand their needs, so as to promote
the development of the apparel and footwear consumable goods business. At

the same time, the Group will also expand the vertically integrated industry chain
by building its own supply chain platform and e-commerce platform to enhance
its synergies both internally and externally, so as to lay a foundation for the
sustainable development of the Group.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my great respect to the
Company’s management and all employees for their unity and hard work over the
past year. At the same time, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders and business partners for their trust and continuous support to the
Group. No matter how complex and volatile the external environment is, we will
remain persistent and pragmatic, and continue to strive for the Company’s long-
term development and create values for the shareholders!

Li Ning
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
18 March 2022, Hong Kong
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Business Review
e 40

Looking back at 2021, the Group has expanded its “multi-brand apparel and
footwear consumable goods” business which mainly includes the investment and
operation of apparel and footwear consumable goods that feature with multi-
brands and multi-categories, aiming to increase its market share and penetration
rate. Meanwhile, the Group has been steadily developing the “sports experience”
business which includes the operation, service provision and investment of
sports destination, sports events, and an e-sports club. During the year, the PRC
government has been vigorously promoting the new economic pattern for the
“domestic economic circulation”, which presented significant opportunities to
consumable goods market. Therefore, the Group has seized the opportunity to
develop its self-own brands and actively acquired other brands. As a result, the
multi-brand apparel and footwear consumable goods business has begun to take
shape. Thanks to the enthusiastic sports atmosphere during the year, the sports
experience business has also been promoted.

MULTI-BRAND APPAREL AND FOOTWEAR CONSUMABLE
GOODS BUSINESS

During the year, the orderly application of vaccination and the rising average
income level were conducive to the recovery of consumer market in Mainland
China. However, the flood situation in Henan province and the outbreak of the
COVID-19 mutated virus in the second half of 2021 suppressed consumer
demand in the short term and brought uncertainties to the economic recovery and
growth. During the year, the Group has continued to deepen its development in
the consumer market in Mainland China which boasts great development potential,
and proactively expanded its multi-brand apparel and footwear consumable goods
business, so as to lay a solid foundation for the sustainable development of the
Group’s business as a whole.

The Group acquired Bossini International Holdings Limited in 2020 and launched
the brand new Bossini.X in the second quarter of 2020. During the year, Bossini.X
opened more than 40 retail stores in the first- and second-tier cities in Mainland
China, which promoted the recognition in the market. It is expected that the Group
will still have to make greater efforts to improve the product strategy and expand
sales channels in quite a long time in the future. Therefore, we are in the view that
Bossini could possibly continue to record losses for the year.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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With its League of Legends e-sports team being qualified for the world
championship in the League of Legends Pro League, the Group's affordable
luxury brand LNG continued to explore the huge business opportunities from the
prime consumer groups. During the year, the brand launched new store images
and a new brand logo with product style beginning to take shape, which formed
the styles of many product lines such as urban techwear, future players, trendy IP
and Chinese players. LNG's channel expansion has also begun to take shape by
opening 19 physical stores in trendy landmark malls in high-end business areas
such as Shanghai Qiantan Taikoo Li, HKRI Taikoo Hui, Shenzhen MixC World and
Nanjing Deji Plaza. In the future, the brand will further clarify channel expansion
plans and improve supply chain management to enhance brand competitiveness.

In addition to the steady development of existing brands, the Group has also
further expanded its multi-brand footwear and apparel consumable goods
business through the acquisition of brands with development potential. In early
2022, the Group completed the conditional acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Sitoy AT Holdings Company Limited which owns a century-old Italian
luxury leader label brand, Amedeo Testoni and its diffusion line i29. Amedeo
Testoni is principally engaged in wholesale and retail of leatherware, fashion
garments and apparel. Through this acquisition, the Group has added a high-
end luxury brand to its asset portfolio and expanded existing business scale by
extending its network to Europe, Japan and South Korea. Next, the Group will
review the product, supply chain and channel strategies to increase the brand’s
market share in Asia and improve its operational efficiency and profitability.

On 15 March 2021, the Group announced that we conditionally subscribed for
the majority share interest and acquired a shareholder’s loan of LionRock Capital
Partners QiLe Limited which holds a majority interest in C&J Clark (No.1) Limited
(“Clarks”). Clarks is a British footwear brand that is nearly two hundred years old,
with major markets covering the United Kingdom, the United States and Greater
China region, etc. It is expected that upon the completion of the acquisition, the
Group'’s sales will increase significantly and its profitability will also be enhanced.
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SPORTS EXPERIENCE BUSINESS

During 2021, the first year of the 14th Five-Year Plan, the central government
deepened its plans for sports reform. In the second half of the year, the State
Council released the “National Fitness Program (2021-2025)", aiming to promote
high-quality development of China’s sports sector and to expand the overall

scale of the national sports industry to RMBS trillion by 2025. Driven by such
policy, as well as the national upsurge in sports spurred by the Tokyo Olympic
Games, National Games of PRC and the Beijing Winter Olympics held in early
2022, there was a growing demand from the public for sports facilities and sports
training services, which created a favorable business environment for the Group’s
sports experience business. The results of this segment recorded a significant
improvement as compared to the previous year.

At the beginning of 2022, Tongxiang Li Ning Sports Park and Hangzhou Li Ning
Sports Park were put into operation successively. Currently, the Group operates
and manages a total of 10 sports destinations in China, providing a wide range of
sports experience and training services to local communities and the citizens. The
performance of the “All Star Ice Skating Club”, which was acquired by the Group
at the end of 2019, also improved significantly during the year. As the 2022
Beijing Winter Olympics is expected to spur an upsurge in winter sports, the Group
will seize the opportunities therefrom to continue expanding its ice-skating rink
business in the first-tier cities with strong consumption capacities such as Beijing
and Shanghai.

In terms of e-sports, LNG, the Group's League of Legends e-sports team,
achieved more outstanding performances. It was qualified for the world
championship during the League of Legends Pro League (LPL) Summer Split in
China for the first time and advanced to the group stage. We are all encouraged
and hope that the upsurge of e-sports and the increasing popularity of the LNG
team will further promote the Group’s apparel and footwear brands, including the
LNG brand, to gain recognitions from the younger generation.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees, customers and suppliers are crucial to the success of the Group. As
such, the Company has maintained a smooth communication with all stakeholders
to establish mutual trust in pursuing outstanding environmental, social and
governance performance.

The Group adopts a people-oriented approach to formulate its human resource
policy, thereby providing employees with reasonable remuneration and benefits
and making adjustments when appropriate. Moreover, in addition to requiring
employees to comply with occupational safety rules and procedures, the Group
also cares for the well-being of employees by launching various staff caring
programs for employees to relax. The Group also offers employees with extensive
training programs to enhance their lateral skills, enabling them to have better
development opportunities in the long run.

The Group strives to provide goods and services of the best quality to our
customers. By listening to customers’ feedback, the Group has established
effective communication channels, and maintains a cordial relationship with its
customers. The Group believes that the success of the Group lies in quality of
service. Hence, the Group is committed to building an integrated sports platform
featured with spectating and participatory projects, aiming to meet the needs

of our customers with quality sports resources and involve the public in sports
events. The Group is committed to establishing long-term partnership with
suppliers. To maintain a good partnership, it is crucial to ensure that the products
and services offered by suppliers meet the specified requirements in the first
place. To this end, the Group has established strict procurement standards and
conducted regular quality inspection to maintain the quality of products and
Services.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group attaches high importance to
environmental issues. Though the Group is not a high-pollution generated
enterprise, it actively integrates the concepts of environmental protection and
green building into different business segments as practicable as possible.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

In order to minimise the environmental, social and governance risks, the Group
operates its business in a manner that satisfies the relevant laws and regulations
in respect of employee benefits, safety and environment. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations in the
jurisdictions where it operates, i.e. the PRC and Hong Kong, in all material
respects. For more information about the measures adopted by the Group for
environmental protection and regulatory compliance during this financial year,
please refer to the environmental, social and governance report of this annual
report.
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PROSPECTS

Overviewing the overall market, China is one of the few major economies that
have achieved economic growth during the pandemic; however, the strike of the
COVID-19 mutated virus at the end of 2022 increased the uncertainties about the
continued economic recovery. Therefore, the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the macro market environment,

The Group will continue to concentrate its resources on the two major businesses,
i.e. multi-brand apparel and footwear consumable goods and sports experience,
especially the development and expansion of the multi-brand apparel and footwear
consumable goods business. On the one hand, the Group will promote the
renovation and transformation of its existing brands, accelerate the expansion of
sales channels, strengthen the management and control on back-end operating
expenses, and improve its operational efficiency. On the other hand, the Group
will actively look for high-quality acquisition targets to enrich its brand portfolio
and increase its market coverage, thereby to enhance its overall sustainable
development capabilities. At the same time, the Group will also expand its
vertically integrated industry chain by building its own supply chain platform and
e-commerce platform, so as to support the operation and development of its
brands. In terms of the sports experience, the Group will continue to develop
high-quality sports experience and training programs, and interact with the target
consumer groups to further understand their needs, thereby promoting the
development of its apparel and footwear consumable goods business.

Looking forward, the changes in the business environment resulting from the
repeated pandemic may become the new normal. Nevertheless, China will keep
its development, with government policy clearly supporting the development of
the domestic economy and the sports industry. Thus, the Group will seize the
opportunities to accelerate the expansion of its existing business scale, enhance
its profitability and create greater benefits for its shareholders.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

RE

AR PR A D BIOE BB IRE L
BREERNTEEER B -__FEH
K SRS KRB T KA EER
WAEEN RIEAEENZETHIRRE
MR EEAEREE-

FEEREBETERERES MEERH
EmkEZEFREBRMAER LERONS
mEEREEREBNERRER —5
EHEFHREMENEEEBA MIRFHE
REBR NMRRAEZERER ReE
ENXRS-—HE BERBEEENWNE
B UBEAEEREES ReTHE
BEX O RAEEEBHNAUREZERED -
AR AEERESUKRELTHEEZER
#oITEEANHEBETAMNER TS MU
RemBENEENER - EFERRAE &K
EEREBERSEEER R NIFIIE
B-EARHERREY E— P THRETE
KoEMESERHEREFNER-

RREBERBERNEFRBEEIR AL
A ERE AMAEERFE BUFBIRTR
ARSI ANESEUARBETENERE-
AEBRBEETERSE MRBREFEEE
BRE S RABFES RARRAEEKRF

>
fm °



RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s consolidated revenue

was HK$1,381.6 million (2020: HK$819.0 million), representing an increase

of 68.7%. The increase in revenue was mainly contributed by i) the Group’s
multi-brands and footwears business through the organic growth of LNG brand
and the acquisition of Bossini International Holdings Limited (“Bossini”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Bossini Group”) in late July 2020, and ii) the recovery
of sports experience segment from the pandemic. Gross profit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$572.4 million (2020: HK$330.8
million), representing an increase of HK$241.6 million or 73.0% as compared to
the previous year, which was in line with the increase in revenue.

The Group’s other income and other gains — net for the year amounted to
HK$4,548.1 million (2020: HK$1,359.1 million). Other income and other gains-
net during the period was mainly attributable to i) the gain on disposal of partial
interest in an associate (Li Ning Co) amounting to HK$3,338.8 million (2020:
HK$1,023.0 million), ii) the deemed dilution gain arising from the decrease of
0.5% shareholding in an associate (Li Ning Co) amounting to HK$978.0 million
(2020: nil), iii) fair value gain on investment properties of HK$74.8 million (2020:
fair value loss of HK$1.4 million), iv) fair value gain on financial assets/liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss HK$20.1 million (2020: HK$3.6 million), v) the
gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$52.9 million (2020: nil), vi) government
grants of HK$34.1 million (2020: HK$33.2 million), vii) interest income of
HK$13.2 million (2020: HK$18.3 million), and viii) royalty income of HK$12.1
million (2020: HK$4.5 million).

Selling and distribution expenses for the year amounted to HK$572.4 million
(2020: HK$224.4 million), representing a significant increase of HK$348.0
million or 155.1% as compared to the year of 2020. The increase was mainly
attributable by i) the expenses from Bossini Group which was acquired in late July
2020, ii) increase in selling expenses’ staff cost due to expansion of multi-brand
apparel and footwears consumables goods business, and iii) impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to HK$87.2
million in current year.
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Administrative expenses and other operating expenses together with reversal of
impairment loss/(impairment loss) on financial assets-net (the “Administrative
Expenses”) incurred for the year amounted to HK$493.6 million (2020:
HK$453.4 million) which represented an increase of HK$40.2 million or 8.9%
as compared to the year of 2020. The increase in Administrative Expenses was
mainly contributed by i) the administrative expenses from Bossini Group which was
acquired in late July 2020 with an increment of HK$113.6 million in current year,
and ii) increase in share option expenses (excluding Bossini Group) by HK$28.3
million. The increase is offset by the absence of impairment on intangible assets in
current year (2020: HK$130.71 million).

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$37.0
million (2020: HK$65.1 million). The decrease in finance costs was primarily
attributable to i) the decrease in interest rate in the current year and ii) bank loans
were fully settled in June 2021.

The Group held approximately 271,202,000 ordinary shares of Li Ning Co
Limited (“Li Ning Co”") as at 31 December 2021, representing 10.4% equity
interests in Li Ning Co and 38.1% on the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2021,

Investment costs of Li Ning Co as at year ended 31 December 2021 was
HK$1,362.9 million. Dividend received from Li Ning Co was HK$67.4 million
during the year ended 31 December 2021. Please refer to Note 15 for the fair
value of the investments.

Li Ning Co’s principal activities include brand development, design, manufacture,
sale and distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment and accessories
in the PRC.
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Li Ning Co is accounted for as associates of the Group. The Group has adopted
the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the
attributable share of associate's results based on the financial statements drawn
up to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than
three months. During the year, the Group shared the results of Li Ning Co based
on its adjusted financial results for the twelve months ended 30 September 2021
adjusted by any significant events or transactions for the period from 1 October
2021 to 31 December 2021. There is no non-coterminous period end for other
associates and joint ventures.

Li Ning Co’s adjusted net profit for the year amounted to HK$4,119.5 million
(2020: HK$1,771.4 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 132.6%.
This was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue and net profit margin.

Li Ning Co will continue to promote the strategy of “Single Brand, Multi-
categories, Diversified Channels”, strengthen and improve the core business
focuses, remain devoted to create LI-NING's experience value, and focus on
enhancing efficiency in order to achieve healthy and sustainable profit growth in
the future. Backed by various favorable policies to support the development of the
sports industry and the consumption upgrade driven by national economic growth,
consumption concept of the general public has changed gradually with more and
more consumers giving great consideration to product innovation and brand value.
Along with the increasingly mature consumption concept, consumption demand
of people will become more refined and diverse, which will pose even more
challenges to the brand and product competitiveness in the market.

Investment in Li Ning Co aligns with the Group’s strategy to expand its business
scope along the sports value chain in the PRC. The long term commitment to build
an integrated platform allows the Group to create synergies and reap crossover
benefits among its various business components to the greatest extent in the long
run, enabling the Group to explore further strategic development opportunities,
including sports marketing and sponsorship opportunities. Meanwhile, aligned
utilisation of resources in hand, including the sports talents or sports events and
sports destinations network, would be promoted between Li Ning Co and the
Group for growing their businesses together as well as possibly expanding the
markets for certain types of sports in China.
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During the year, the Group shared the profits less losses of associates and

joint ventures amounting to HK$492.6 million (2020: HK$266.4 million). The
increase was mainly due to the increase in contribution of Li Ning Co and Double
Happiness of HK$220.8 million and HK$17.9 million, respectively, due to the
increase in revenue and net profit margin in the current year.

During the year, the Group has recorded a net profit attributable to equity holders
of HK$4,562.6 million comparing to a net profit attributable to equity holders

of HK$1,192.4 million for the year 2020, representing a significant increase of
3,370.2 million. The increase was mainly due to i) the gain on disposal of partial
interest in an associate (Li Ning Co) of HK$3,338.8 million (2020: HK$1,023.0
million) and ii) the deemed dilution gain arising from the decrease of 0.5%
shareholding in an associate (Li Ning Co) amounting to HK$978.0 million (2020:
nil).

SEGMENT

Multi-brands Apparels and Footwears Consumable Goods
Business

The apparel consumer market in the PRC has immense market potential,
especially the young new consumer groups that admire personal characteristics
and possess huge consumption potentials, which will lead the trend and become
an important force promoting the post-epidemic consumption. In addition to the
huge consumption power arising from rapid growth of the new consumer groups,
in the first year of the “14th Five-year Plan”, the central government has greatly
promoted the new economic development pattern and consumption model for
national economic circulation, further accelerated the building of the domestic
market, and driven the national consumption in 2021.

Bossini, a well-known lifestyle apparel brand of the Group, has integrated some
young and unique elements catering for Generation Z and launched “Bossini. X",
a brand with brand new positioning. The Group believes that Bossini has the
potential to further promote its brand in China, however, “Bossini.X" is a brand
new product line and positioning, more investments in channels and market testing
are required in the future to lay the foundation for the new development of such
brand.

The Group's luxury trendy brand, LNG, continues to gain its inspiration from

the "young generation” which represents user bases of e-sports, animation and
fashion, and create fashion brands featuring gorgeous visuals and high quality to
cater for youngsters of the next generation. During the year, a number of physical
stores were opened in high-end shopping areas in the first-tier cities such as
Chongaing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Nanjing, with the aim to explore the huge
business opportunities from the prime consumer groups. Moreover, the LNG brand
cooperates with other youthful fashion brands and launches authorised products
from time to time.
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In January 2022, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Sitoy AT Holdings Company Limited which owns a century-old Italian
luxury leader label brand, Amedeo Testoni and its diffusion line i29. Amedeo
Testoni is principally engaged in wholesale and retail of leatherware, fashion
garments and apparel. Through this acquisition, the Group has added high-

end luxury brands to its asset portfolio and expanded existing business scale by
extending its multi-brand footwear and apparel consumables network to Europe,
Japan and South Korea.

On 15 March 2021, the Group announced that we conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the majority share interest and acquire a shareholder’s loan of
LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited (the “SPV") which holds a majority interest
in C&J Clark (No.1) Limited (“Clark”). Clarks brand has a history of nearly two
hundred years. Its main markets cover the United Kingdom, and with the presence
in the United States and the Greater China region. Upon completion of such
transaction, the SPV and its subsidiaries (including Clark) will become indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. The presence of the Group's
consumables business will be further expanded and synergy with our current
consumables business will be created.

The multi-brands apparels and footwears segment generated revenue totaling
HK$851.2 million (2020: HK$439.0 million) for the year, which represents an
increase of HK$412.2 million or 93.9% as compared to the year of 2020. The
increase was contributed by i) the organic growth of LNG brand, and ii) acquisition
of Bossini Group in late July 2020. This segment reported an operating loss of
HK$312.6 million (2020: operating loss of HK$93.5 million).

Sports Experience

Sports experience segment comprises operation, service provision and investment
of sports destinations (including sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating
rinks), sports competitions and events as well as an e-sports club.

For sports experience, it is the Group's strategy to drive the establishment of

an integrated sports platform by leveraging on the existing resources of its
sports business. The Group will therefore continue its effort to capture and
maximize the commercial values of the sports resources under our management,
and encourage social participation in sporting activities through commercial
management of popular sports events and competitions, operation of an e-sports
club, sports talent management. In the meantime, the Group has been selecting
suitable cooperation opportunities to invest in and operate potential sports
destination projects, including sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks
that promote healthier living and sports awareness in the PRC. We hope to
capitalise on this opportunity where nationwide physical fitness is becoming more
popular and to engage more people in more diversified sports experience by
operating sports destinations that are open to the public, which is expected to
benefit the medium to long term development of our business.
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The sports experience segment generated revenue totaling HK$530.4 million
(2020: HK$380.0 million) for the year, which represents a significant increase
of HK$150.4 million or 39.6% as compared to the year of 2020. This segment
reported an operating profit of HK$23.6 million during the period (2020:
operating loss of HK$18.3 million). With the impact from Beijing Winter Olympics
and the Chinese e-sport team'’s victory in the 11th League of Legends global
finals, the topics on winter sports and e-sports continues to heat up, plus the
recovery of the sports experience segment from the epidemic, the revenue and
result of sports experience segment was largely improved compared with prior
year, especially for the ice-skating rinks business and the E-sports business.

Financial Position

Net assets value of the Group has increased from HK$4,531.3 million as at 31
December 2020 to HK$7,754.4 million as at 31 December 2021. The increase
was mainly due to i) the gain on disposal of partial interest in an associate (Li Ning
Co) amounting to HK$3,338.8 million and ii) the deemed dilution gain arising
from the decrease of 0.5% shareholding in an associate (Li Ning Co) amounting
to HK$978.0 million, but the gains were partially offset by the special dividend
payment of HK$1,504.1 million during the year.

The total non-current assets of the Group has increased from HK$3,975.2
million as at 31 December 2020 to HK$5,261.9 million as at 31 December
2021, which represents an increase of HK$1,286.7 million. The increase was
mainly resulted from the deemed dilution gain arising from the decrease of 0.5%
shareholding in an associate (Li Ning Co) amounting to HK$978.0 million.

Current assets of the Group recorded an increase by HK$973.5 million from
HK$2,874.8 million as at the beginning of the year to HK$3,848.3 million as at
the end of the year. The key components of the current assets at the reporting
date were cash and bank balances included restricted bank balances and deposits
with banks with maturity period over three months of HK$2,537.1 million (2020:
HK$1,861.1 million), trade debtors and bills receivable. The increase in the
Group’s cash and bank balance was mainly due to the consideration received from
the disposal of partial interest in an associate but partially offset by the payment of
special dividend during this year.

The total current liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2021 were HK$896.3
million, representing an increase of HK$201.5 million or 29.0% from that as

at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2021, the key component of non-
current liabilities was non-current lease liabilities of HK$362.6 million (2020:
HK$273.5 million).
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group recorded a net cash outflow in operations for the current year of
HK$37.7 million (2020: net cash inflow of HK$294.4 million). The change in
operating cash flow was mainly due to the increase in inventory level. A net cash
inflows in investing activities of HK$3,594.1 million for the current year (2020:
HK$1,401.6 million). The cash inflows from investing activities in 2020 and 2021
was mainly due to the proceeds from disposal of partial interest in an associate.
A net cash outflows from financing activities of HK$2,888.4 million for the
current year (2020: HK$501.2 million), representing an increase of HK$2,387.2
million compared to last year. The net cash outflow from financing activities in

the year of 2021 was mainly attributable to i) repayment of bank loan together
with loan interest, totaling HK$1,272.1 million and i) special dividend payment
to shareholders amounting to HK$1,504.1 million. As a result, the cash and cash
equivalent of the Group as at 31 December 2021 increased by HK$672.2 million
from the beginning of the year.

The Group had banking facilities of approximately HK$205.9 million (2020:
HK$1,256.0 million), of which approximately HK$12.8 million has been utilised
(2020: approximately HK$1,256.0 million) as at 31 December 2021, The
Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 0 (2020: 0) as at 31 December 2021,
The Group defines gearing ratio as ratio of net debt over equity plus net debt
in which net debt represents total bank and other borrowings less cash and
bank balances (including restricted bank balances). The current ratio (ratio of
current assets to current liabilities) of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately 4.3 (2020: 4.1). The Group’s gearing level and liquidity position
has been maintained at a healthy level as at the reporting date. It is the Group’s
strategy to maintain a healthy and effective gearing ratio in a range of 0 to 1.
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Financial Management Policy and Foreign Currency Risk

The Group'’s finance division at its headquarters in Hong Kong manages the
financial risks of the Group. One of the key objectives of the Group’s treasury
policies is to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. It is the Group’s policy not to engage in any speculative activities. As the
Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the PRC, most of the revenue and

trading transactions are settled in either HK$ or RMB. Accardingly, the majority of
the Group’s net current assets were denominated in either HK$ or RMB. Deposits

placed in various banks are mainly denominated in these two currencies. The
Group maintains its proportion of deposits in RMB and HK$ in line with its future
business and investment plans. The policies in place to manage foreign currency
risk have been followed by the Group for several years and are considered to be
effective with the current foreign currency risk still manageable. The Group has
assessed its foreign exchange rate risk exposure and has entered into forward
currency contracts to mitigate foreign currency risk during the year and as at the
reporting date.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2027, no asset has been charged as security. As at 31
December 2020, interests in an associate with carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,315.7 million had been charged as security for a bank borrowing of a
subsidiary.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held bank guarantees given in lieu of utility
and property rental deposits totaling HK$1.0 million (2020: HK$5.4 million).

Commitments for Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had commitments totaling HK$121.8
million in relation to capital contribution, acquisition of associates and joint
ventures and for the purchase of property, plant and equipment which were
contracted but not provided for (2020: HK$27.4 million).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

Staff remuneration comprised of monthly salaries, mandatory provident fund
contributions, medical bengfits, housing benefits, education allowances and
discretionary share options issued based on their contribution to the Group.
Staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$389.1 million (2020: HK$199.8 million). The Group
also engages professional consultants to ensure the competitiveness of the
remuneration policy which, in turn, would support the business growth of the
Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed approximately 2,900
full-time employees (2020: 2,300) and their remuneration was calculated with
reference to the market rates.
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Material Transactions BARS
The Group entered into the following material transactions: AEBEBFTIUTEARRS !

(@)

On 18 May 2021, the Group announced the sale of 2.4% of the total (a)
issued share capital in Li Ning Co by way of placing. The placing was

completed on 21 May 2021 and all the relevant sale shares were placed

with net proceeds of HK$3,786.9 million received. The Group’s equity

interests in Li Ning Co have decreased from approximately 13.3% to
approximately 10.9% immediately after the completion of placing. The

placing represented an opportunity to realise part of the investment by the

Group in Li Ning Co. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 18 May 2021,

Pursuant to a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) entered into between (b)
Viva China Consumables Limited (“Viva China Consumables” or the
“Lender”, formerly known as Viva China Entertainment Holdings Limited),

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and LionRock Capital GP
Limited acting in its capacity as the general partner (the “General Partner”)
of LionRock Capital Partners QiLe L.P. (the “Borrower” or “LionRock”)

on 28 September 2020, the Lender has agreed to provide a facility of
GBP54,000,000 (the “Facility”) to the Borrower at an interest rate of 4%
per annum for financing the acquisition or subscription of equity interests in
a target company by LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited (the “SPV"), a
company wholly owned by LionRock.
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On 15 March 2021, the Lender entered into a subscription agreement
(the "Agreement”) with the Borrower and the SPV pursuant to which the
Lender conditionally agreed to subscribe for 510 shares of the SPV at

a subscription price of GBP51,000,000 (the “Subscription Price”, and

the "Subscription”, respectively) and acquire a shareholder’s loan (the
“Purchase Shareholder's Loan") from the Borrower at a consideration

of GBP51,000,000 (the “Consideration”, and the “Shareholder’s Loan
Transaction”, respectively). The Consideration payable by the Lender to the
Borrower shall be deemed to be satisfied at completion of the Subscription
(the “Completion”) by setting off an amount equal to the Consideration
against an outstanding amount of GBP51,000,000 which has been

drawn down and remains outstanding under the Loan Agreement (the
“Outstanding Amount”). Upon consummation of the Shareholder’s Loan
Transaction at Completion, the Outstanding Amount shall be deemed to
have been irrevocably and unconditionally repaid in full by the Borrower to
the Lender in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement and all
unpaid interest which has been accrued pursuant to the Loan Agreement
shall be deemed irrevocably and unconditionally waived by the Lender. The
Subscription Price payable by the Lender to the SPV at Completion shall be
setting off an amount equal to the Subscription Price against the Purchase
Shareholder’s Loan, and the Purchase Shareholder's Loan owed by the
SPV to the Lender (being the new lender of the Purchase Shareholder’s
Loan as from the consummation of the Shareholder’s Loan Transaction)
shall be deemed fully paid and satisfied in full and the Purchase
Shareholder’s Loan shall be terminated.

The SPV holds a majority interest in C&J Clark (No.1) Limited (*Clark”)
which is principally engaged in wholesaling and retailing of shoes and
trading in the brand name “Clarks”. Upon Completion, the SPV and its
subsidiaries (including Clark) will become indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

For details of the Loan Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 September 2020. For details of the Agreement, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 January 2021 and
15 March 2021.

As at 31 December 20271 and at the date of this report, the outstanding
amount of loan principal was HK$563,774,000 (equivalent to
GBP53,550,000).
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On 5 February 2021, Bossini, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company with its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 592), proposed to raise gross proceeds of approximately
HK$296 million before expense by way of a rights issue of 821,916,697
rights ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.360 per rights share on the
basis of one (1) rights share for every two (2) existing shares held by the
qualifying shareholders. The market price on the date which the terms of
the subscription were fixed was HK$0.47.

The rights issue was completed on 13 April 2021 and total 821,916,697
rights shares were issued with net proceeds of approximately HK$294
million raised. Total 648,138,406 rights shares were allocated to Dragon
Leap Developments Limited (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, “Dragon Leap”) and the aggregate interest of the Company

in Bossini was increased from approximately 66.54% to approximately
70.65% immediately after the completion of the rights issue.

Details of the above were set out in Bossini's announcements dated 5
February 2021 and 12 April 2021,

On 16 March 2021, Viva China Yangzhou Community Development
Holdings Limited (the “Seller”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the share purchase agreement (the “Share
Purchase Agreement”) with Yangzhou City Huacheng Property Development
Limited (the “Buyer”), pursuant to which the Seller agreed to sell and the
Buyer agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital in Yangzhou Viva
Property Development Limited (“Yangzhou Property”) at a consideration of
RMB313.69 million (the “Transaction”).

In March 2021, the Seller has transferred 90% issued share capital of
Yangzhou Property to the Buyer in accordance with the terms of the

Share Purchase Agreement. The Transaction had been completed after the
transfer of remaining 10% issued share capital of Yangzhou Property to the
Buyer in October 2021,

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16
March 2021,
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On 27 October 2021, Li Ning Co, Viva China Development Limited (the
“Vendor”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group) and J.P. Morgan
Securities plc and Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Placing
Agents”) entered into the placing and subscription agreement, pursuant
to which (i) the Vendor has agreed to place, through the Placing Agents,
on a fully-underwritten basis, an aggregate of 120,000,000 Li Ning Co’s
shares held by the Vendor (the “Top-up Placing Shares”), at the price of
HK$87.50 per Top-up Placing Share (the “Top-up Placing Price”); and
(i) the Vendor has agreed to subscribe for 120,000,000 new Li Ning
Co's shares (the “Top-up Subscription Shares”) at the price of HK$87.50
per Top-up Subscription Share (the “Top-up Subscription Price") which

is equivalent to the Top-up Placing Price (the “Top-up Placing and
Subscription”).

The placing of the Top-up Placing Shares held by the Vendor (the “Top-up
Placing”) was completed on 1 November 2021 and the subscription of the
Top-up Subscription Shares by the Vendor (the “Top-up Subscription”) was
completed on 3 November 2021,

On 27 October 2021, the Group held 271,201,543 Li Ning Co’s shares,
representing approximately 10.9% of the issued shares of Li Ning Co. The
Group’s shareholding in Li Ning Co was decreased from approximately
10.9% to 6.1% upon completion of the Top-up Placing and was restored
to approximately 10.4% upon completion of the Top-up Subscription.

The deemed dilution gain arising from the Top-up Placing and Subscription
with a decrease of 0.5% shareholding in Li Ning Co was approximately
HK$978.0 million.

The Group has applied to the Stock Exchange for a waiver from strict
compliance with the very substantial disposal and very substantial
acquisition requirements in respect of the Top-up Placing and the Top-up
Subscription under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules, and the Stock
Exchange has granted the aforesaid waiver.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28
October 2021 and 3 November 2021,
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On 3 November 2021, Ample Fame Investments Limited (the “Purchaser”, (f)
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), the Company (as the

Purchaser guarantor), Sitoy International Limited (the “Vendor”) and Sitoy

Group Holdings Limited (the “Vendor Guarantor”) entered into the share

purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of Sitoy AT Holdings

Company Limited (the “Target Company”) (the “SPA").

The acquisition was completed in early January 2022, at the consideration
of HK$1 and the post-closing payment of EUR2,538,000 (approximately
HK$22,413,000). Pursuant to the SPA, the inter-company loans due

to the Vendor Guarantor amounted to RMB41,137,000 (approximately
HK$50,352,000) as at 31 December 2021 will be repaid by the
subsidiaries of the Target Company to the Vendor Guarantor. The Target
Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
financial results were consolidated into the financial results of the Group
since January 2022,

The Target Company and its subsidiaries own a century-old Italian luxury
leader label brand, Amedeo Testoni (formerly known as “a. testoni”) and
its diffusion line i29 and are principally engaged in wholesale and retail of
leatherware, fashion garments and apparel.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
3 November 2021,

On 30 December 2021, Rapid City Limited (“Rapid City”, a wholly (9)
owned subsidiary of Bossini), Shine Wealthy Limited (“Shine Wealthy”, an
independent purchaser) and Knight Frank Hong Kong Limited (the “Agent”)

entered into two provisional sale and purchase agreements (the “Provisional
Agreements”) for the sale and purchase of two properties held by Rapid

City at the aggregate consideration of HK$184,729,500. Pursuant to the

terms of the Provisional Agreements, Rapid City and Shine Wealthy entered

into the formal agreements on 13 January 2022. The transaction was

completed on 15 March 2022.

Details of the above were set out in Bossini's announcements dated 30
December 2021,
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Subsequent Events

(@)

On 3 November 2027, Ample Fame Investments Limited (the “Purchaser”,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), the Company (as the
Purchaser guarantor), Sitoy International Limited (the “Vendor") and Sitoy
Group Holdings Limited (the “Vendor Guarantor”) entered into the share
purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of Sitoy AT Holdings
Company Limited (the “Target Company”) (the “SPA").

The acquisition was completed in early January 2022, at the consideration
of HK$1 and the post-closing payment of EUR2,538,000 (approximately
HK$22,413,000). Pursuant to the SPA, the inter-company loans due

to the Vendor Guarantor amounted to RMB41,137,000 (approximately
HK$50,352,000) as at 31 December 2021 will be repaid by the
subsidiaries of the Target Company to the Vendor Guarantor. The Target
Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
financial results were consolidated into the financial results of the Group
since January 2022,

The Target Company and its subsidiaries own a century-old Italian luxury
leader label brand, Amedeo Testoni (formerly known as “a. testoni”) and
its diffusion line i29 and are principally engaged in wholesale and retail of
leatherware, fashion garments and apparel.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
3 November 2021,

On 30 December 2021, Rapid City Limited (“Rapid City”, a wholly

owned subsidiary of Bossini), Shine Wealthy Limited (“Shine Wealthy”, an
independent purchaser) and Knight Frank Hong Kong Limited (the "Agent”)
entered into two provisional sale and purchase agreements (the “Provisional
Agreements”) for the sale and purchase of two properties held by Rapid
City at the aggregate consideration of HK$184,729,500. Pursuant to the
terms of the Provisional Agreements, Rapid City and Shine Wealthy entered
into the formal agreements on 13 January 2022. The transaction was
completed on 15 March 2022.

Details of the above were set out in Bossini’s announcements dated 30
December 2021,

With continuously increasing in the new infections of COVID-19 globally,
and the outbreak of Omicron in Hong Kong since early January 2022,

this will inevitably have an impact on consumption sentiment and the
Group's business. Taking into account the possible derail of recovery due to
unfavorable macro environment and the pandemic impact, the management
of the Group will stay cautious and react proactively to the evolving market
conditions. The management will continue assessing the impacts of the
COVID-19 on the financial performance of the Group.
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Directors' and Senior Management's Biographies

MR. LI NING

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXEGUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Ning, aged 59, has been the chairman (the “Chairman”), an executive
Director and a member of the executive committee of the Company since June
20710. Mr. Li was also appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee,
the chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and a member of
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 15 March 2012,

22 May 2013 and 4 November 2019 respectively. He is a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li is the founder of the LI-NING brand. He has
been appointed as an executive director of Li Ning Co* since 4 March 2004 and
is currently its executive chairman. Mr. Li was appointed as interim chief executive
officer of Li Ning Co* on 18 March 2015 and has been re-designated as its joint
chief executive officer with effect from 2 September 2019, Mr. Li is the younger
brother of Mr. Li Chun, a substantial shareholder of the Company as defined in the
SFO and the uncle of Mr. Li Qilin, who is an executive Director.

Mr. Liis one of the most outstanding athletes in the 20th century. In the 6th
World Cup Gymnastics Competition in 1982, Mr. Li unprecedentedly won six

gold medals in men’s artistic gymnastics events and was named the “Prince of
Gymnastics” ("B& & FE F") in the PRC. In the 23rd Los Angeles Olympic Games
in 1984, Mr. Li won three gold, two silver and one bronze medals, making him
the athlete winning the most medals of that Olympic Games. In 1987, Mr. Li
became the Asian member of Athlete's Commission of the International Olympic
Committee. From 1993 to 2000, Mr. Li served as a member of the Men's
Artistic Gymnastics Technical Committee of the Federation Internationale De
Gymnastique. He is currently an honorary member of the Federation Internationale
De Gymnastique. In 1999, Mr. Li was voted as one of the “World's Most Excellent
Athletes in the 20th Century” by the World Sports Correspondent Association.

After retiring from his athlete career in 1989, Mr. Li initiated the idea of LI-NING
brand with the goal of creating the first national sports goods brand in the PRC.

He has dedicated the past over 30 years to the development of the business of

LN Group, achieving great contribution to the development of the sporting goods
industry in the PRC. Mr. Li is the non-executive chairman of LionRock Capital GP
Limited.

Mr. Li holds a bachelor’s degree in law from School of Law of Peking University
(AE A E2) | an executive M.B.A. degree from Guanghua School of
Management of Peking University (A6 SR KB EE B IR 2 B) | an honorary
doctorate in technology from Loughborough University in the United Kingdom and
an honorary degree of doctor of humanities from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. In June 2010, Mr. Li was also conferred honorary fellowship from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Mr. Li has also been actively involved in charities via his “Li Ning Foundation”
(Z=EHE ) and to support educational development in impoverished and
remote areas in the PRC. In October 2009, Mr. Li was appointed by the United
Nations World Food Programme (WFP) as “WFP Goodwill Ambassador Against
Hunger”. Mr. Li is an honorary president of the Hong Kong Association of Youth
Development and a life member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce,
Hong Kong.

The shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange

MR. LI CHUNYANG

EXEGUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Chunyang, aged 53, is an executive Director and a member of the
executive committee of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2010 and is
a director of JENBBE R B (J6R) B FR/AF, Viva China Community
Development Holdings Limited and various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li
graduated from Peking University in 2004 with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.
In 1989 and 1991, he won the World Gymnastics Championships.

MR. LI QILIN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Qilin, aged 35, was appointed as a non-executive Director in June 2013.
Mr. Li has been re-designated from a non-executive Director to an executive
Director and appointed as a member of the executive committee of the Company
with effect from 13 November 2015. Mr. Li joined the Group in June 2013. Mr. Li
is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li had been a director of
Lead Ahead Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company during the period
from 15 June 2010 to 1 November 2021,

Mr. Li has been appointed as a non-executive director of Li Ning Co™ since
13 December 2017 and re-designated as its executive director with effect from
19 June 2018.

Mr. Li has considerable experience in financial services industry and was an
analyst of Persistent Asset Management Limited during the period from January
20710 to July 2013. Mr. Li is the son of Mr. Li Chun, a substantial shareholder of
the Company as defined in the SFO and the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director.

The shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange
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MR. VICTOR HERRERO

NON-EXEGUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Victor Herrero, aged 53, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 14 January 2021, Prior to the appointment, he
was a senior advisor of the Company. On 24 July 2020, Mr. Herrero has been
appointed as the chairman and a non-executive director of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Bossini International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
592), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Herrero has extensive experience in corporate management and business
operations in the consumables industry. From 2015 to 2019, Mr. Herrero served
as the chief executive officer and director of Guess Inc. (listed on New York Stock
Exchange), which is principally engaged in designing, marketing, distributing and
licensing a lifestyle collection of contemporary apparel, denim, handbags, watches,
footwear and other related consumer products around the world. Prior to joining
Guess Inc., Mr. Herrero served as the head of Asia Pacific and managing director
of Greater China of Industria de Disefio Textil, S.A. (Inditex Group), an international
fashion retailer with brands including Zara, Massimo Dutti, Pull & Bear, Bershka
and Stradivarius. Mr. Herrero is a board member of Global Fashion Group S.A.,
(e-commerce fashion site operator and owner of Zalora and The lconic, the shares
of which are listed on the Frankfurt stock exchange), G-Il Apparel Group, Ltd (US
manufacturer and distributor operating through a portfolio of brands, the shares of
which are listed on NASDAQ) and Gruppo Coppel (Mexican consumer finance and
retail conglomerate).

Mr. Herrero graduated with a Master of Business Administration from Kellogg
School of Management at Northwestern University in 2003. He obtained a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration from ESCP Europe in Paris, France
in 1992 and a Bachelor's of Law Degree from the University of Zaragoza in Spain
in 1993. He was also awarded ‘Best CEO in the Sustainable Apparel Industry” in
2018 by the European CEO Magazine.
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MR. MA WING MAN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ma Wing Man, aged 56, has been a non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee of the Company since June 2010. Mr. Ma has over 30
years of experience in finance and administration. Mr. Ma has been employed

by “Li Ning Foundation” as the financial controller since 2005. From 1992 to
2005, Mr. Ma had been employed first as accountant and later as financial and
accounting manager of Jianlibao Holdings (H.K.) Company Limited, which was a
wholesaler and retailer of Jianlibao drinks.

Mr. Ma graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (predecessor of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in 1989 with a diploma in business administration. In 1993,
he obtained a diploma in accounting from School of Professional and Continuing
Education, University of Hong Kong. In 1998, he obtained a professional

diploma for financial controllers & finance directors of foreign investment &
foreign enterprise in China, which was jointly awarded by School of Management
/hongshan University, China and The Hong Kong Management Association. In
2003, he obtained a bachelor of business administration degree with honours in
accounting from the Open University of Hong Kong.

MR. LI QING

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Qing, aged 55, is an independent non-executive Director and a member
of both the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Li joined the Group in December 2019, Mr. Li has accumulated over 27 years
of experience in investment and asset management, merge and acquisition and
business operation in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li graduated with an executive
M.B.A degree from Guanghua School of Management of Beijing University (35 &R
KREBHEEIEERT)in 2006,

Mr. Li has been appointed as an executive director of Crystal Clear Electronic
Material Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Suzhou Crystal Clear Chemical Co., Ltd.)
(Stock Code: 300655(SZSE)) in July 2016 and is currently its chief strategy
officer. The shares of this company are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
He is currently the chairman of both Jiming Asset Management (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd and Ma'anshan Jishipujiang Asset Management Co., Ltd. He was appointed
as the general manager of HuaAn Funds Management Limited from May 2010 to
September 2014 and a director of China Investment Information Services Limited,
from July 2001 to June 2010.
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MR. PAK WAI KEUNG, MARTIN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, aged 58, is an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the audit committee, a member of each of the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Pak joined the Group in February 2019. He has accumulated over 25 years
of experience in finance, accounting and corporate governance affairs. Mr. Pak
graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce from the Murdoch University, Australia in
1991 and a Master of Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2009. Mr. Pak is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in the United Kingdom
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries).

Mr. Pak has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited™ (Stock Code: 1229) and Dragon Mining Limited*
(Stock Code: 1712) with effect from 19 September 2017 and 5 November
2018 respectively. Since 12 June 2019, Mr. Pak had been an independent non-
executive director of China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited, the shares of which were
delisted from the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 18 January 2021. Since
8 December 2017, Mr. Pak had also served as an independent non-executive
director of Convoy Global Holdings Limited, the share of which were delisted from
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 4 May 2021, and resigned on 11
February 2022.

The shares of this company are listed on the Stock Exchange
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MR. WANG YAN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 49, is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the remuneration committee, and a member of both the audit committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in July
2017, From May 2003 to March 2021, he was a director of Sina Corporation
("SINA”"), which was previously listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market in the U.S. and
delisted on 23 March 2021 after privatization. During the period from 1996 to
March 2021, as the co-founder of SINA, Mr. Wang successively held the posts of
chief executive officer and chairman. In May 2021, Mr. Wang has been appointed
as an independent director of Weibo Corporation which is listed on the Nasdag
Stock Market in the U.S. and the Stock Exchange (Nasdag ticker: WB; stock code:
9898.HK).

Mr. Wang obtained a B.A. in Public Law in July 1997 and a M.A. of Public Law in
September 2020 from the Université Paris Il in France.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr. Li Qilin, being the executive Directors, are
also the senior management of the Group.

DISCLOSURE ON CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes in details
of the Directors’ information subsequent to the date of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2021 are set out below:

AR E

BUFERTESE

AELEE T+ N AERREEILIEHR
TEE FNEZESTEUABZEESR
MR EEG B ITREN T —+
FEtAMALXREB - FR_EE=FFHA
EE_—FZRBHEFERERAT (FFEL)
ZEE O ZNREREERMTIERRE

BrEHm o RAEBELERE_ZSE_—%F=H
T+ =-HEEEHm - B—AAREE_E
= BHE IREEATBEEREA
BALBETERHATERESTRE -
T —FRER IREEZTTAMERT
(EREEMNTERRENS BT L
o BRERSE (WBEI898. HK) Z BIIE S o

SERER—A N EE L AEEEMUniversité
Paris I1NBEE N EEB LB R T -FFE A
BER—E2REENAEEE T

SHREEAS

HOTEFFTERE - TEBRERTHEE
TENTREERSREEAZ

FREFENEHZKE

HRIRCEM_E TR FRBISE17 50AMN R » IR R B &
EE-—FRB=+THLERBERZTH
REHE® EFEREHFBEHIWMT

Name Details of Changes
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Li Qllin The emolument package was revised to an annual director’s fee of HK$200,000, an annual salary of
HK$2,015,000 with effect from 13 November 2021 and an annual housing benefit of not exceeding
HK$768,000
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in i) research,
development, design, marketing and sale of multi-brand of apparels and
footwears; and ii) operation service provision and investment of sports destinations
(including sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks), sports competitions
and events as well as an e-sports club.

The principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the year ended 31 December 2021
is set out in the Chairman’s Statement, the Business Review and the Financial
Review of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 110 to 220.

On 21 July 2021, a special dividend of HK$0.133 per Share was paid to the
Shareholders and an equivalent amount of the special dividend was paid to the
holders of the issued and outstanding convertible bonds of the Company on an
as-converted basis. The Directors did not declare an interim dividend and did not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2021,

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company recognizes the importance of maximizing return to Shareholders
and believes that driving growth creates significant value to Shareholders. The
Company has adopted a dividend policy with the objective of achieving right
balance of the amount of dividend and the amount of profits retained in the
business for various purposes. The Board would consider the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividend:—

a)  financial results of the Company;

b)  Shareholders’ interests;

c)  general business conditions, strategies and future expansion needs;
d)  the Company's capital requirements;

) the payment of cash dividends to the Company from its subsidiaries;
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()  possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the Company; and
(@)  other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the applicable
laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past
five financial years is set out on page 222 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 12(A) to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounted to
approximately HK$9,986,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued 64,910,000 Shares in aggregate upon
exercise of share options pursuant to the 2010 Share Option Scheme and

the 2021 Share Option Scheme (as set out in the section of “Share Option
Schemes” in this report) adopted by the Company on 29 June 2010 and 18
January 2021 respectively and the consideration received thereon amounted to
HK$32,450,000. The Company also issued 60,000,000 Shares upon conversion
of the perpetual convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$19,500,000
into shares.

Details of the share capital and the perpetual convertible bonds during the year
are set out in Notes 27 and 29 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, save for the Earn-out Convertible Bonds,
the 2010 Share Option Scheme and the 2021 Share Option Scheme (as set out
in the sections of “Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures” and “Share
Option Schemes” in this report), the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreement, nor did any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end of the
year.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to Shareholders comprising share premium account less accumulated losses,
amounted to approximately HK$353,054,000 (2020: HK$274,730,000).
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Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 113 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers (including
LN Group) accounted for approximately 24.5% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 21.4%
of the total sales.

Purchases from the Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
26.0% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 15.6% of the total purchases.

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
and an executive Director, was also deemed under Part XV of the SFO to have
personal interest in 3,578,808 LN Shares and 413,005 unvested restricted LN
Shares under the restricted share award scheme of Li Ning Co, which in aggregate
amounted to 3,991,813 LN Shares and underlying LN Shares (representing
approximately 0.15% shareholding interest in the share capital of Li Ning Co

as at 31 December 2021). Mr. Li Ning is also the executive chairman, the

joint chief executive officer and an executive director of Li Ning Co. As at 31
December 2021, Mr. Li Qilin, an executive Director, was also deemed under Part
XV of the SFO to have personal interest in 1,076,000 LN Shares (representing
approximately 0.04% shareholding interest in the share capital of Li Ning Co as at
31 December 2021). He is also an executive director of Li Ning Co.

Save as disclosed above for the purpose of the Chapter 18 of the GEM Listing
Rules, none of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands in which the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, of any listed securities of the Company during the year.
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REDEMPTION OR PURCHASE OR CANCELLATION OF
REDEEMABLE SECURITIES

There was no redemption, purchase or cancellation by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of any redeemable securities of the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Chunyang
Mr. Li Qilin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Victor Herrero
(appointed with effect from 14 January 2021)
Mr. Ma Wing Man

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Qing
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin
Mr. Wang Yan

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Chunyang will
retire as Directors by rotation and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election
in accordance with articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the articles of association of
the Company and pursuant to Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. Further
particulars of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general
meeting are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent together with this
annual report. All other existing Directors shall continue in office.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 29 to 34 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Particulars of the emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the year are
set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liahilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors” and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company’s or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or its
connected entities had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly) subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

() Share Option Schemes of the Company

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed the ordinary resolutions to adopt
a share option scheme (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”) which expired
on 29 June 2020 and no share options remained outstanding as at 31
December 2021. Subsequently, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme on 18 January 2021 (the “2021 Share Option Scheme”) which
will remain in force for period of 10 years commencing on 18 January
2021,

The purpose of the 2010 Share Option Scheme and the 2021 Share
Option Scheme (the “Schemes” collectively) is to provide incentives and/or
reward to participants for their contributions to the Group and/or to enable
the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and/or attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group. Participants of the Schemes include
employee, officer, agent, consultant, business associate or representative
of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise contributes to the success
of the Group, including any executive, non-executive or independent non-
executive director of the Company or any subsidiary who, as the Board or a
committee comprising Directors and members of senior management of the
Company (as the case may be) may determine in its absolute discretion,

is regarded as valuable human resources of the Group who has made
important contributions to the development of the Group based on his
work experience, knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors, and
subject to such conditions as the Board or such committee (as the case
may be) may think fit.
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The offer of a grant of share options under the Schemes may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the Board or such committee,
save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
grant. Unless the Board may otherwise determine, there is no minimum
period required under the Schemes for the holding of an option before it
can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or such
committee, but shall be at least the highest of () the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (i)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Shares.

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Schemes within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date of
grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
each of the Schemes and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the number of Shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company, including the 2021
Share Option Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal
amount of all the Shares in issue as at the date of its adoption. Following
the expiration of 2010 Share Option Scheme, no share option could be
granted and exercised thereafter under the 2010 Share Option Scheme.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under 2021 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company, including the 2010 Share Option
Scheme, must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominated amount

of all the shares in issue as at the date of its adoption (the “2021 Share
Option Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from time to time,
refresh the 2021 Share Option Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting. Once refreshed, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to

be granted under 2021 Share Option Scheme and all other share option
schemes of the Company under the limit, as refreshed, must not exceed
10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshment by the Shareholders. On the basis of 9,496,332,726 Shares
in issue on the date of adoption of the 2021 Share Option Scheme, the
maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon exercise of share
options that may be granted under it is 949,633,272 Shares. As at the
date of this report, the share options available for grant under the 2021
Share Option Scheme is 663,699,939, representing 6.87% of the existing
number of issued Shares.
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Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

Detail of movement of the share options under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme and the 2021 Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31

December 2021 are as follows:

(A) The 2010 Share Option Scheme
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Balance as at

Exercised during Lapsed during Balance as at

Date of Grant 1.1.2021 the year the year 31.12.2021
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B A LEER RERNTT REREXH 4EER
Directors
Bx
Mr. LI Ning 20.01.2017 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) -
TR
Mr. LI Chunyang 20.01.2017 5,000,000 = (5,000,000) =
=EEEE
Mr. LI Gilin 20.01.2017 21,750,000 - (21,750,000 -
FRBLE
Mr. MA Wing Man 20.01.2017 1,500,000 = (1,500,000) =
BakX kLt
29,750,000 - (29,750,000 =
Other employees
HtES
In aggregate 20.01.2017 5,225,000 - (5,225,000) =
&5
In aggregate 15.08.2019 22,000,000® (20,000,000 (2,000,000) -
&t
In aggregate 06.09.2019 40,000,0008 (40,000,000 = =
&5
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Other grantees
HEZEA
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Notes:

The share options are exercisable from 20 January 2019 to 19 January 2021.

B 5
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The share options comprised the following: () 20,000,000 share options 2 BRESEUTERE (IITEHAZZ
with exercisable period from 5 September 2019 to 4 September 2021; and —NFhAhERAHEZIZE—FAANBZ
(i) 2,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 15 August 2020 to 14 20,000,000 FERG#E 5 R(NTTEHRABZZEZ
August 2022. TENB+RAHEZE-_"_FN\B+MHEAH
2.2,000,0001% BE PG #E o
The share options comprised of the following: () 20,000,000 share options B ERESEUTEER.()TEHEHAZZC
with exercisable period from 5 September 2020 to 4 September 2022; and (ii) SEFNBAERE_SE__FHLANBZ
20,000,000 share options with exercisable period from 5 September 2021 to 4 20,000,00010 B RG#E ; R(NTTHEHAZE
September 2023. T—FhAhBRAHEZE_=—FAANAZ
20,000,00019 B A& #EE o
The exercise prices of the share options are as follows: 4) BREZITEENT:
Date of Grant Exercise Price per Share (HK$)
g = SRERMTEE (B
20.01.2017 0.80
15.08.2019 0.478
06.09.2019 0.49
No share options under 2010 Share Option Scheme were granted or cancelled G BE_ZEZ-_—F+-_B=+—HILEFE"
during the year ended 31 December 2021. BEEBRERE S —ZFERKESTEE
FH o
The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date on 6) BONRZREZEREETEESHANMEFR

which the options were exercised was HK$1.08.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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(B) The 2021 Share Option Scheme
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B) ZEZ—FHEKESS

Number of Share Options

MRS
Balance as at Granted during Exercised during Balance as at
Date of Grant 1.1.2021 the year the year 31.12.2021
RIEZ—F RZIEZ—%
—HB—H +ZB=+—H
EH A e RERRH RERTTE g0
Directors
BEx
Mr. LI Ning 18.01.2021 - 7,000,000 - 7,000,000
FREE
Mr. LI Chunyang 18.01.2021 - 40,000,000 - 40,000,000
TEBEE
Mr. LI Gilin 18.01.2021 - 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
TR L
Mr. MA Wing Man 18.01.2021 - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Bk E
Mr. Victor HERRERO 18.01.2021 - 60,000,000 - 60,000,000
Victor HERRERO4E 4
Mr. PAK Wai Keung, Martin 18.01.2021 - 1,800,000™ - 1,800,000
BERiLE
Mr. WANG Yan 18.01.2021 - 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
IR E
Mr. LI Qing 18.01.2021 - 1,800,000™ - 1,800,000
ik
- 138,400,000 - 138,400,000
Other employees
HitES
In aggregate 18.01.2021 - 147,200,000@ (4,910,000) 142,290,000
A5
- 147,200,000 (4,910,000) 142,290,000
Other grantees
HeEEA
In aggregate 18.01.2021 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Bt
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
- 288,600,000 (4,910,000)© 283,690,000
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Notes:

(1) The share options shall be exercised with the vesting schedule in trenches of one-
third each on 18 January 2022, 18 January 2023 and 18 January 2024 within a
period of 5 years after vested according to the respective vesting schedule.

(2)  The share options comprised the following: (i) 5,800,000 share options
with exercisable period from 18 January 2021 to 17 January 2023; and (ii)
141,400,000 share options shall be exercised with the vesting schedule in trenches
of one-third each on 18 January 2022, 18 January 2023 and 18 January 2024
within a period of 5 years after vested according to the respective vesting schedule.
The number of share options under (i) and (i) of this notes was 890,000 and
141,400,000 respectively as at 31 December 2021.

(3)  The exercise price of the share options is HK$0.67 per Share.

(4) No share options under 2021 Share Option Scheme were cancelled or lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

(6)  On 18 January 2021, the Company granted share options entitling subscription of a
total of 288,600,000 Shares pursuant to the 2021 Share Option Scheme and the
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the aforesaid share
options were granted was HK$0.64.

(6)  The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date on
which the options were exercised was HK$1.03.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

B 5

BEBRERSIN_-_ZE__F—A+/\B-
TR ZF-ATN\BRZZEZNE—AR
TNBERBE=2Z— LA EREZE
B R B RO F NI -

BREEEUTEE (THEHEAZS
F—A+NBEZE-_=%—8B++tH>
5,800,00017 BEBR # ; Kz(i))141,400,00017 \ﬁﬁﬂy
HEASBR_Z2E-__F#—F+N8-
—=FE—Bt+tN\HEZZE-_@MF— E‘H\
HERBE=Z92— T ERESFBR
BB ENOIERNITH Al &INBZ
EREHENR _Z-_—F+_-_A= + =
73 B 2890,00019 B2 141,400,00014 ©

BRENTEERSR06TET

BE_E_—F+-_RA=+—HLFE>
MEERERE T - —FBRESEF
fHE R

RZEZ—F—B+NHBH > A2BERIE
TECFEREFIELOUIDESH
288,600,0008% i% {7 BY B& AR # - Ek%m?
ERE CAEREABZANKTES
0.6478 7T °

RPN EZBREETEE BAIRIMNEF
B THER1.038 T



(I) Share Option Scheme of a Subsidiary

Bossini International Holdings Limited (“Bossini”, which together with its
subsidiaries, the “Bossini Group”), a subsidiary of the Company and shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
592) operates a share option scheme (the “Bossini Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the operations of the Bossini Group and to
enable the Bossini Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Bossini Group.

Eligible participants of the Bossini Share Option Scheme include executive
directors, non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Bossini Group.
The Bossini Share Option Scheme became effective on 12 November
2013 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of ordinary shares in the shares capital of Bossini
(the “Bossini Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Bossini Share Option Scheme and any
other future share option schemes of the Bossini (excluding share options
forfeited in accordance with the terms of the Bossini Share Option Scheme
or any other future share option schemes of Bossini) shall not exceed

10% of the total number of shares in issue on 12 November 2013, the
date of the annual general meeting that Bossini sought the approval of the
shareholders of the Bossini for the adoption of the Bossini Share Option
Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Bossini Share Option
Scheme was 162,077,939, which represented 10% of the Bossini's
shares in issue at 12 November 2013. As at the date of this report,

the total number of Bossini Shares available for issue under the Bossini
Share Option Scheme is 60,758,000, representing 2.46% of the existing
number of issued Bossini Shares. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each participant in Bossini Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares
of Bossini in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to its shareholders’ approval in a general meeting with
such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
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(i

M AT Z BT

AT ZHB AR EMEREERE
RAE (MEHRE  ERENB AT A
MEMREEER) > EROIPEATER
o BBASE592) B —IERE NG
B (TEMEBRRETE)) EERE
REEHEMEEEEFEEFHE
MzEBRBEALTTRBIEMES
EEARGBEERES  LRMNEE
MEEREBEZANER

EfEBRESIZSERSEAL
BEENMEER CATES JFRT
Ex (BREBIFITES) kEME
BB ES EMEBRESEN
—E-ZF+—-ATZHER K
S REs 8 U HEMS NN
sl SRIEZAESARR+F-

REEMERRES S REMEEW
AR Z BB R 5T 8 TR H Z P
ERRERITERA FTHITZEMEE
RahEREk TEMERN)) RS
#gEH FEEREEMERBRESS
BY 68 T B 1 170 75 2R EL fth i AR 4 5t 81 A%
MRERWZERE)  FEBBER_-F
—Z=F+—B+H (BHMESKE
B EE AR R HE /SR E B RE BB IR R 5T 8
ZREBFAREGHE) 2EEHTRM
BB 210%  RIFERBEEBRES 8]
BITZRMHBE #162,077,9398 » (5 &
WER —_E—=F+—A+-[AB%*
TR Z10% - RAKS B REE
PEEB RSt EI] TR ITZEMBER
17 & $£60,758,0008 > HHERRB S
TEMBERN BB RI2.46%  FIEM[12
BRHERN REBRED REREE
BRESIZS2EATHTZROER
SHE UEMENEMRREDET
RNDBHEZ1PRR - E—TEHBE
ZERZEDERE ARFERRR
RERESHE HREI EEFZHA
AL REBEALARERERR-
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of Bossini, or to any of their respective associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of

the share options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of Bossini, or to any
of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of Bossini in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Bossini's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders” approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted

is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date
of grant of the share options. Share options granted during the term of the
Bossini Share Option Scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to
the end of the 10-year period of the Bossini Share Option Scheme shall
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within
the exercise period for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the
expiry of the Bossini Share Option Scheme.

The following table discloses movements in the share options outstanding
under the Bossini Share Option Scheme during the year:

MENEES RETHRAEREE
BRRIAKESEZHMBALRHZE
R 1 Eﬁi%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%#ﬂﬁ%% e
ERRABRERREAZBIIIERT
BEF) #tf - L5 FERI21E B #i
MEMEITERRIBIUIFNTES
URESEZHMBALRHZEME
e (HEREREEMRRESET
BR170.1% 48 E (%% 1 B B EREE R
U ESHH) #8185,000,000% 7T > 8
AERRPCRREAGSHAME

Bz BIRER 1 H B EAEST28H
NEARAFEAZNEHIEATRBEANR
BRrREM - BERUBREZI1TEH
HEEgEs " ITBEETHREARBE®R
MG RN BRER T BERES +ER
JEwm e I EREERERES SRR T
EREEEWNERERES S+ FHM
[EmAlERITEZERE  BEEH
EEEKRESS S W DA RERER
HHEANEEEREERETERABR
WIE T LUIT(E

TERRBFNEMEBRESEIET
MARTTEREREZ 25 !

Number of Share Options

B EHE
Granted or
adjusted
Balance as at during Balance as at
Date of Grant 1.1.2021 the year 31.12.2021
RIEI—%F RERN RIZEZ—%F
—HB—H EIRHE +ZBA=+—H
tgu =t &R HE Eer
Director of the Company
EATES
Mr. Victor HERRERO 05.01.2021 - 5,045,45008@ 5,045,450
Victor HERRERO%t &=
- 5,045,450 5,045,450
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Number of Share Options

BRREHE
Granted or
adjusted Lapsed
Balance as at during during  Balance as at
Date of Grant 1.1.2021 the year the year 31.12.2021
R-T”—
R —F RERA +=H
—B—H EiEHE RERA =+—H
EH:II E :HH nl:l ? %Eg 9&5‘5& :‘il:l BR
Directors and employees of Bossini®
EMEEERES®
In aggregate 05.01.2021 - 85,772,651 19@ (13,925,442) 71,847,209
&5t
In aggregate 14.05.2021 - 4,000,000046 (2,000,000) 2,000,000
&5t
In aggregate 23.08.2021 - 10,000,000 = 10,000,000
&5t
In aggregate 16.11.2021 - 20,000,0000196) - 20,000,000
&5t
- 119,772,651 (15,925,442) 103,847,209
- 124,818,101 (15,925,442) 108,892,659
Notes: MsE -
(1a)  The share options are exercisable in trenches of one-third each during the following (la) FERESBNTIHE (122 Z2F—

periods respectively: (i) from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026; (i) from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026; and (iii) from 1 January 2024 to 31

December 2026.

(1b)  The share options are exercisable in trenches of one-third each during the following
periods respectively: (i) from 8 August 2022 to 7 August 2027; (i) from 8 August

2023 to 7 August 2027; and (iii) from 8 August 2024 to 7 August 2027.

(1)

B—BEZZZRFE+Z ﬁ +—8 ;i)
TEI-F—B—HEZIZZRETIAH
_+ H; )S’z(m)_v_mﬁ A—H=EZ
EIARF+ZA=F+T—HAFTE=SZ

—o0

BRED R THEE )22 =" N\A
NBEZZEZEHFNBLH (T2 Z=
FNBNBEZE-_tENBtH; Kl
“ETHFENBNRBE_E_tHENALT
HAFTHE=92—"
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The share options are exercisable in trenches of one-third each during the following (1)
periods respectively: (i) from 16 November 2022 to 15 November 2027; (i) from

16 November 2023 to 15 November 2027; and (iii) from 16 November 2024 to

15 November 2027.

On 5 January 2021, Bossini granted share options entitling subscription of a total 2)
of 90,000,000 shares options pursuant to the Bossini’s share option scheme

and the closing price of the Bossini Shares immediately before the date on which

the aforesaid share options were granted was HK$0.439. Upon the completion

of Bossini’s rights issue in April 2021, the number of Bossini Shares to be issued

upon full exercise of the outstanding share options of Bossini were adjusted from
90,000,000 to 90,818,101 and the exercise price per Bossini Share was adjusted

from HK$0.460 to HK$0.456. Please refer to the announcement published by

Bossini on 12 April 2021 for more details.

On 14 May 2021, Bossini granted share options entitling subscription of a total )
of 4,000,000 shares options pursuant to the Bossini's share option scheme and

the closing price of the Bossini Shares immediately before the date on which the

aforesaid share options were granted was HK$0.485.

On 23 August 2021, Bossini granted share options entitling subscription of a total (4)
of 10,000,000 shares options pursuant to the Bossini’s share option scheme and

the closing price of the Bossini Shares immediately before the date on which the

aforesaid share options were granted was $0.610.

On 16 November 2021, Bossini granted share options entitling subscription of a )
total of 20,000,000 shares options pursuant to the Bossini’s share option scheme

and the closing price of the Bossini Shares immediately before the date on which

the aforesaid share options were granted was $1.110.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

FERRRED BN T5IEAR - ():7::¢+—
B+AABEZ-E-_t+t&+—H+5HH;
B2 =F+—Bt+ARHEZZEC ‘tﬂf
+—A+&HH; Rl ZE-_NE+—AB
+AREBE_E-_tH&+—B+EHEHIFT
F=nz—-

A BT —F—RER EMERBEEM
BERE AR RE 5T 238 B T 58 B8 & $£90,000,000
HQHQ@B’\J%H%E’E@EMEHXT NEEZE
ﬁt@i%ﬂﬂ%aﬁﬁzma’]u&?ﬁ E540.439

cHEMERRKRN _ZE-_—FNAR
ﬁkfﬁ REBEHITERRITEERERRKRRE
B BETEMBERM S E H90,000,000
' 90,818,101 ESREMBERMDHITT
@fﬁiEEO 460/%TEDH§5Z 0456/%7'5 %%77:#
BE2EEMEN _E-_—FWBE+H
B AE e

RIBE-_—FRA+MHA EMEREE

T BE B8 IR RE 5t 21 % 1 ©J SR B8 & 2£4,000,000
R BB BERMBERM N EIFER
H B BB B A Z AT UK T 1B 40.48578

JG ©

A ZTE_-FNBZ+=H EMER
BEMERBREAEREIIBESH
10,000,0008% Bz 17 BY 5 i 1 - T 2 0 BE e 1)

PREEEABREREBRANERTES
0.610%8 7T °
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(6) The exercise prices of the share options are as follows:

Date of Grant

Report of the Directors EE F iR &

6) BREZITEEWOT:

Exercise Price per Share (HK$)

15 1 B SRR HTERE B
05.01.2021 0.456
14.05.2021 0.510
23.08.2021 0.620
16.11.2021 1.060

(7)  No Share options under Bossini’s share option scheme were exercised or cancelled
during year ended 31 December 2021.

(8)  For avoidance of doubt and double counting, the share options held by Mr. Victor
Herrero disclosed under “Director of the Company” will be excluded from those
under “Directors and employees of Bossini”,

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

7 BE_ET-_—HF+-A=+—HLEEE"
BMEERERBEEMERRES B ETE

B ARERBEREEFAHE TARREEIIE
TFEri% 88 > Victor Herrerosc 4358 2 BB 1€
BRSTATEMEEESE REEITE

%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ#$ﬁj&ﬁﬁ
Btk E 2 R0 R AR RA R A7 R (B 1
BZHEERRE

N _E-_—F+"HB=-1+—H xR
BEERTHEHENR AR REREEE (8
HZRBHELRIERAIEXVE) 2% B
R RE#EET  BEBEREESKES
BB EXVEB 7 R 5580 A & & A B K B
RFiZERRXE (BEARBDESRTH
BMEBRBRESRPERABEBEEXERS
REFEHEBZRERAXA) WX BRER
BN AR IREE F RIS & 5535218 F
EETMzERRRE > HWIRIRGEM L™
A5 46E5 67IEFTMBRAEE X5 NT
BEBNEANDRBRIZEGRKE
mr
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Long positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debenture

of the Company

Number of Shares/

ﬁézli’&ﬂﬂﬁﬁ 8RR 1D R ERERR 2 4F

underlying Shares held
A, ERRG K E .
Approximate
Nature of interests percentage of
EEME shareholdings
Number of as at
Personal Corporate share 31 December
Directors Capacity interest interest options held Total interests 2021
RZBZ—-%
+ZR
=+—H
FrisRE e FrfsRg i
55 5% EPN: 32 GIE: #H R AR R BaEatt
(@) The Company
ERHE
Long positions in the ordinary shares (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
RERAGER (RH) ARRGREERZFE
Mr. LI Ning Beneficial owner 879,508,000 - 7,000,000
FELRYE EmEEA
Interest of controlled corporation - 5,812,443,157 - 6,698,951,1511" 69.63%
B AR
Mr. LI Chunyang Beneficial owner 13,067,669 = 40,000,000 53,067,669 0.55%
FEHRE EREEA
Mr. LI Qilin Beneficiary of trusts 3,680,022,769% - -
TEB T BEEREA
Beneficial owner - - 20,000,000 3,700,022,769 38.46%
EREEA
Mr. Victor HERRERO Beneficial owner 3,168,000 - 60,000,000® 63,168,000 0.66%
Victor HERREROZE 4 BRBEEA
Mr. MA Wing Man Beneficial owner 1,544,000 - 6,000,000® 7,544,000 0.08%
B iE BEnlERA
Mr. LI Qing Beneficial owner - - 1,800,000@ 1,800,000 0.02%
b BEREEA
Mr. PAK Wai Keung, Martin -~ Beneficial owner - - 1,800,000 1,800,000 0.02%
HEREE BanlEAA
Mr. WANG Yan Beneficial owner = = 1,800,0000 1,800,000 0.02%
LS EREEA
(b) Associated Corporation - Bossini International Holdings Limited (“Bossini”)
W AR - ENERREBRERAR (TEHEE)
Long Positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of Bossini (the “Bossini Shares”)
REMESREGBIETZLEBR (EHEkG)) 2HE
Mr. LI Ning Interest of controlled corporation - 1741977652 = 1,741,977 652" 70.65%
FELEYE SEtEERG
Mr. Victor HERRERO Beneficial owner = = 5,045,450® 5,045,450 0.20%
Victor HERREROZE 2 EnEAA

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT



Notes:

2.

Mr. Li Ning is interested in 6,698,951,151 Shares, among which 21,508,000
Shares, the share options which are exercisable into 7,000,000 Shares and

the convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$278,850,000 which are
convertible into 858,000,000 Shares are held as personal interest, and is deemed
to be interested in the long positions of 5,812,443,151 Shares in aggregate
through his interests in Lead Ahead Limited (“Lead Ahead”), Victory Mind Assets
Limited (“Victory Mind Assets”) and Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited
(“Dragon City"), respectively as follows:

the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares is held by Lead Ahead, which is
owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also
a director of Lead Ahead;

the long position of 1,680,022,769 Shares is held by Victory Mind Assets
which is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader Holdings Limited (*Ace Leader”)
and 38% by Jumbo Top Group Limited (“Jumbo Top”). All shares of Ace
Leader are held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. (“TMF") in its capacity as trustee of
a discretionary trust. Mr. Li Ning is the settlor of the trust and is therefore
deemed to be interested in such 1,680,022,769 Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a
director of each of Victory Mind Assets and Ace Leader; and

the long position of 2,000,000,000 Shares is held by Dragon City in its
capacity as trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned as to 60%
by TMF and as to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of separate discretionary
trust. Mr. Li Ning is the 60% shareholder of Dragon City and a founder of the
unit trust and is therefore deemed to be interested in such 2,000,000,000
Shares. Mr. Li Ning is a director of Dragon City.

See note 1(b) and note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the share capital of the Company” below.
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5k -

=B 146,608,951, 151 RBRMD T EAR
o HA21,508,000KR M5 AT EH
7,000,000 IR ERAESES
278,850,00078 7t B n] #14 #3858,000,000
R MmN AR E ST B AR
B BT Lead Ahead Limited (I Lead
Ahead J) ~ Victory Mind Assets Limited (Victory Mind
Assets 1) KzDragon City Management (PTC) Limited
(TDragon City1) DRI EB R MR A E
BE3H5,812,443 151 RIDTF A Z R

(@  2,132,420,3828% PR 17 4F & HalLead Ahead
A > Milead Ahcad HIE B L4 R
D B BEB 0% RA0%HE T o = E
FE IR AlLead AheadZ E 55

(b) 1,680,022,7690% B&% 1% ¥ & HaVictory Mind
AssetsiF A& > MVictory Mind Assetsy Bl B
Ace Leader Holdings Limited (T Ace Leader J) &
Jumbo Top Group Limited (MJumbo TopJ) #&
B57% %2 38% Mz o Ace Leader® 2B A& 1D
FRTMF (Cayman) Ltd. (TTMF1) UBI1E1E
AZRXABDRBE -FTBEREESRZ
Btz Bl A AR AR Lk
1,680,022, 7698 B 17 AR B R 3 0 R EE
S 4 AVictory Mind AssetszAce Leaderst B
Z2EE R

() 2,000,000,0008% i% 1% 4F & EaDragon City
MEBNEEZzZEASNITA#L
mEEstz BARTMAMEARIB L
BB EENZEAMD B ER0%
A0% R 5 o FE A4 A $F B Dragon City
60% R 2 RE M BAEE AT
A B4R 2 5 52 552,000,000,000
BROTDEEESE FTERKE A
Dragon CityZ &35 o

ETXTEERRAHAMALTRERTR

Kz RERREBITE T ZHEE1(b) RMIEE
1(c)e
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<k The share options were granted on 18 January 2021, pursuant to the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on the same day and are exercisable at
HK$0.670 per Share with the vesting schedule in trenches of one-third each on
18 January 2022, 18 January 2023 and 18 January 2024 within a period of 5
years after vested according to the respective vesting schedule. As at 31 December
2021, the total issued Shares was 9,621,242,726.

4, As at 31 December 2021, the total number of shares of Bossini in issue was
2,465,750,091 and Dragon Leap Developments Limited (‘Dragon Leap”) was
interested in 1,741,977,652 Bossini Shares. Dragon Leap was owned as to
80% by Viva China Consumable Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. As such, Mr. Li Ning was deemed to be interested in the same
1,741,977,652 Bossini Shares by virtue of his interests in the Shares.

[k The share options were granted on 5 January 2021 by Bossini and are exercisable
at HK$0.456 per share of Bossini in trenches of one-third each during the following
periods respectively: (i) from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026; (i) from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026; and (iii) from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2026.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2021, any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to

be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 12 October 2012 (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) entered into between the Company and Victory Mind
Assets and Dragon City as the vendors (the “Vendors"), the acquisition by the
Company of 266,374,000 LN Shares, representing approximately 25.227% of
the then issued share capital of Li Ning Co was completed in December 2012,
for the aggregate consideration of HK$1,358,507,400, which was satisfied by
the issuance to Victory Mind Assets, one of the Vendors, 1,780,022,769 Shares
and to Dragon City, the other Vendor, unlisted initial convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$780,000,000 (the “Initial Convertible Bonds") which
are convertible at an initial conversion price of HK$0.325 per Share, subject

to adjustment provided under the terms and conditions of the Initial Convertible
Bonds. All Initial Convertible Bonds were converted into 2,400,000,000 Shares
on 6 June 2014,

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement and the deed dated 30 August 2013
entered into between the Company and the Vendors (the "Deed”), the Company
issued unlisted earn-out convertible bonds (the “Earn-out Convertible Bonds”) in
the principal amount of HK$340,782,000 to Victory Mind Assets and the Earn-
out Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$439,218,000 to Dragon
City in November 2013 subject to certain undertaking under which a portion of
the Earn-out Convertible Bonds may be returned to the Company in the event that
certain performance targets of LN Group are not met. The Earn-out Convertible
Bonds are convertible into 2,400,000,000 Shares at an initial conversion

price of HK$0.325 per Share. On 10 April 2017, the condition for releasing

the undertaking has been met and the Company has released all the Earn-out
Convertible Bonds held by the Vendors in accordance with the terms of the Deed.

Victory Mind Assets is indirectly held by the corporate trustee of two discretionary
trusts, the beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr.

Li Ning, an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, his
brother, Mr. Li Chun and Mr. Li Qilin, an executive Director. Dragon City is the
trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned by two family trusts, the
beneficiaries of which include the respective family members of Mr. Li Ning, Mr. Li
Chun and Mr. Li Qilin. Mr. Li Qilin is the son of Mr. Li Chun and the nephew of Mr.
Li Ning.
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Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes”
and “Interests and Short Positions of Directors and the Chief Executive in the
Shares and Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporation” of this report, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any holding company, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
entered into any contract of significance or any contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors, the interests and
short positions of the persons (other than the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed above) in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company are set out below:
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
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MR RAERR ZFE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares/underlying shareholdings as at
Capacity Shares held 31 December 2021
RZETZ—%
+=ZA=+—H
FR¥sRgin FRERg
515 AR EE EBABE L
Substantial Shareholders
FTERRE
Mr. LI Chun® Beneficial owner 60,000,000
TS ED Em#EEA
Interest of controlled corporation 5,812,443,157
SEGEE#E R
5,872,443,151 61.04%
Lead Ahead® Beneficial owner 2,132,420,382 22.16%
EREBA
Victory Mind Assets®® Beneficial owner 1,680,022,769 17.46%
BE@#EEA
Ace Leader® Interest of controlled corporation 1,680,022,769 17.46%
RESEE# D
Jumbo Top® Interest of controlled corporation 1,680,022,769 17.46%
SEGEE#E R
Dragon City® Trustee 2,000,000,000 20.79%
ZEEA
TMFE® Trustee 3,680,022,769 38.25%
ZEEA
Other Persons
Hh At
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo® Beneficial owner 293,000,000
g ket BE@#EEA
Interest of spouse 700,000,000
BB m
Interest of controlled corporation 12,963,200
SZEGEE#E R
1,005,963,200 10.46%
Ms. LI Ying® Beneficial owner 700,000,000
ESSiikegund EREBA
Interest of spouse 293,000,000
BB
Interest of controlled corporation 12,963,200
RESEE D
1,005,963,200 10.46%
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Mr. Li Chun has personal interest in 60,000,000 Shares and is deemed to be
interested in the long positions of 5,812,443,151 Shares in aggregate through
his interests in Lead Ahead, Victory Mind Assets and Dragon City, respectively as
follows:

(a) the long position of 2,132,420,382 Shares is held by Lead Ahead, which is
owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by Mr. Li Chun;

(b)  the long position of 1,680,022,769 Shares is held by Victory Mind
Assets which is owned as to 57% by Ace Leader and 38% by Jumbo Top.
All shares of Jumbo Top are held by TMF in its capacity as trustee of a
discretionary trust. Mr. Li Chun is the settlor of the trust and is therefore
deemed to be interested in such 1,680,022,769 Shares. Mr. Li Qilin is a
beneficiary of the trust and is also therefore deemed to be interested in such
1,680,022,769 Shares. Mr. Li Chun is also a director of each of Victory
Mind Assets and Jumbo Top; and

() the long position of 2,000,000,000 Shares is held by Dragon City in its
capacity as trustee of a unit trust, the units of which are owned as to 60% by
TMF and as to 40% by TMF, each as the trustee of a separate discretionary
trust. Mr. Li Qilin is a beneficiary of one of the said separate trusts and is
also therefore deemed to be interested in such 2,000,000,000 Shares. Mr.
Li Chun is taken to be interested in 40% of the shares of Dragon City and
is therefore deemed to be interested in such 2,000,000,000 Shares. Mr. Li
Chun is a director of Dragon City.

Lead Ahead is owned as to 60% by Mr. Li Ning and 40% by his brother, Mr. Li
Chun. Mr. Li Ning is also a director of Lead Ahead.

See note 1(b) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief
executive in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” and note 1(b) above. For avoidance of doubt and double
counting, it should be noted that Ace Leader, Jumbo Top and TMF are deemed to be
interested in the 1,680,022,769 Shares which Victory Mind Assets is interested in.

See note 1(c) under “Interests and short positions of directors and the chief
executive in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” and note 1(c) above. TMF is deemed to be interested in
the 2,000,000,000 Shares which Dragon City is interested in.
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) Mr. Zhao Jianguo has personal interest in 288,000,000 Shares and the share
options which are exercisable into 5,000,000 Share. Ms. Li Ying, the spouse of
Mr. Zhao, has personal interest in the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$227,500,000 which are convertible into 700,000,000 Shares. Double Essence
Limited was interested in 12,963,200 Shares and is owned as to 50% by Mr. Zhao
and 50% by Ms. Li respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, save as disclosed above, so far as was known to
the Directors, no other person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interests or short position in the shares and/or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence and it is the Group’s policy
to compensate each employee fairly and equitably. The Group has a system
for measuring employees’ performance against agreed-upon goals with
specific performance standards. Performance discussion is carried out on an
ongoing basis and a formal evaluation is conducted at least once a year to
review employees’ overall performance, achievements, and areas in need of
improvement. Salary review would be based on individual's performance and
subject to Group’s discretion.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by a listed
company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job responsibilities
S0 as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as is fit and
appropriate. The details of remuneration payable to the Directors and senior
management are set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.

The existing share option scheme enables the Company to grant options as an
incentive to directors and eligible participants. Details of the schemes are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” on pages 39 to 49 of this annual
report.
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ADVANCE TO AN ENTITY

Pursuant to a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) entered into between Viva
China Consumables Limited (formerly known as Viva China Entertainment Holdings
Limited and hereinafter referred to as the “Lender”), a wholly owned subsidiary

of the Company and LionRock Capital GP Limited acting in its capacity as the
general partner (the “General Partner”) of LionRock Capital Partners QiLe L.P.

(the "Borrower”), the Lender has agreed to provide a facility of GBP54,000,000
(the "Facility”) to the Borrower at an interest rate of 4% per annum. The General
Partner is wholly owned by Mr. Tseung Daniel Kar Keung. The single largest limited
partner of the Borrower is LionRock Capital Partners, L.P., the total contribution of
which is not more than 49%. Li Ning Company Limited (Stock Code: 2331) is a
limited partner of LionRock Capital Partners, L.P..

According to the Loan Agreement, the Borrower shall apply all amounts borrowed
under the Facility in or towards (directly or indirectly) financing the acquisition or
subscription of equity interests in any target company (the “Target Company”)
that may be acquired by LionRock Capital Partners QiLe Limited (the “SPV"),

a company wholly owned by the Borrower, from time to time for investment
purposes and any related expenses. The Lender may, at any time in its sole
discretion, request the Borrower to grant security over certain proportion of the
equity interest in the SPV. The parties to the Loan Agreement may agree the
principal amount of a loan together with all outstanding amounts under the Loan
Agreement be converted and/or set off against any subscription amounts payable
by the Lender in order to subscribe for equity in the SPV.

The Borrower may utilise the Facility in no more than 5 drawings within the period
from and including the date of the Loan Agreement to and including 31 December
2020. The initial drawdown date is the date on which the first loan under the
Facility is made or to be made and the final maturity date as determined by the
Lender in its sole discretion and notified to the Borrower is 30 June 2022. The
loan together with all accrued interests shall be repayable in full on the final
maturity date. If the Borrower is unable to provide evidence of application of the
loan within four months from the initial drawdown date, or if the loan is not applied
towards the purpose of the loan by such date (or any later date as determined by
the Lender in its sole discretion and notified to the Borrower), all outstanding loan
and other amounts accrued under the Loan Agreement shall become immediately
due and payable unless otherwise agreed by the Lender. In the event of an
occurrence of an event of default under the Loan Agreement, the Lender may

by notice to the Borrower, declare all or any part of the loan and all outstanding
amounts be immediately due and payable. The Borrower may prepay the principal
amount of a loan under the Facility at any time and from time to time prior to the
final maturity date, in whole or in part, together with accrued and unpaid interests
on the principal amount being prepaid, without penalty or premium.
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On 15 March 2021, the Lender entered into a subscription agreement (the
“‘Agreement”) with the Borrower and the SPV pursuant to which the Lender
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 510 shares of the SPV at a subscription
price of GBP51,000,000 (the “Subscription Price”, and the “Subscription”,
respectively) and acquire a shareholder’s loan (the “Purchase Shareholder’s
Loan”) from the Borrower at a consideration of GBP51,000,000 (the
“Consideration”, and the “Shareholder’s Loan Transaction”, respectively). The
Consideration payable by the Lender to the Borrower shall be deemed to

be satisfied at completion of the Subscription (the “Completion”) by setting

off an amount equal to the Consideration against an outstanding amount of
GBP51,000,000 which has been drawn down and remains outstanding under
the Loan Agreement (the "Outstanding Amount”). Upon consummation of the
Shareholder’s Loan Transaction at Completion, the Outstanding Amount shall

be deemed to have been irrevocably and unconditionally repaid in full by the
Borrower to the Lender in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement and
all unpaid interest which has been accrued pursuant to the Loan Agreement shall
be deemed irrevocably and unconditionally waived by the Lender. The Subscription
Price payable by the Lender to the SPV at Completion shall be setting off an
amount equal to the Subscription Price against the Purchase Shareholder's Loan,
and the Purchase Shareholder's Loan owed by the SPV to the Lender (being the
new lender of the Purchase Shareholder’s Loan as from the consummation of the
Shareholder’s Loan Transaction) shall be deemed fully paid and satisfied in full and
the Purchase Shareholder's Loan shall be terminated.

The SPV holds a majority interest in C&J Clark (No.1) Limited (“Clark”) which is
principally engaged in wholesaling and retailing of shoes and trading in the brand
name “Clarks”. Upon Completion, the SPV and its subsidiaries (including Clark) will
become indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

For details of the Loan Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 September 2020. For details of the Agreement, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 14 January 2021, 15 March 2021
and 25 November 2021,

As at 31 December 20271 and at the date of this report, the outstanding amount
of loan principal was HK$563,774,000 (equivalent to GBP53,550,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is set out on
pages 62 to 73 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors EE F iR &

The compliance officer of the Company is Mr. Li Ning whose biographical
details are set out on pages 29 to 30 of this annual report. Mr. Cheung Chi
is the company secretary and the chief financial officer of the Company. He

is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and has over 25 years
of experience in financial management, corporate finance and administrative
management.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition to the discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance in the Business Review of this annual report, an environmental,
social and governance report which explains how the Company complies with the
environmental, social and governance reporting guide in Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules is set out on pages 74 to 98 of this annual report,

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year 2021 and up to the date of this report, according to the GEM
Listing Rules, the following Directors have interests in the following businesses
which are considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than those businesses where the
Directors of the Company were appointed as directors to represent the interests of
the Company and/or the Group:

ANBERFTEAZTERE HBEEFHB
BN AREREIEIE REREAER
BZAEIMEKREEVBEE RASTAES
A REFHFAREIMAETHNE RS
B TRMBEEE PERERTHRERA
H & B 25F 45 B o

RIE-HERELGRS
BRAFREBERPAMSEE RS
B R RN 5 I RIEA A BB TFOEM
EFRBIM B0 B M G REARE
IESIMBERNBSE HEREARERR
AERETAEBE °

EENBEFETZES

R_Z_—FEAKRBEERRESHH K
AREDNEFEZELEREBNESU
RERERD R,/ RNEAEBNF @I BRI
CGEMERA FIIES=HA MIImER A
AEBEFERNERBRGF RS
PR FHIEF D -

Businesses which are considered to compete or likely to compete with the businesses of the Group
WAL EARNEEEFER R P AT EBRRFNERS

Nature of interest of
the Director in the

Name of Director Name of Entity Description of the Entity’s Business Entity
EENZERNE
EENH4 BRERE BRENEBEN mitE
Mr. Li Ning Li Ning Company Limited  mainly engaged in brand marketing, research director and substantial shareholder
and development, design, manufacturing, (within the meaning of the SFO)
distribution and retail of professional and
leisure footwear, sport apparels, equipment and
accessories under the LI-NING brand and other
licensed brands
F=EY FEFRAT FERETERELEMERERET EBZAFTERE (EERDB

WEERNEELE BHRE SN REEHRM)
FCfHAOHERE ~ B 38 ~ R 5t G ~ D 8

REE
Mr. Li Qilin Li Ning Company Limited as disclosed above director and substantial shareholder
(within the meaning of the SFO)
FEEB ST E FEFRAF M EXFrikEEE EERTERE (EEREFS

K HR S A% )
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Note:

Mr. Li Chun, an elder brother of Mr. Li Ning, the father of Mr. Li Qilin and a substantial
shareholder (within the meaning of the SFO) of the Company, is deemed to be interested in
the shares and underlying shares of Li Ning Company Limited held by the Company.

As the Board of Directors of the Company is independent of the board of the above-
mentioned entity and none of the above Directors can control the Board of the Company,
the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s
length from the businesses of this entity.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, there was a
sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year under review have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board
Li Ning
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Report
EEELRRS

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company had complied with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules, save
for the disclosure below.

The code provision A.2.1* of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Li Ning holds both the positions of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. Taking into account of Mr. Li's expertise
and insight of the sports field and consumables business, having these two roles
performed by Mr. Li enables more effective and efficient overall business planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies of the Group. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is ensured by the operations

of the Board, which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals and
adequate independent element in the composition of the Board, with over one-
third of them being independent non-executive Directors.

In respect of the code provision A.6.7” of the CG Code, independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors generally should attend the
general meetings of the Company. Due to overseas engagements, an independent
non-executive Director was unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting
held on 18 January 2021 and the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 11 June 2021,

With effect from 1 January 2022, code provision A.2.1 has been re-designated as
C.2.1 and code provision A.6.7 has been redesignated as C.1.6

The application of the relevant principles of the CG Code is stated in the following
sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. The Directors are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's
affairs. The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group's affairs and
activities with a view to develop its business and to enhance shareholders’ value.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the

management. Decisions on important matters are specifically reserved to the
Board while decisions on the Group’s general operations are delegated to the
management. Important matters include those affecting the Group’s strategic
policies, risk management and internal control systems, major investment and
funding decisions and major commitments relating to the Group’s operations.
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The Board currently comprises of three executive Directors (the “Executive
Directors”), two non-executive Directors (the “Non-executive Directors”) and three

independent non-executive Directors (the ‘Independent Non-executive Directors”).

The Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition of
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Li Ning has been the Chairman since 2010 and takes the lead to oversee the
Board functions and the direction of the Group. Mr. Li Ning took the role of Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 22 May 2013 to further align the management
expertise of the Board to complement with the Group’s core strategies to pursue
opportunities along the sports value chain.

Non-Executive Directors

All' Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The current Independent Non-executive Directors are Mr. Li Qing, Mr. Pak Wai
Keung, Martin and Mr. Wang Yan. The Independent Non-executive Directors help
the management to formulate the Group’s development strategies, ensure the
Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance
with required standards, and ensure the Company maintains appropriate system
to protect the interests of the Company and the Shareholders. The Company
received the annual confirmation from the Independent Non-executive Directors
in respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considered all the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Board Composition and Board Processes

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the formulation of strategy,
policies and decision-making by attending the Board meetings in person or

via telephone conference facilities. During regular meetings of the Board, the
Directors discuss and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performance and review the financial results of the Group. Additional
Board meetings may be convened for considering and approving other significant
matters. Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval will be
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions.
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The composition of the Board together with the information in relation to

the number of meetings of the Board and each of its committees, namely,
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination

Committee”) and the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”), and the
general meetings of the Company held during the year 2021 and the attendance

of each Director are set out in the following table:

ESTHEHMERETARR - —F817
ZEFEERHEEZEE AIEREEE (&
ZEEg)) FNEEE (FHFMEET))
RuZEEE (RREEE)) WITEES
(MATEEE))) RRRAEZERZREK
ZERENURSEFHRBRENTXR:

Meetings held in 2021
RIEZ-58728%

Annual  Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration Nomination Executive General General
Board  Committee Committee  Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
BE (Y
EX® ENRZEYT HHNZE8T RLZ8Y WTEEE BHEEAY BRKAE
Number of meetings TERY 6 4 1 1 1 1 1
Executive Directors WTES
Mr. LiNing (Chairman & Chief ~ F B4 (FERITHAEH)

Executive Officer)’ 6/6 1/1 il 7" 1”1 171
Mr, Li Chunyang TEBRLE 6/6 n il 1
Mr. Li Qlin? FHIELLE 6/6 17 17 17
Non-executive Directors ERITESR
Mr, Victor Herrero (appointed with  Victor Herrerofe £ (B Z B - —&

effect from 14 January 2021)  —B -+ RIEEZRE) 6/6 11 1”1
Mr. Ma Wing Man Btk 6/6 474 11 1"
Independent Non-executive BIJEHTEE

Directors
M. Li Qing THEL 6/6 4/4 10 1" 1N
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin HEREE 6/6 474 1/1 10 1 1”1
Mr. Wang Yan FIEEAE 5/6 3/4 01 0n 01 01
Notes: B 53
1. The attendance figure represents actual attendance/the number of meetings a 1. HERBIEESERHEZXRHE EHEL

Director is entitled to attend.

2. Mr. Li Qilin is the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer

and an Executive Director.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional development
programme to ensure that they are aware of their responsibilities under the legal
and regulatory requirements applicable to the Company. During the year, the
Company has provided the materials on directors’ duties, corporate governance
and updates on regulatory development for continuous professional development
of their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions.

The Company has maintained records of training received by the Directors. To
summarise, the Directors received trainings on the following areas to update and
develop their skills and knowledge during the year:

EFZREBEXYRE

AABBBESSHEEMEXERE
DgERRENTBANREARBDZERERSE
ERETFTZEE-RER ZRTRAEFR
HEREETHE CEEOBREWNERE
RzME EERERSFEITRAE Z A H
REBEENFEEEER-

RABGEEESRTIBIN LR RIEM
S EERFEANBESU T EAEIIN
EHRmRERSERAH

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

relevant topics

TEER - ERER

RHMIERAEEE
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Li Ning (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) TERE (FEFTHEL) v
Mr. Li Chunyang FHERE v
Mr. Li Qilin FREBE Y v/
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Mr. Victor Herrero (appointed with effect from 14 January 2021) Victor Herrerose 4 (B 2 ——&F

—B+BEERT) v

Mr. Ma Wing Man Bkt v
Independent Non-executive Directors BiJERITES
Mr. Li Qing ErhksE v
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin RERLE v
Mr. Wang Yan VEIESE v
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”) as the code for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed compliance with the Required Standard during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the same Required
Standard. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee as integral elements of good
corporate governance and to oversee relevant aspects of the Company's affairs.
The authorities and duties of the committees are set out in their respective terms
of reference. More details of these committees are set out in separate sections in
this report.

The terms of reference adopted by the Board for the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the CG Code are published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with written terms
of reference. The current Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Li Ning,
the Chairman and Executive Director. The other members of the Nomination
Committee are Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and Mr. Wang Yan, both are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Under the articles of association of the Company, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by Shareholders every three years. A
Director appointed by the Board is subject to election by shareholders at the
first annual general meeting after his appointment in case of the appointment of
additional Director or at the first general meeting after his appointment in case of
filling of casual vacancy.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include review of the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board and provision of recommendation on
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
senior management, the chairman and the chief executive of the Company to
complement the Company's corporate strategy.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also recommended suitable
candidates to the Board for appointment as non-executive Director after its
assessment with reference to a range of diversity perspectives.

The Company recognises the importance of board diversity which is beneficial

for the enhancement of the Company’s performance. The Board has adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with effect from 12 August
20713, which provides that the nomination and appointment of Board members
should be based on meritocracy, taking into considerations of the diversity of
Board members from different aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy. The Nomination Committee’s role includes monitoring the
implementation of the policy and review the same as appropriate.

The Company also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with
effect from 1 January 2019. The purpose of the Nomination Policy is to set
guidelines for the administration by the Nomination Committee of the nomination,
evaluation and termination of each member of the Board. The Board shall

be composed of members with balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to accomplish the Group’s business development,
strategies, operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of the Board
shall possess, be recognized for and be able to exhibit high and professional
standard. The core criteria include gender, age, capability, experience, skill and
knowledge, integrity and ethics, independency and leadership. In the nomination
process, each new candidates shall be considered upon evaluation against the
criteria. According to the nomination procedure, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for identifying potential new Directors and recommends to the Board
for decision. If appointment is considered by the Board, the appointment shall
be subject to the approval by the Board in accordance with the Company’s
Memorandum and Avrticles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules and the
Nomination Policy. If the candidate is nominated by the Shareholders, the
nomination and appointment shall follow the procedures (if any) set out in the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the GEM Listing Rules and
the Nomination Policy. The Nomination Policy shall also be governed by other
additional and relevant rules under the Company’s Memorandum and Article of
Association and the GEM Listing Rules applicable to the nomination, appointment,
election, re-election, retirement, and termination of Directors.

In January 2021, the Company was pleased to welcome Mr. Victor Herrero to
the Board. The extensive experience of Mr. Herrero in corporate management
and business operations in the consumable industry would boost diversity to the
Board.

FR RLEZEGERNEFTIZRBE R
B L EB IR TEEFZEHL
M- RBREBENEEZEZTIENRT
LEETHAERODESTHEEIFATES
BEBHREA -

TXRBBREFEZSTEZEEN  HA
FMRBEATSRBZRFE - EFTERNE
FEHEZAEHR (EFEEZTIER
RICEZE-—ZENBTZHEERR -
EPHREEFENEBZRBREERUE
ANEABEE BTEBEFERNENRTE
HENZ T (BFEERRIMER S F8 -
XIERBEER R FEER &k
R R AR5 EHD) o M5 5 A& B A BURFR
REZFMBAGEER - RLEZEGZH
EEEERZBERZ B E E R &K
%O

TRBTFERMBEBBR (HEHEE) -
B_Z-NF-—RB-—BEEW-RBHR
ETRRLEECEEEETEMEZE
B RBERRILES - EXGAMAR
Bk CR Rk ARRMEZMEMERN B
HEMSEBZEZFLER RSB
BREEMEBoE - EFGE5NERE
AREHNRTEESEXRELESNA -
PREERN T2 EEE MR Fhe 8t
e RERNHE HEREE BIMER
REFEN -RIERBRET EFFHNES
MERBEAZABRBEL Y UEE - RIER
LREF RLLZECEEYBEERENES
ROEFGEZUMHRE -HEEHKESE
EEEZIMFL  MEEARELATME
BER KM MBS GEM LT AR KRIR S
HREEFGHE-HIREAARRIES
AIRBREERBRAATEBEREKRE
R HHA S GEM E AR B LU IR B BURFr 80 2
B (WA) RBBRITAZEAGESE
SRR MAE U RCGEM E TR T EA R
EFIRA - EZE-ER EE - REMUK
Rz HMERINHRERRRE

RIEZ—F— 8 KNRABRERELDVictor
Herrerofc £ MMAEE G o Herrerot £ H &
mITEZPEEEREREEHNBNEE
KEEE—PREEEFZNZ b

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S ¥

67



68

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &4 iR &

Summary and Measurable Objectives of the Board Diversity
Policy

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition on
behalf of the Board and recommends the appointment of new Directors. In
designing and reviewing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
will consider from a number of aspects. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merits and contributions that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity of the Board
from perspectives, including gender, age, professional background, business
experience, length of service and directorship with other listed companies. The
Nomination Committee considered that the Board possessed skill and expertise
and a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the Company and will review the
composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis to ensure its continued
effectiveness. The Company has also taken and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but not limited

to the Board and senior management levels and improve the composition of the
Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1 August 2005 with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible
for making recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management. The Board has
adopted the operation model, where the Remuneration Committee has duties to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wang Yan (chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Li Qing and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin and one Executive Director, Mr. Li Ning.

The determination of remuneration packages of the Directors takes into
consideration of the factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of

the Directors and by reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by

a listed company in Hong Kong to directors of comparable calibre and job
responsibilities so as to ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as
is fit and appropriate. During the year, the Remuneration Committee (i) reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Directors; (ii) approved the adjustment of the
salary of an executive Director; and (i) recommended to the Board the director's
fee of new non-executive Directors by reference to their academic qualification,
experience and duties and responsibilities with the Group.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board with specific terms of
reference. The committee currently comprises three Executive Directors, Mr. Li
Ning (chairman of the Executive Committee), Mr. Li Chunyang and Mr. Li Qilin. The
primary duties of the Executive Committee are to propose and implement business
strategies and plans for the Group, monitor the operations of companies of the
Group and approve matters relating to their day-to-day operations.

The Executive Committee is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which include the development and review of the Company’s policies

and practices on corporate governance, review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, review
and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors

and review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report of the Company. During the year, the members of the
Executive Committee considered and reviewed the compliance of the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Executive Committee also has duty to design, implement and monitor the
risk management and internal control systems and to provide confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed on 17 March 2000 with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
financial statements, annual reports, half-year reports, quarterly reports and risk
management and internal control systems and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Li
Qing and Mr. Wang Yan and one Non-executive Director, Mr. Ma Wing Man. This
annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the year, the committee members met together to review the quarterly
reports, half-year report and annual report before submission to the Board. The
chief financial officer of the Company was also invited to attend these meetings

in order to give a full account of the financial statements of the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed (i) the changes in accounting standards and their impact
on the Company’s financial reporting and (if) the risk management and internal
audit plan and reports.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Chi has been appointed as the company secretary of the Company
since November 2018. During the year, Mr. Cheung has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts of the
Company.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made
judgments and estimates that are appropriate, and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor about their financial reporting are set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 99 to 109 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total fee paid and payable

to PricewaterhouseCoopers in relation to the audit and non-audit services for

the financial year ended 31 December 2021, amounted to HK$5,575,000

and HK$3,349,000 respectively. The sum for non-audit services included
HK$1,265,000 for the agreed upon procedures performed on the Group’s
interim results and quarterly results, HK$1,857,000 for special purpose non-
audit service performed on the acquisition and other agreed upon procedures and
HK$227,000 for tax services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and the Board has the responsibility to
review and monitor the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, to ensure that the systems in place are adequate and effective.

The Group'’s risk management and internal control systems are, however, designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged KPMG Advisory (Hong Kong)
Limited ("KPMG"), as its risk management and internal control review advisor

for the year ended 31 December 2021, to review the Group's risk management
system.
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The procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage major risks by the Group
are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

° Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business and
operations.

Risk Assessment

° Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria developed by
the management; and

° Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

Risk Response

° Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk assessment; and

° Determines the risk management strategies and internal control procedures
to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risks and ensures that
appropriate internal control procedures are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal control procedures in
case of any significant change of situation; and

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and the Board
regularly.

The Board considered that major risks of the Group were managed within the
acceptable level and the management will continue to monitor the residual risks
and report to the Board on an ongoing basis.

The management and various departments conduct periodic self-assessment

of the effectiveness of the internal control policies and procedures. KPMG was
engaged and assisted the Group to perform a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control systems that covers financial, operational and compliance
controls.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Based on the reviews performed by the management, comments
from the Audit Committee and recommendations for areas of improvement
from external auditor and risk management and internal control review advisor,
the Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2021,
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The Company maintains a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside
information and the disclosure policy of the framework sets out the procedures
and internal controls to ensure inside information remains confidential until such
information is appropriately disclosed and the announcement of such information
is made in a timely manner in compliance with the SFO and the GEM Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and employs
a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to the Shareholders
and the investors. The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with the Shareholders through various means.

Procedures for requisitioning an extraordinary general
meeting and for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company signed and deposited in accordance with Article 64 of
the Company’s articles of association, require an extraordinary general meeting

to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in the
requisition.

Shareholder(s) may propose a candidate for election as a Director at any general
meetings of the Company by a requisition signed by the Shareholder (other than
the person to be proposed) of his intention to propose such person for election
as a Director together with a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected in accordance with Article 113 of the Company’s articles
of association.

The articles of association of the Company set out the procedures for the
Shareholders to convene general meetings, to move a resolution at general
meetings and to propose a person for election as a Director are available for
viewing at the Company's corporate website www.vivachina.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of communication
between Shareholders and the Board. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries to the Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company
whose contact is as follow:

Address of Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong: 2/F, PopOffice, 9 Tong Yin
Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone: 37961111
Fax: 37961100
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The company secretary of the Company shall forward the Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board, where appropriate to answer the Shareholders' questions.

Communication with Shareholders

An extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 18 January 2021
(the "EGM") to consider the ordinary resolution approving the adoption of new
share option scheme of the Company. A notice convening the EGM contained in
the circular dated 23 December 2020 was despatched to the Shareholders. The
chairman of the EGM made himself available to answer the questions from the
Shareholders and explained detailed procedure for conducting a poll. The ordinary
resolution proposed at the EGM was passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.

An annual general meeting of the Company was held on 11 June 2021 (the
2021 AGM"). A notice convening the 2021 AGM contained in the circular dated
22 March 2021 was despatched to the Shareholders together with the Annual
Report 2020. The Chairman of the Board and members of the committees of the
Company (as appropriate) attended the 2021 AGM to answer the questions from
the Shareholders. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company,
attended the 2021 AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence. The Chairman explained detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
All the resolutions proposed at the 2021 AGM, including (i) the adoption of the
audited financial statements and the reports of the Directors and the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020; (ii) the re-election of certain
Directors and the authorisation to the Board to fix the Directors’ remunerations; (iii)
the re-appointment of auditor of the Company and the authorisation to the Board
to fix its remuneration; and (iv) the granting to Directors the general mandates to
issue and repurchase Shares, were passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.

The poll results of the the EGM and 2021 AGM were published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Changes in the Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year 2021.

A notice for the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will

be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and
despatched together with the Annual Report 2021 to the Shareholders as soon as
practicable in accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the
CG Code.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERES

ABOUT THIS REPORT RN AEHRE
Reporting Standard and Scope REEEREE

This annual Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Report (the “Report’) AEERE - HZAES (RE-HERE
was prepared in accordance with the revised requirements of the ESG Reporting BN BRE (RRES) DREEBBRERS

Guide, Appendix 20 (the “ESG Guide”) of the GEM Listing Rules of The Stock FTBER AT (TH QFEJ) GEM_E 73 77 Bl BY &%
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("HKEX"). The Group has complied with all THORIR e RERREIES) (RIE
provisions set out in the ESG Guide. The Report provides an overview of the HEKREARIES) WKEITHRTHRE oA
Group’s ESG management approach as well as sustainability initiatives and EEEETRIE - REAIES] Fﬁ EAED|
performance for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the FTERX ARSREREEAEENR - —
“reporting year’). F—HB—HEZ_ZEZ”"_—F%+°"A= —f— H

(MREFE) E’JIEL*?-E HEREREER
HNAFEERFBERRFENGE

The scope of this Repart covers our sports and apparel operations which ABEEWHERERMOVES IR
represent the most significant impact on the Company’s environmental and social BOREERHAANENRERTEEN
performance’: HERKN

Sports operations ° Li Ning Sports Parks

=i FTEES

o Li Ning Sports Centres
FTEEFHPOL

° All Star Ice Skating Club
B E BRI

Apparel operations o Bossini
B2 EEEE
° LNG
LNG
For a full list of ESG Aspects, respective key performance indicators (“KPIs”) and BRAARERNERIE - HEREAHTE B
their reference within this Report, please refer to the HKEx ESG Guide Content R EWIEE (rﬁﬁfﬁ ERMIERE)) REZ2E
Index on page 95 to 98. BRI EEYIR FE %ﬁ%%i%ﬁﬂﬁﬂéﬁx

FRIRIR -t B R EBRIESINB RS-

1 The reporting scope was updated this year to reflect a balanced picture of the ! AEECENMRSTHE URBMAERE
Group’s business operations. HESHNTEBER
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Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment

We regularly engage our stakeholders to gain valuable feedback and address their
concerns over our ESG performance and strategies. This process enables us to
make informed decisions and better identify associated risks and opportunities.

In preparation for this Report, the Group appointed an independent consultant to
conduct a comprehensive stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment to
determine the most material ESG topics for disclosure by following the three-step
process:

EmASREEZMFG

KA CHARZABE LWEBSESENR
BUYMAEREMANRE HEREA
RSB TRE - EE—BE K
179 BE %0 i 2 KD 1B R TE 0 5 47 M 3 B A RE R
S N ARS AT  AEEBE
EA—LBUBBETEZENEZAZSHE
REZWFE RMEECREENIRIE %i
ghEAZE LERBRUTZELRE
WE .

Stage 1: Identification Stage 2: Prioritisation Stage 3: Validation
F—PREL © HA FIIREL - BEERRF SB=PEEL : Basg

e Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry e Combined and analysed the results of e The Group’s ESG Working Group
peers to identify common disclosure the peer benchmarking exercise and convened a meeting with the
practices. stakeholder onling survey to develop a independent consultant to confirm
BREERE - HEREAN prioritised list of ESG issues of varying a finalised list of material KPls for
WEIER LA HERIREE materiality levels for confirmation. disclosure.
CIE BEMoirE=EETEHN FAERRE - HEAERTIE

» BERREDANELRAE BE BB TR G A EE

e Conducted an online survey with EREHFMGET—R5IN EABREMIEENRZS
stakeholders to rank the importance RIEN TS R EAEE S B DEIREZ R
of different ESG issues. o
BREm NETHELERE UL
ERE-HEKRERZEBECZE
EHETHRF

Suggestions and Feedback ERKREE

We welcome feedback on our ESG performance and disclosures. Please share
your views by email (info@vivachina.hk) or by phone (+852 3796 1111).

FMEE BETERMANERE -HEREA
KRIBMIWBIRH KB A BTITHNERSE
B Finfo@vivachina.hkZ¢ 2 & +852 3796 11171 ©
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE
Board Statement

The Board holds the overall accountability for the Group's ESG strategies

and performance. Daily management of the Group has been delegated to the
management team. On an operational level, a designated ESG Working Group,
comprising representatives from different business department, has been set
up. This Working Group plans and coordinates the day-to-day execution of the
Group’s ESG strategies and will report back on the progress of the associated
targets, strategies, and initiatives.

The Board provides oversight of the Group’s risk management system, including
ESG, in particular climate-related, risks. While the Audit Committee is responsible
for overseeing the overall risk management processes, the ESG Working Group
specifically identifies and assesses sustainability-related risks. Supported by
professional consultants, the Working Group consolidates the findings and advises
the Board on risks of strategic and financial significance.

For more details on our corporate governance structure, roles and responsibilities,
please refer to our Corporate Governance Report on pages 62 to 73 of this
Annual Report.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

Our commitment to the sustainable management of our environmental impacts is
demonstrated by our Environmental Policy which applies to all operational units
supplemented with associated guidelines and principles. To systematically manage
our environmental footprint, we focus our efforts on energy efficiency, responsible
resource management and internal awareness building.

Financing projects that deliver environmental bengfits is one of our approaches
towards a more sustainable future. In December 2021, through the Green
Deposits established by Bank of Communications, we deposited HK$8 million
to finance qualified green projects including but not limited to energy efficiency,
pollution prevention and control, sustainable water management and waste
management, clean transportation, efficient buildings and sustainable land use.

During the reporting year, we complied with all applicable legal and regulatory
requirement? regarding environmental protection and there were no non-
compliance cases relating to air and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions,
discharges into water and land, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes.

2 Including but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), the Waste
Disposal Ordinance (Cap.354), the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), and the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC.
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Emissions Reduction and Energy Efficiency

Echoing the national government’s call for decarbonisation, we have set long-term
carbon reduction and energy targets applicable for our respective operations. To
ensure we are on track to achieve these ambitious targets, we continue to seize
energy-saving opportunities, introduce renewable energy and undergo hardware
upgrades across our sports and apparel operations. At our office buildings, we
replace obsolete electrical appliances with products with Grade 1 Energy Labels
or other energy-efficient alternatives. Introducing smart metres also works by
continuous adjustment of chiller settings based on data collected by environmental
sensors and equipment conditions. To minimise emissions arising from business
travel, video conference systems were introduced to facilitate effective virtual
communication.

Leveraging our extensive networks across the country, we strive to adopt
environmentally responsible place-keeping. Aside from installing solar photovoltaic
panels and solar hot water systems, we also make electric vehicle (“EV")
chargers more accessible across our sports facilities in support of nationwide

EV development. Making use of smart technology and data analysis, our chiller
system adjusts indoor air temperature to optimise energy performance and
enhance energy savings. Additionally, our sports destinations and retail shops
have switched to using LED lights which are more energy-efficient than traditional
incandescent bulbs. Specific to Bossini, all our stores in Hong Kong and Macau
participated in Earth Hour 2021 by switching off unnecessary lighting for an hour
and pledging to greater energy efficiency throughout our operations.

Reduce carbon intensity by

0]
15%*

per square metre by 2030
BB =SESTIORREERD

15%*

Reduce carbon intensity by

10%*

per FTE by 2030

Sports Operations®

EIE N

Apparel Operations®
AREE % 75° = —

10%*

e This applies only to our Li Ning Sports Parks, Li Ning Sports Centres and All Star Ice
Skating Club.

4 Compared to the 2027 baseline.

2 This applies only to Bossini and LNG.
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Reduce electricity use intensity by

0]
15%*
per square metre by 2030
A= FSFHRAERERD

15%*

Reduce electricity use intensity by

10%*
per FTE by 2030
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10%*
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Responsible Resource Management

Operating our sports facilities can be water intensive. To this end, we have
adopted a multipronged approach to efficiently manage our water resources. For
example, we introduced a circulation system where dirt particles are filtered to
reduce the frequency of pool water replacement. Furthermore, designated sports
destinations have installed a rainwater and wastewater recovery and recycling
system to capture water around the complex. This creates grey water for non-
potable uses such as toilet flushing, landscape irrigation, and washing and
cleaning purposes. We also conducted regular leakage tests on water pipes and
installed water-saving devices such as sensor taps and flow restrictors to enhance
water efficiency across our office premises.

Sports Operations®

EE N

As part of our environmental stewardship, we strive to promote waste reduction
and recycling at our sports destinations, retail stores, office premises and
warehouses. For instance, employees are encouraged to reuse office supplies and
festive decorations where possible and feasible. Recycling bins with clear signage
are placed and our waste recycling items cover paper, cardboard boxes, plastics,
metals, non-confidential documents, electrical appliances and toners cartridges

in partnership with licensed contractors and green organisations. Moving forward,
we target to further enhance our recycling capacity to minimise the amount of
landfilled waste generated from our operations. Recognising the significant amount
of paper we used during our daily operations, we encourage reusing paper for
printing and set the default mode of all network printers to double-sided printing.
We have also digitalised our internal communications, circulating memorandums
and reports in e-format.

e This applies only to our Li Ning Sports Parks, Li Ning Sports Centres and All Star Ice
Skating Club.

& Compared to the 2027 baseline.
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Case Study

The Group takes responsible resource management into account when it
comes to product innovation in our apparel operation. At Bossini, we launched
new eco-friendly jackets and jeans using REPREVE — recycled fibres made
from plastic bottles and other discarded materials. Compared to traditional
fibres, REPREVE emits fewer GHGs and conserves more water and energy
along the manufacturing process.

EHOIHRE

FEBETRESEEMANE  RE
LIERAER - HFIEERBEHE LR
BRERRRRFFE-—EABRE/ERE
fth BE 22 A7 1 34 X B9 PJ (0] W i AEREPREVE ©
HREFA M4 > REPREVETE £ EB 25

BEREREE ERKERE-

Environmental Awareness

Internally, we continue to drive staff behavioural change and guide them on the
sustainable use of resources in their day-to-day operations. Apart of sharing
useful green office tips through internal notices and our Information Wall, we
organised awareness building campaigns and environmental training on a regular
basis, covering topics such as waste reduction, energy conservation and carbon
reduction.

Climate Change

We recognise that climate change poses significant financial and non-financial
risks to our business. We are firmly committed to managing climate-related
impacts across our operations and to developing mitigation, adaptation and
resilience strategies to address those impacts in line with the national direction,

In addition to the approach and initiatives disclosed in the above section, we
ensure that relevant information and necessary resources are available for building
adaptive capacity for monitoring climate impacts on our diverse operations and
managing potential climate transition risks. The Group also maintains ongoing
communications with our stakeholders regarding climate impacts and works to
support business partners to decarbonise.

QOur operating networks are not immune to climate-induced extreme weather
events like typhoons and rainstorms. These impact our business whether through
business interruption, shop closures, damaged or lost products from flooding or by
even putting the safety of our staff and customers at risk. Through our clear work
arrangement policies and constant communication with our people, we are better
prepared than ever to respond to these emergency situations.
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FZPEABTEESETITHNE  5|E
ETHAHORZ2EBREPARENRE
ReFUARBETREMBOEZBHRA
BRMIN RMAEHMEBRTHRIERLTH
REBFREBN RERE BHERAKRSEE

& °

SRS
BRI ESTEHBEMNEBELEKX
MBERIEVBERB RMPUBERNNEERK
PRBEESEBEFNREHEBEE I
REBEBERFAGEEE - BREKRTYE IR

B BRHZETE-

Bk L EIFT K BB RY 75 # B B Ob > I AIFE R
HEAGEERVEERAABNEIBREAE
7 BARERRFAIRAEBNEE T8
BEEREBSERAKR AERTHEKZMH
R \FEBBREFE UXFEHE
BB o

RANEEPEEEZIIZRESI R
RER QIR R & - HHFIES
MR EEIEE T R 5 HRIR ok
EREMBRAEZR AEELKAME
IhERZZ2 -FARMBENITELH
HWRKREETHNFEBE  RALLUEE
AR RE Bt EFHENZERERE R

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S ¥

79



80

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IR1E + 11 B R E QRS

Environmental Performance Data IRIERIEIE

For Sports operations BEEH

Emissions HEX 4

Carbon emissions in total and intensity 2021 2020 2019
BREMLAEREE ZEZ—HE CZZZZEE C"EZ-hEE
Scope 1 emissions® Tonnes 703.2 876.8 658.5
SHENHEHE 0B

Scope 2 emissions’ Tonnes 12,763.8° 4,800.9 3267.5
SHEHHWE 0B

Total emissions Tonnes 13,467.0 5,677.7 3926.0
mHEm 2 0B

Total emission intensity Tonnes/FTE? 24.5 10.1 12.7
REREE W,/ FTES

Other Emissions

HtBEmK

Wastewater generated Tonnes 157,025 161,159 126,069
PR EE £ YIS K I

NOx emissions Kg 16.2 25.6 12.4
Ea= vk b= 37 T

SOx emissions Kg 0.2 0.2 0.3
e R T

PM emissions Kg 1.4 1.4 0.9
BRI T

9

Scope 1: Direct emissions from sources which are owned or controlled by the
@Group, including the consumption of natural gas and fuels for vehicles.

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity and
steam by the Group as a result of its usual operations. The sources of emissions are
owned or controlled by other companies.

The increase is mainly due to the inclusion of our energy-intensive indoor skating
chain operations, which account for more than 60% of our total Scope 2 emissions,
into the reporting scope this year. We will continue to look for energy-saving
opportunities to mitigate our carbon footprint.

“FTE”" refers to full-time employees.
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Resource Usage B R{EHE

Resource usage in total and intensity 2021 2020 2019

ERERBEREE ZET-FE CZTZTHEE C"T-hEE

Electricity consumption kWh 16,738,830 6,158,419 4,627,119

HEE TR

Natural gas consumption m? 203,739 184,942 300,754

Gasoline consumption Litre 13,078" 9,906 17,467

FURBEFE Ft

Water consumption m? 279,123" 208,094 125,187

HKE I H K

Electricity consumption intensity KWh/FTE 30,434 10,939 14,926

BERE F R FTE

Natural gas consumption intensity m*/FTE 370 328 970

TARHERE M H K/ FIE

(Gasoline consumption intensity Litre/FTE 23 18 56

RHERE Ft,/FTE

Water consumption intensity m*/FTE 507 370 404

AkBE MK/ FIE

19 The natural gas was consumed by the subsidiaries in Beijing, Yangzhou Li Ning 10 XKARHBEERBILEENRB AR -HBIMZE
Sports Park, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park and Linyi Li Ning Sports EREFE -BENMMNEFTEREEERERT
Centre, FEEHTL -

1 The gasoline was consumed by the headquarters in Hong Kong, subsidiaries in it AHHEEREEBAN - ERARZNH
Ningbo and Tianjin, and indoor skating chain operations. BRABIUKRERNBKEHZER -

2 Water was mainly consumed by the subsidiaries in Beijing, Yangzhou Li Ning Sports 2 BAKEFERBIERNKNBRAT VIBMNE
Park, Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Li Ning Sports Park, Linyi Li Ning Sports Centre, Tianjin EREE-FEENMMEZTZRBEE BT
Li Ning Sports Centre, Nantong Li Ning Sports Centre and indoor skating chain EEBEHONO R BEZEEFHDL - FE
operations. ETEBEBHPLORERBHEHEER
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste B E R EZEEY

Hazardous waste (Recycled) 2021 2020 2019
BEEEEY (EKE) ZEZ—FE CZTTEE CE-hEE
Waste carbon battery and alkaline battery Kg 2.02 0 0
BEEHRMESHEREES T

Non-hazardous waste (Usage) 2021 2020 2019
BREEEY (BE) ZEZ-HE CZZZZEE C"EZ-hEE
Paper Tonnes 0.8 2.1 5.8
A g

Plastic Tonnes 0 0.08 1.6
il "

General waste Tonnes 9.6 22.2 2.4
— AR BE ) Ui

Metal Kg 0 24.0 N/A A58 F
T8 T

Glass Kg 0 6.8 N/A 48 B
IG5 T

Non-hazardous waste (Recycled) 2021 2020 2019
BEBREEY (EKE) ZEZ—FE CZTEEE CZE-hEE
Paper Tonnes 2.0 1.7 2.6
R4 i

Plastic Tonnes 0 0.08 1.6
] "R

General waste Tonnes 0 0 0.3
—RREEEY) I

Non-hazardous waste (Usage) 2021 2020 2019
REEEY (BE) ZEZ-FE CZTTEE CE-hEE
Tonnes/FTE Mg,/ FTE 0.02 0.04 0.03
Non-hazardous waste (Recycled) 2021 2020 2019
BEEEY (RKE) ZEZ-FE CZZZEE CE-hEE
Tonnes/FTE W&, FTE 0.03 0.003 0.01

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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For Apparel operations REEET

Emissions HE Y

Carbon emissions in total and intensity 2021
HER AR EREE TEC—FE
Scope 1 emissions Tonnes 0
HENHENE i

Scope 2 emissions Tonnes 1,448.1
HELHIWE i

Total emissions Tonnes 1,448.1
B E iz

Total emission intensity Tonnes/FTE 1.3
REMRE Mg, FTE

Resource Usage EiRfEHA 2

Resource usage in total and intensity 2021
BREREERTE TET—FE
Electricity consumption kWh 2,781,757
AEE TR

Water consumption m? 4,874
BKkE LK

Electricity consumption intensity kWh/FTE 2,477
HERE T ERBEFTE

Water consumption intensity m*/FTE 4.3
RKEE LA FIE

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste B SR EEEEY)

Hazardous waste (Recycled) 2021
BEEEY (EIWE) 2T —HE
Used battery Kg 2.6
REEEEY T=

Non-hazardous waste (Usage) 2021
BEEEY (BE) —EC—FE
Paper Tonnes 5.1
B4R i

Shopping bag Tonnes 13.6
BY= i

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S ¥

83



Environmental, Social and Governance Report IR1E + 11 B R E QRS

Non-hazardous waste (Recycled) 2021
\mEEEY (BEIKE) —E_—HE
Paper Tonnes 0.1
B 7]

Non-hazardous waste (Usage) 2021
BREBEEY (BE) —EC—HE
Kg/FTE F5= FTE 16.7
Non-hazardous waste (Recycled) 2021
mEEEY (BEIKE) —EC—5E
Kg/FTE T FTE 0.1
OUR HUMAN CAPITAL EMPNANER

Our employees are driving force of the business and assets of the Group. In line
with our people-oriented approach, we are committed to providing an inclusive,
safe, engaging and harmonious work environment to enable our employees’
career growth and achieve career contentment.

Employment and Working Conditions

As our continued business success depends on a motivated and stable workforce,
the Group offers our employees competitive remuneration packages and fringe
benefits, including medical care, discretionary bonuses, retirement schemes,
product discounts and a range of leave entitlements such as marriage leave and
birthday leave. To attract and retain every talent, we regularly review our staff
policies, benefits and facilities.

BERAEEEZNHESNIREE KM
—EBEFTUAREN G MAORMEHR
e WEEERMEN TFIRE W&
EEMNEXURKEFITFAMRK-

1 13 B TR 15 14

FA 7S 3% API 2R 75 B 15 48 A Th BUR IR AR AR A 73
ENEE ~EEREEREAERF NN
HMNSEREENE IR SEBER
B BB TEAL s RINEHE  EmIT I R ER
MEBRFSERAEF - HFITE R
STETER B k&M LRSI RiEEE
—fLAT e

As a family-friendly employer, we pay special attention to accommodate
the needs of working families. A well-equipped lactation room is
available in our Hong Kong headquarters for working mothers. In
Beijing, we partnered with Koala Educare to set up a kindergarten in
its office park facilitating working employees to balance their work with
family commitments.

ERRERZREE  HFIEHIBEER
RENFEZ -EEBEE HASERS
HEHREBEEENHEAZT AR &
S E BRI AR &R —FB4)
SE HEEMEMT I FERERE
IS - iy

We value our employees and work to ensure a workplace free from any prejudice
or discrimination. All employees are protected by our Equal Opportunity Policy
which sets out a fair recruitment and promotion process based on individual
merits, experience and qualifications regardless of gender, race, age, religion,
disability or family status. For a more in-depth refresher, we also arranged

for employees to join relevant training organised by the Equal Opportunities
Commission.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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We fully support our employees to maintain a good work-life balance by HME2NZFEEEFREN ITFEEERE
organising a variety of recreational and sports activities outside of work. Some TR BRIEUIINENZBRENRERSE
highlighted events include: o BN EENEREIE !
Operations Activities
BB JEEN
Hong Kong Birthday lunch
58 SHFE
Mid-Autumn Day celebration
R E S ED
Fruit day
KERH
Art workshops
B T1EL
PRC Staff outing
F BT3B
Chinese New Year celebration
mEMRE
Sports day
EEH
Team building event
BXE%EEN
During the reparting year, there were zero non-compliance cases with the relevant ~ MIREFE > R EHBERERE K EH -
laws and regulations'® relating to recruitment and employment practices, anti- ZnltkEMEFNFE S B EE X EH
discrimination, diversity, and other benefits and welfare. A e 3R Y B T
For Sports operations BEER
Human Resource Qverview 2021 2020 2019
ANERER ZZCT-FE CZEZTEE C—T-hEE
Total number of staff ETHAEY Number 8B 633 629 314
Number of staff - by gender BRURNESETIAY Number £{ 8
- Male -5 316 315 167
— Female -4 317 314 147
Number of staff - by age group BERBRZPEIANY Number £{ 8
— < 30 years old — <30%% 267 275 127
— 30-50 years old — 30-507% 332 299 136
—> 50 years old — >505% 34 55 51
Number of staff - by employee type RESEAIPETIAY Number £{ 8
— Full-time - 28 550 563 310
~ Part-time - R 83 66 4
3 Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Minimum B BEEARRERIEG) (BE7E) (RE
Wage Ordinance (Cap.608), the Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.487), the TEMBAI) (F608F) ~ (FRRELRIER) (5B
Labour Law of the PRC, and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC. 487F) ~(PEFZEFE) R(PEASEHEF
E)e
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Staff Turnover 2021 2020 2019
BIR% —_EC-FE C"B”ZEE _—S-hEE
Overall staff turnover rate ETHEREE % 52 41 52
Staff turnover rate - by gender BMRNEREIRAR %

- Male -5 59 42 62

— Female - 45 41 40
Staff turnover rate - by age group BRERENIDEIREE %

— < 30 years old — <308% 75 39 91

—30-50 years old — 30-50%% 36 32 29

—> 50 years old — >508% 27 100 14
For Apparel operations PR 8% 2 55
Human Resource Overview 2021
ANEREER —E-—FE
Total number of staff BTHEANE Number £ B 1,123
Number of staff - by gender BEREISTETAH Number 8¢ B

— Male — 5 485

— Female - 638
Number of staff - by age group BERANIDTETAY Number 8¢ B

— < 30 years old — <308% 495

— 30-50 years old — 30-508% 598

— > 50 years old — >508% 30
Number of staff - by employee type BESHENIADETAY Number 8B

— Full-time — 20 1,067

— Part-time — 56
Staff Turnover 2021
BTIR%K —E—HE
Overall staff turnover rate BTHERKE % 28
Staff turnover rate — by gender BEMENEISE T RAE %

— Male -5 18

— Female - 36
Staff turnover rate — by age group BERMARI DB T REER %

— < 30 years old — <308 34

—30-50 years old — 30-508% 22

— > 50 years old — >508% 57

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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Training and Development

We value the development and personal growth of our employees as this
facilitates the sustainable growth of our business. As such, we fully support

our staff to enhance their professional knowledge by tailoring our training

to accommodate the needs of employees from different fields and at varied
career stages. In 2021, we offered a wide spectrum of training, covering sports
management, customer service, data analysis, financial risk regulations, tax
management and workplace safety. In response to the pandemic outbreak, online
training courses were introduced to support self-learning at home. Additionally, we
provide full-time permanent staff with external training sponsorship. Work flexibility
is also given to employees who pursue further education. Relevant training and
development policies are reviewed at least once a year.

rEEN A R

RPEREENERMEANER ARE
Pl EHMIEF R FFEE R - FHIL > T
ENXFHRMANETRAEFEENG I
HEAEESRSBERBRINESTER
ABEEEHFI N —F > KMREM
T—RIEIHPREREFEE -FFR
B BEBEOM MHEEREE MHEEER
TRREZ2 REHBHERE ZMED
THREFINIRE XFEREZ Ui I
MaEBRAE T RMIEEIER B
ERENEESTHEME T F- BRAEINR
ERBREVESFER —R-

In our apparel operation, Bossini provides a variety of leadership and
professional skills training through the “Bossini Academy”, with an aim
to well-equip our employees for the challenges ahead. A variety of
classroom, digital and on-the-job trainings are provided to our office,
warehouse and shop employees.

ERFANREEST EHEBBEEMW
RRERIIRHARBENREERENS
EFH EEEHRANEERFEB T U
A ZEMARABR - HMAA/MAE A
BREHNESRESHRIREHI
A FEEI R RIE -

We regularly invite external guests to share latest industry trends and their expert
knowledge on topics such as product design as well as sales and marketing skills
to facilitate our employees, especially from the apparel end, to innovate for better
new products.

BPEMBRIBEEDETRTNITER
BoURBEEEMmRKRt RIBEMEH K
LEZREDENEZENH > LUe &R PR
BE (LEERERNES BN FTEEHE
oo
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For Sports operations BEEH
Training Hours 2021 2020 2019
il “E--5F CE-EEE  -I-REE
Percentage of trained employees BURESZIESE AL %
- by gender
~ Male = 61 70 NA R
—~ Female -% 64 68 NA R
Percentage of trained employees RESENAAZINES %
- by employee category Epal
— Functional heads - BHEE 51 35 N/A R
— Management - EHEE 100 61 N/A R 8
— General/technical staff - —f/EBMET 61 72 N/A 38
Average training hours - by gender BIERE D FHETNEEY Hours /J\E§
- Male = 16 18 12
— Female -% 16 19 11
Average training hours BESEHNZDFHIZNEE  Hous /N
- by employee category
— Functional heads - BMEE 6 7 3
— Management - EEE 37 19 13
— General/technical staff - —fR/BMET 16 18 10
For Apparel operations RIS
Training Hours 2021
SR & —E—HE
Percentage of trained employees - by gender BRENESZIIEEE AL %
— Male -3 9
— Female - 32
Percentage of trained employees RESHNEDZINEETSL
- by employee category %
— Functional heads — ZFAEE 1
— Management — BIEE 13
— General/technical staff - —f/EMWET 226
Average training hours - by gender BRI E ST EZ I Hours 7]V
— Male -3 3
— Female - 5
Average training hours - by employee category IR{IEE1ERIE| D FI9ZRFEL Hours /)\BsF
— Functional heads — ZFAEE 1
— Management — BIEE 3
— General/technical staff - —fREMWET 4

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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Occupational Health and Safety

At Viva China, occupational health and safety (“OHS") is always our priority. To
minimise work-related hazards across our operations, we have implemented

different precautionary measures which go beyond regulatory compliance. Our
OHS guidelines are tailored to different business units taking into account their
unique workplace conditions and operating activities. For employees working

under our sports-related operations, we offer them healthcare benefits such as
free physical check-up services and complimentary access to sports facilities.

BEERRZE

FERPE—ERBERERZE (THXER
BRZZ) ARERZE-/RITEEBR
RPEATHERNEERERE  KREST
BEEREIN IR T ZEFEMHE K - 3K
PEEEEENAER T FRTREFH T
FIETHHETAXEFIHFINBERR L
2IESI - KPR ERESHEBES TENE
ERHBERFRERN ANRERBBRRE
K Pl R & 5 A IRV ES B s I

In an effort to build an ergonomic workplace, we provided employees
in our Hong Kong headquarters with office furniture such as ergonomic
chairs and footrests,

BPSREARBNEERHTEAR
TENERRNESR AR B
TEREABIENITIESM-

To reinforce our safety-first culture, we continue to organise talks and workshops
covering OHS topics including mental wellness, first aid, accident prevention and
fire precaution. We also practised onsite housekeeping through regular inspections
of firefighting supplies, work equipment and workplace hygiene to mitigate
environmental-related hazards. For example, retail managers and shop supervisors
will perform spot checks on their retail stores and storerooms to ensure full
execution of our stringent safety requirements. Special attention is given to
workers conducting high-risk work activities. We ensure they are equipped with
necessary personal protective gear such as safety goggles, gloves and helmets,

RIEBEZEFE—HNXERE HFIEER
BBERMSNG HPREOERE =
R EHEORINERERER L2 F
BoHFTETTEMABRE  EMRE
HBE s TERERIIFREFE  LUA
DEIBIEARNEE AW TEKERE
HIERNTEEHAEEETHSE XU
BEEZEEERMABBNZERETE M
LHEITETSHEFEENB L BERES
EEHEOENEALERE NLE2EER
FERBAE-
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Our Response to COVID-19

In 2021, we once again faced up to multiple challenges due to the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic. Despite all the social and economic disruption, the
Group has remained committed to fighting the impact of the virus. Aside from
stepping up the frequency of our cleansing and disinfection procedures, we
have implemented a series of measures at our sports designations, retail
shops, office premises and warehouses to better protect our employees,
including:

° Providing staff with anti-epidemic supplies such as medical masks and
hand sanitisers

° Adopting flexible work arrangements (e.g. work from home) to minimise
physical contact

° Requiring both staff, customers and visitors to measure body
temperature before entering our premises

° Offering two days of compensation leave for employees who had taken
two vaccination doses

° Reminding staff to maintain good personal hygiene by organising mental
health-related workshops

° Requiring staff members who physically work in the office, shops and
warehouses to complete an online health declaration form on a weekly
or bi-weekly basis
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During the reporting year, there were zero non-compliance cases with relevant
laws and regulations™ relating to the provision of a safe work environment and the
protection of employees from occupational hazards.

Labour Standards

As a responsible employer, child and forced labour are strictly prohibited within
the Group's operations and along our supply chain. Our Human Resources
Department is responsible for reviewing all identification documents provided by
the applicants. To ensure full compliance with applicable laws and regulations',
regular audits and internal reviews are performed. Any staff member found to be
in breach of our labour policies will be subject to disciplinary action and may be
liable to legal prosecution.

ik Including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap.
509), and the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases.

it Including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Labour Law of
the PRC, and the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour of the PRC.
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Anti-corruption

Viva China takes a zero-tolerance approach to corruption or malpractice of any
form throughout our operations. We strictly prohibit the acceptance of money or
any other gifts from outside entities such as customers, suppliers, contractors,
authorities or other business partners. All employees are required to follow our
Employee Handbook which details a set of guiding principles for responsible
business conduct. In 2021, we arranged anti-corruption training programmes for
our Board members and employees in Hong Kong headquarters and mainland
subsidiaries to update them on the latest anti-corruption enforcements and proper
practice procedures. In support of our policies on ethical behaviours, the Group’s
whistle-blowing policy and grievance mechanism are in place to allow employees
at all levels to raise concerns regarding any misconduct. To ensure whistle-
blowers have the freedom to report grievances without fear of reprisal, all cases
are treated strict with confidentiality and submitted to designated personnel for
further investigation. During the reporting year, there were zero cases of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations'® relating to corrupt practices.

OUR VALUE CHAIN

Supply Chain Management

Our diverse sports and apparel business connects us with a wide range of
stakeholders along the supply chain. In our endeavour to promote environmentally
and socially responsible practices beyond our own operations, we communicate
our expectations through a group-level Supplier Code of Conduct which is
supplemented with a set of relevant guidelines applicable for individual business
units. This Supplier Code of Conduct clearly outlines our approach to ethical
behaviours, health and safety, labour rights and environmental practices. To
support domestic economies, whenever possible, we prioritise local suppliers and
support green procurement. Full compliance with this Supplier Code of Conduct is
expected.

As part of our monitoring mechanism, we conduct audits, site visits and
assessments on a regular basis to ensure our stringent requirements are fully met.
Areas of concern are identified and addressed through proactive corrective actions
for future improvement. Suppliers who consistently fail to meet the expected
standards may be subject to contract termination. This holistic approach enables
us to develop long-term sustainable partnerships with our suppliers.

il Including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201).
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Our Quality Services

The delivery of quality products and services is always the key to our business
success and longevity. In our apparel operations, ensuring product health and
safety has been highly emphasised throughout the production-to-shelf process.
All apparel must meet applicable product safety and environmental standards,
including but not limited to GB 18401-2010 (National General Safety Technical
Code for Textile Products) and GB317071-2015 on Infant and Children’s Textile
Products, before being sold to customers. To build a trusting and transparent
relationship with our clients, we provide an easily accessible and responsive
customer services hotline and email, and clearly state our product exchange policy
at the back of each sales receipt.

Our customer-centric approach is also reflected in other business operations.

For instance, we employ well-trained security personnel and adopt responsible
crowd control measures to maintain order when organising different sports-related
activities. Specific to the pandemic outbreak, we have implemented measures to
reduce the transmission risk at our sports destinations and retail stores such as
setting up automated temperature screening stations and enacting face covering
policies. Multiple hand sanitiser stations have also been installed to enable our
customers and visitors to disinfect their hands frequently.

Data Privacy

With growing concern over customer privacy, we are mindful of personal data
collected from our customers and ensure it is handled in a secure and safe
manner. Our Employee Handbook outlines the privacy guidelines covering the
use and management of personal data in accordance with relevant regulatory
requirements'”. Only authorised personnel are allowed to access relevant
information on a need-to-know and need-to-use basis.

Intellectual Property Right

Viva China values intellectual property as it drives innovation and growth.

The Group secures its intellectual property by using copyrights, trademarks,
confidential information and other applicable forms of legal protection. We also
work closely with law firms to regularly renew and protect our trademarks.

During the reporting year, we complied with relevant laws and regulations relating
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to the
products and services provided by the Group.

7 Including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) and
the Cyber Security Law of the PRC.
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OUR COMMUNITY

At Viva China, we pride our success in promoting active and healthy lifestyles
across the country to enhance citizens' health and wellbeing. For more than
a decade, we have been leveraging our sports resources and mobilising our
human capital to organise a variety of sports-related activities and community
programmes for the neighbourhoods we serve.
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Total Hours of

Number of Events Community Number of
and Activities Service Beneficiaries
Supported Contributed Served™
FiZ N EER B E RS
REB R MR R = & A8
2021 B —FE 82 6,908 148,562
2020 —ECEFE 77 435.5 20,835
2019 —E-AEFE 170 1,565 104,348
Promoting Sports and Healthy Living HERBEREREE

It is our commitment to promoting a nationwide sportive culture. As such, we
continue to foster wider public participation in different sports and fitness activities.
For example, in Tianjin, we organised a Taekwondo challenge which attracted
more than 1,000 young participants; in Nantong, we arranged swimming classes
for teenagers in Beicheng Elementary School as a precaution against drowning.
Additionally, we continue to offer complimentary access to our well-equipped Li
Ning Sports Parks and Li Ning Sports Centres under the Free Use Scheme. During
the reporting year, a number of training camps, interest classes, sports-themed
carnivals and sports competitions suitable for citizens of different ages were
successfully organised.
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In January 2021, our Tianjin Li Ning Sports Centre partnered with

a local broadcaster to co-organise a badminton tournament for the
general public. What we provided were advanced sports venues and
facilities, professional referees and a live broadcast. Through these
fun-filled but fierce games, we hope to provide a platform for different
badminton enthusiasts to interact and develop a high sense of mutual
respect.

R_B-_—F—F > RANKIFTEE
FhOEEMBERS S HEAEBT
—SEHBARNPERRRE - HMIE
T ARENESHEMNKRE  FEHH
MBSZEE RFPEEBREET M
BEFNNLEESTRNNERZTE
REFaUBERANEBEESENHEER
BERH-

L Refer to the number of people served or engaged during the Group’s community
service programmes.
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Creating an Inclusive Society
As a corporate citizen, we are motived to support diverse social segments to

create a more connected and inclusive society. In addition to offering in-kind and
financial donations to the socially disadvantaged, we encourage staff volunteering

and outreach to different non-governmental organisations for community
partnership.
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All", colleagues from our Hong Kong headquarters extended their new year's
blessing to the needy by donating their red packet money. These donations
will support the family needs of the disabled and can alleviate their financial
difficulties especially in the face of pandemic outbreak.

In support of Fu Hong Society's campaign of “Together We Build A Society For

AEFHERENIEEARML S 5E
EARABENETIBEEBEMENS
MEFBZHARET MPINHERE -
BEBTRANRIFEREALINORER
Ko WA R RPN ABEREE (2T
EHEIBREER) o

At Bossini, we believe that clothing should be functional and accessible to
everyone — a basic necessity that can serve a good cause and help make a
difference in society. With this in mind, our kind-hearted staff donated more
than 500 pieces of down jackets and vests that were in good condition as
Christmas gifts to the elderly at Yan Chai Hospital.
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In July 2021, the extreme rainfall and flash floods had caused huge

losses to Henan Province. In response, Viva China, together with Bossini,
donated 5 million yuan and over 56,000 pieces of clothing to China
Women's Development Foundation. We hope to support the recovery of the
flood-ravaged areas and provide relief for the affected people.
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX BRFRIRIE -t R ERBSIESI
2R A
Aspect HKEX KPI Description Page Number/Remarks
Em k3P faat HiE &3
MR AN
izt
A.  Environmental
IRIE
A1 Emissions AT General Disclosure 76-77
Heretn — MR &
A1 The types of”emissions and respective emissions data 80
B R AR B BUR
A1.2 Greenhouse gas in total and intensity 80, 83
RERBREREE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity 82-83
PMELESBENREREE
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 82-84
PMELAREBENREREE
A1.5 Emi‘ssio\ns target(s) set and steps\taken\io achieve them 77
PREI MBI E B R R AEE LB RTINS 5
A1.6 How hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of 78
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve t\hem\ .
BESEREEERYN AR INHEERRS
EIELBERAMKIMN T R
A2 Use of Resources A2 General Disclosure 76-79
BRfEA — R E
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity 81,83
RELASNERR THZEREEERTE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 81,83
WEkEREE
A2.3 Ene‘rgy‘use efficiency target\(s) set and steps takgﬂ to achieve them 7
PREI UM AERERA N @ B R R AED LB RIS B
A2.4 Whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water 78
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to ac\hiev‘e them )
SREVBA AR LB E A AT LM Ak R BB RS
EIELBE BRI T R
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products During the year under

RemFTABEMENEE

review, total packaging
materials used included 20
tonnes of price tag, 401
tonnes of plastic packaging
bag, 240 tonnes of carton
box, and 39 tonnes of copy
paper.
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Aspect HKEX KPI Description Page Number/Remarks
L WP B e
AN
it
A3  The Environment A3 General Disclosure 76-79

and Naturaglk Resources — AR iR

B R R AE R S ,

RERRAAR A3.1 Significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and  76-79
actiong faken to manage them B
EBRPHRERRNERNEAZERERNEERRT
20178

A4  Climate Change Ad General Disclosure 79

RIZEME —MR K E

A4.1 Significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may 79
impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them B
EEKRAEEHHTAEERENEARGHEBEERER
NEEEHTENTE
B.  Social
He
Employment and Labour Practices
EBERFEIER
B1  Employment B1 General Disclosure 84
E# —RKE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical 85-86
region
BER - BEEE FRANRMESDNESE
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region 85-86
BRI FRAEN MR DHNEBRALEX
B2 Health and Safety B2 General Disclosure 89
RREZZ —MRiKE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three  Nil

years including the reporting year

E%EEC@%ﬁ%ﬁ@%&ﬁﬁlﬁ%%ﬁ%t%k@&&fT

H

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 576 days
RAIBELXIIERH 576K
B2.3 Occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are 89
implemented and monitored \ B ‘
PR B R REEZ 250 URBEARTRER R Z
B3  Development and B3 General Disclosure 87
Training —RWE
hs trzé| ]
R R B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by\gender and employee category 88
RUERESENZPNZIIEEE DL
B3.2 Average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee 88

category

BRI REEERNED  BRESTAZINTHIRH
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Aspect HKEX KPI Description Page Number/Remarks
L B B fas
RAREN
bt
B4  Labour Standards B4 General Disclosure 90
B TR — R E
B4.1 Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour 90
RETRERIERMEBELE R E T KEFI% T
B4.2 Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 90
RSB R R RS 5
Operating Practices
KRR
B5  Supply Chain B5 General Disclosure 91
Management —RIEE
HREHEET . . ‘
fpmeER B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Hong Kong: 6
China: 557
Bangladesh: 65
India: 7
rE s M HREFmSE &5 6
B[ : 557
Z 4B © 65
HE .7
B5.2 Practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the 91
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored
EHBRUEENELN MERTAREANNHEHHE
MBI TRERRZE
B5.3 Practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply 91
cham,‘e}nd how they are implemented and mqmtored
ERAGHERESERONRERTERMBIIES  LIKE
BT RER A X
B5.4 Practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and services 91
when §e\eotmg suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored
EREREARRES BRFERKRHEA LURAEH
HITRERA A
B6 Product Responsibility B6 General Disclosure 92

EmA(E

—RIKE

B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons

E%ﬁ@ﬁﬁé%%ﬁ$E&%ﬁ@@ﬁﬁﬁ%@%%ﬁﬁ

No products have

recalled for safety and
health reasons during the
reporting period,
RBESHANRERZ
%&@@%ﬁ@@&
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Aspect HKEX KPI Description Page Number/Remarks
L WP B e
AN
it
B6 Product Responsibility B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are  During the year under
EmEE dealt with review, 44 complaints were
received by the apparel
operations of the Group
with regards to the quality
R ‘ ‘ . of goods or services.
BREMREMERBNEFRBEEUKREE A REOBEFE A5 H
Y B 255 25 75 W B 4478
ERLRIABREEE
SE
B6.3 Practiqes relating to qbservmg and protecting intellectual property rights 92
Bl R R RPE R M A B RV 1B 41
B6.4 Quality assurance process and recall procedures 92
BERTRRRERLIKER
B6.5 Consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are implemented 92
and monitored .
HEEBRMRERMWRBEE  UREBRRITRER A
B7  Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure 97
REB — AR
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against  Nil
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of
t\he cases \ o
RRSHANZETANABERLUEEGNE SHARNT &
M B KSR
B7.2 Preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are 97
imp\emen‘ted and monitored .
PhEifE R B RIER  URBARITRER X
B7.3 Anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff 97
MEERETRENRESEI
Community
HE
B8  Community Investment B8 General Disclosure 92-93
HERE — AR iR
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 92-93
BIFEREE
B&.2 Resou[ges contributed to the focus area 92
EEIHEBMBAER
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Independent Auditor’s Report

=
pwec

To the Shareholders of Viva China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Viva China Holdings Limited (the
“‘Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 110 to
220, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report 3& 37 #% S £fi iR &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We Dbelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of goodwill
° Inventory provision

° Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets
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Key Audit Matter
ATt HIE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB A BT IS

Refer to Note 3 — critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements and Note 14 — intangible assets to the consolidated
financial statements.
FHR2RGREVERRMNEIIEZTAG S BRKRH
B R s 14 B E o

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had goodwill of HK$81.5
million, net of impairment HK$161.1 million.
N_ZE-_—F+ZA=+—H> EEEBEZHEAR
81,500,000% 75 > E30FREL{E161,100,00078 7T °

For purposes of the annual impairment assessment of goodwill,
management determined the recoverable amounts of the Group's
relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs”") with goodwill, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value-in-use
(“VIU"). VIU is the present value of the future cash flows expected
to be derived from the Group’s CGUs. Significant judgments were
involved in the calculation of VIU, including the estimation of
budgeted sales, gross margin and long term growth rate used in
cash flow projections, and the discount rate applied to determine
present value of the future cash flow. The fair value less costs of
disposal requires the selection of appropriate available market
information by management.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM B st R IERARELFIE

Our procedures on auditing management's goodwill impairment
assessment mainly included:

APYEEERERENGETHNEFEFTERERE!

= Understood and evaluated the internal controls and assessment
process of goodwill impairment and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

- THREIAGTEEBRERNBEGFRTGHRER LE
BERMGSFZTHABRENEEREMEE R R
REKFE (NEHEME-FTEM - EHREEERE
R RHGENERE) sTEEARERRILNEF
2B

- Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent external valuer engaged by the Group to determine
the recoverable amounts of a majority of the Group’s CGUS;

- Mh EEEZENEIIEGHEEMNENE
*ZEREEE UETE EEBEATOREE
ABMAAUWEIEEE ;

- Assessed the appropriateness of valuation model adopted,
and challenged the reasonableness of the key inputs and
assumptions used with involvement of our in-house valuation
specialist, mainly in relation to:

- EERMOAEBEHEERWNSET > FEFTERA G
EREANBEEY TERFMAEZEZH ASBERR
ENEEE HEXTEW K !
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Key Audit Matter
FAREtEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)
B E I E T (88)

We focused on this area due to the size of the goodwill balance, and
the significant judgment involved in determining recoverable amounts
of the CGUs in management's impairment assessment.
EMEITZEEEENHERENRE UKEEE
BETEPEEREES B NE SRR KNS
K H B o

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EANBH A EIERRBETEE

In respect of the VIU calculations:

R EREESE

the budgeted sales and respective gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial data of
these CGUs. For budgeted sales, we also compared
to future market growth rate forecasted sourced from
external parties;
RHERHERREENEMNKEZERSE
EFEMNBRELMBEBETILR
MEBRHERMS > KM REBINEE
FRRRTHIERRBREITLEE ;

the long-term revenue growth rates, by comparing
them with the relevant economic and industry forecasts,
including certain forecasts sourced from external
parties; and

= B U 7 8 R SR B AR R A R T = TR A
(BIERBEIINEEFNETTEA) EITLE
SN

assessed the reasonableness of the discount rate
derived from relevant market data of comparable
companies.

¥4t Bl L8R A B BV AE B 0 15 SR PR ARG 3R
EWEE M-
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FAREHEE KM B st R IERARELFIE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)
EE AT (48)

In respect of fair value less costs of disposal:

R AT ER B &SR -

Assessed the valuation assumptions including the
selection of comparable companies, relevant market
multiple, illiquidity discount as well as recent market
transaction, etc.

G EER LR AT BT ISEE  JER
FESUHROIAMERZEMERR

= Evaluated management's sensitivity analysis over the
recoverable amounts of these CGUs, focusing on the key
assumptions, to which the calculation was most sensitive,
we calculated the degree to which each of these key
assumptions would need to change before an impairment
conclusion was triggered and discussed the likelihood of
such a change with management.

- ML EEEHZEREELSBUIKREEEE
NBEREDT BFNETERSL MstEH
ZEBRIRABR BMsETHEERELS
AR FERREERENEEEE I
HEBEN ARSI AN -

Based on the procedures described above, we found the key

assumptions and estimates adopted in management’s goodwill
impairment assessment to be supported by available evidence.
HER iR r  BRMEREEEHERETEF

KANFEBIXRMESTE I AERES R
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Key Audit Matter
FAREtEE

Inventory provision

FREE

Refer to Note 3 — critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgments and Note 17 — inventories to the consolidated financial

statements.
FH2REG OB RRMEIEAG Gt R KA

BT MEE17F & ©

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net inventories of
HK$281.3 million, carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in the consolidated financial statements.
N_ZEZ—F+ZHA=+—H> E&EENEEREE
#3281,300,0008 70 AR S M B IRR P AL A B D] B I7
FEBREET R

The apparel industry is highly correlated to seasonal factors,
economic environments, customers’ preferences and competitor
actions which affect the amount of inventory provision to be
provided. The Group has an inventory provision policy and such
provision is made for inventory items whose costs may not be fully
recoverable. The inventory provision is estimated by reference to
data such as inventory ageing, historical sales experience, expected
subsequent year-end sales.

REHUHMARZ - KBERE - BERREAFREY
FITHBUER MZEARGXELTERENEES
BEeE EEERATERENS THRAT
EEEEITR2WENTFEEEFHARBHE FEEE

BD2EFERKR BELHECR BRREFRHEE
BRFHEMMEE -

We focus on this area due to the size of inventories balances,
and the judgment involved in estimating the net realisable value in
management's impairment assessment.
EMEIZAREEANEEGRENRE  UREIEE
TERE T AP 1 51 B =437 7R (B R P R B9 31 B o

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EANBH A EIERRBETEE

Our audit procedures relating to inventory provision included:

RPERFERFENSEFEE

= Understood, evaluated and validated relevant controls over
management's estimation of net realisable value and periodic
reviews of inventory obsolescence and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

- TR~ ﬁﬁ&m**ﬁﬁ%?*ﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ&
@ S[RETHBEENAERES T@EBE B

ZARHAMARENEEREMES R ERZRNKFE

(e THE - EHREEEBREIM
SEROBNRNY) ST E RERMRIMNE R AR ;

= Tested the ageing of inventory items categorised into different
seasons by checking to relevant documents including goods
receipt notes on a sample basis, and recalculated the
mathematical accuracy of the provision made for the selected
items; and

- FiaWMERWEEBXMG (BEEaluE) ARo8
AAEEMNEEERRE TSNt ENEE
TEHEPTIEEENSEERY ; &

= Assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by challenging
management’s projections on current trends and demands for
the remaining inventories, with reference to historical sales
experience and comparing the carrying values of inventories
items, on a sample basis, to actual prices for subsequent year-
end sales.

- FHEREEEHBEANBEKIGEFEEERNE
A W2EREELHELRRMERFEEERE
BEEBEFRHENBREBREITILE T 5
HEHEEM-

Based on the procedures described above, we found that
management’s judgments in estimating the inventory provision to be
supported by available evidence.
HER iR r BRMERE
BoAHEEF

BBt E R AR



Key Audit Matter
ATt HIE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets
NE-BERZEREBESERMETE

Refer to Note 3 — critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements and Note 12 — property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to the consolidated financial statements.
F2RAGREUBRRNIIZTAGT s BRKRH
BRI E - -BERRERERAEEE-

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$120.8 million (after
impairment provision of HK$16.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021), and right-of-use assets amounted to HK$321.5
million (after impairment provision of HK$71.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021).
RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H> EE£BENY=-
i 5= K 5% 15 BR B {E %120,800,000%8 7t (0B&EZE_—Z
T+ ZRA=+—HLEEFEEZRERH16,000000
BIT) REAEEEREE2321,500,0008 7T (0FR
HE_ZE_—F+_A=+—HIEFEZREZHE
71,100,0005& 7T) °

The operation of the Group’s retail stores was adversely affected by
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and certain of the Groups's
retail stores were loss making during the year. Management regards
each individual retail store as a separate CGU and carried out
impairment assessment by determining the recoverable amounts
of the retail store assets which have impairment indicators. The
recoverable amount of the assets of the relevant retail stores
is determined by VIU calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on sales forecast prepared by management with
major assumptions including budgeted sales and gross margin,
revenue growth rates and discount rate.

IREECOVID-19BEYH EEEZTEENZESEHRAH
FE O MEAN EEENETZSEELHREBGE -BIE
BREBIZE SR —EoBEHINBEEELES
i TEEETAEBERENIRNETEEEE ZJIKE
BREETREN L B EEEEZ I REIEEETS
REEEERUENHERN (FERRCEEFHE
REFZ - W@HIEEXERAIREK) FRAMRAERE
FBRAETHNEREEFEMETE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM B st R IERARELFIE

Our procedures on auditing management's property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets impairment assessment mainly
included:
BMEHEEEVE - BREARERERAEEERET
HETHNESAEFIEZEHRE

— Understood and evaluated of the internal controls over the
identification of relevant retail stores having impairment
indicators and preparation of the cash flow forecasts and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud;

- THRITMMEEREHENERESNRNERZTEERK
HEREREBTRAB AR EBZES] > B E FE (5t
ZARBABRENEE REMER BEEEZBKFE
(EEME-FTEL - EFILHEEERRE IR
SERBR M) ST E AR E R AR ;

= Tested the reasonableness of the data used and challenged
management's key assumptions adopted in the future cash flow
forecasts, mainly in relation to:

- AEPAHENGEM THEIEBEREREKRE
MERAFPREANEZERIREHER  TEHR
MFrm:

the budgeted sales and gross margin, by comparing
them with actual historical financial data of the stores and
questioning business plans with senior management;

RFEENHEE R EN X5 FHN B E LM
TREIEETILE  Wh S RSB BRI

stE

i, the revenue growth rates, by comparing them with the
relevant economic and industry forecasts, including
forecasts sourced from external parties; and

i RWEIEREXEAERACHERTERER (B81F
KBNS FHNTER) EITHER ; &

iiil.  assessed the reasonableness of the discount rate derived
from relevant market data of comparable companies;

i, FFMG Al LEER A B AR R T B BUR TR R IR =
HNEEME ;
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Key Audit Matter
FAREtEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Gontinued)
NE - -BERZEREFBESERM BTG ()

We focused on this area due to the size of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, and the significant judgement and
estimation involved in determining the recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets subject to impairment assessment.
EMEIZBEEEARNYE - BRERRBRERAES
ERRE URTEEBETRENGHNEBEERN
B] Ug (ol & BRI P e B B8 K HI R A (i 51 o

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EANBH A EIERRBETEE

- Tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculations of the
recoverable amounts of these stores; and

- HAHEZFEH 2 IWNEIEREN BB ER Y ;
P

= Evaluated the sensitivity analysis to ascertain the extent of the
change in the key assumptions that would result in the retail
store assets being impaired and discussed with management
the likelihood of such a change in the key assumptions arising.

- FMEHREESIN URECNEESHRTEEEER
ENFERS m“ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂgﬁﬁﬂmiﬁ
BREEHRE LIRS FEM -

Based on the procedures described above, we found that the
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets made by management to be supported by available
evidence.

HER bR RMERETEBEYE - KREKRR
FRAEEENRET B ARSI

0
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Hfthiz 2
ERBEEFANHMEEAE -HMER
BEEBRANMAEER  EXraEiGRel
BHRERRFFIBZHEIRS ©

RPN GEEVHBRROER I AR EH At
ER RATAHZEHAMEESEREM
R B o

BORMABNESMBERERNES > HAN
SEEERBBEMER  ElBRET EEH
tMEERTRGESMBHRERUKMAES
B2 T BB IE R F L E AR A 3 E L
FHEEERHERRAIBER

ERFEMEATH I NRHEMBA/E
tMESFEEAERRL  RAFTERS
ZEB-EEHE KFIRBEEARS

EERBEZZEENGRAMBHRRE
AENERE

ERBEFRAEEREEBEAMAERE
MO (EBMHFREEL ) REEB (R BIF
PBRERERBEEMTHNGEEME
BER THEDBAEESMHRRVE
BAFERERRFNERMEBNERE
RPN A BIEGES -

EREBLROMBRRE - EE0E8TE &
EEFELSENED TEBRBER TR
BARECEERNER URERFE
KEngstER RIFEESARR E5£E
BENFLEEE AREEMBEROENR

J3%e

ZEeREEEE SEENMTR
2o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

Egﬁtﬁﬁtﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂ‘%iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ

HFNER RHREGVBEREBERES
AEEBERRFRERMERNEANHER
PRANRFEERE THEGERMER
RS - HFIEE BT ((FERER)
BERMANER RIEZIEREHER
tHhEN ZMAFERERENRETREM
HMATE LHAEEAEE SERE
B EKFHRE BFRERBRB(EESE
STEERQI) EITRIE ST ER —EREERBMA
FERABAESE IR - SHERMR A BT LU EREF ¢
RS MREEARHEMEBNER
ERAUEZEGSUBRREAE RBER
BUBBRERAMFEENEERE  AERKN
SEERRAM P AR IEFE AN

HIRE(SBBHED) EFEHNBE
oo RFVER T BRI R T B
BERE o TR -

o i BIAD ST 4 EB A R SF BN 8 AR T I B AR
GHMBRREFEEARERMRANE
R R RAITESREFURHELE
EB > R ERG BB E /=R
2 EREMRRIVER - B EEER
FESKRBR - RE - BEERER ERR
oo SE B A ERESR 2 £ IR EE
HHAMFEFMERNEANERERALL
EREESRREERENERMEBRNE
R B8 AR o 2t B9 L g o

o THRHEEFHERBBABIES > LIRS
BENEFEF BENILIFY &
ERREERNAEREERER -

e HEEEMRATHBERNEELER
fEHEsHES AR R ENGEM -
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going e HEEHH ? BREEEFAERNIG
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, EMIEH G BIEMERNE R
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that BT R 7£T FHEHEFEIED |ﬁ V=]
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going BWEARFTHEEM  MmaEER
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required % EEENFEKEED inﬁj(
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the RE-UNRBEMBAGTEEARIETE
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, Ii BBV EEZHMB S FIRFERE
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence J==| % ARG S SRR P09 AE R
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or B oyWaBRNKEERE 8 ﬁﬁ
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. J‘g 2 ’E?f%% EERFRBERR - HMNGEH

THER B‘%zﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁiatﬁﬁﬂy E’J%ui‘
REE AT > KRR FEIE OB T B AE
R EEEFEFERKS -

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated e TEHFSHBmMRMEREIHZS

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the EENAD BERE UKREEVH
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and RERBEAFE2IEEARZMEIE

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Qbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial e T EEEAERNERETENYHR
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express EEREENGZE BENETESE UE
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for HEAWBREREXRER -HMAES
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain EEEETN A B BEEMIT o FHM
solely respansible for our audit opinion. ABBENTREAREES2TEE-

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the BrEMEBEN BMAEZEERER 7

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any RIS HE B L EAEST IR

significant deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during our audit. L BREAMESBSIPHF HAIBESN
Rl & K ERBE ©

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with KMEMBZZEGIRIEMH > R HE LM

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with EREEMEBILIENERE ii? EEEEXR>

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear :It E—i Tﬁ FI78i8 A Al At 5 Bt B A E‘ wE

on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or HMBILMENFERGENEMEIE UKk

safeguards applied. EERNBERT  BLUBKREZNITEIZ
RER B B EHE B o

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those NEABZEZEGBEBENEER  RMET
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial PLEEBHAPEEMBFREINEBIT RS
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We B AMEMREERETEIE B MEZE
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes MR SR E L E 18 BRIEEREZHRAF
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we R LAHPEEERTE A EBHEFERN
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the BRAT URSEBHRERMBRSHES
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the  HEIBEMMNEHEBRBBELEN A TZH
public interest benefits of such communication. m BPREAREERSHEEZEE

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report HEXRBIZEMBSHNESTEEEEA

is Brian Ming Yan Chal. BERBC

PricewaterhouseCoopers BERKEGSEERR

Certified Public Accountants B 2 5ET

Hong Kong, 18 March 2022 B8 —_BE-__F#=8+/\H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEERHEMEEEER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_—_E_—F+_H=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
—E—F —EEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B =E F#ET TET
Revenue U = 5 1,381,637 819,036
Cost of sales H & A A (809,255) (488,248)
Gross profit EF 572,382 330,788
Other income and other gains — net B WA Bz Bt U 2 7E B8 5 4,548,086 1,359,084
Selling and distribution expenses iHE kDR (572,425) (224,412
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 B s HLth A& & & 3 (502,742) (453,077)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss) FAFS & & 2 BERSIE
on financial assets-net #E CRERR) 37 9,166 (274)
Finance costs B 75 R A 6 (37,049) (65,140)
Share of profits less losses of associates and ﬁTEE tEANBREEREZ
joint ventures il ,DZEE #ﬁ 15 492,571 266,393
Profit before income tax F?Fﬁﬁ#ﬁﬂu 1 1) 7 4,509,989 1,213,362
Income tax 2R 10 (35,735) (13,767)
Profit for the year FERiEF 4,474,254 1,199,595
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hh2EUkz ~ (F18) :
ltems that may be reclassified subsequenty ~ EH B P EFHHIEEIEm 218
to profit or loss, net of income tax of nil E » NBRPIISH (3)
— Share of other comprehensive loss of AME—FRIEE & AT >
an associate E@%EE&H‘E (2,346) (1,906)
— Reclassification adjustment upon partial —REIHE_—EkE
disposal of an assaciate NERFEM D ERE (7,443) 56,562
— Release of exchange reserve upon —-NHE—ENBEARE
disposal of a subsidiary R IR EE 0 3,212 =
— Exchange differences on translation of —MEBIER I ER
foreign operations = 28 159,360 335,956
— Reclassification adjustment for a —RNAFEFH BB}
foreign operation, deregisted during EREENOMEFE
the year (625) =
Other comprehensive income for the FRHEMEEULE
year, net of income tax of nil NFREASIR (5R) 152,158 390,612
Total comprehensive income FRAZEIREELE
for the year 4,626,412 1,590,207
Profit/(loss) attributable to: UTALEEER (B8) :
— Equity holders of the Company —ANEEDFAA 4,562,639 1,192,392
— Non-controlling interests —JEER (88,385) 7,203
4,474,254 1,199,595
Total comprehensive income/(loss) LX'FA:tEEﬁE%ElI&E/
attributable to: (F518) 48%a :
— Equity holders of the Company —ZM}T% hﬁ A 4,712,733 1,573,387
— Non-controlling interests —JEER R (86,321) 16,820
4,626,412 1,590,207
Profit per share attributable to RSB AR
equity holders of the Company: FEF
Basic (HK cents) B (ML) 11 40.39 10.59
Diluted (HK cents) #3E GEL) 11 40.15 10.57

The notes on pages 116 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

**11612205)5&%225@%%%%2

WRZAEMED

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EaMFERRAER

As at 31 December 2021 MR-ZEBE_—&F+-_B=+—H

2021 2020
—E- 5% —ECEH
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FABT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENE E
Property, plant and equipment ME~REREE 12 120,766 92,622
Investment properties KEY 13 93,800 203,700
Right-of-use assets FREEE 12 321,502 277,077
Intangible assets EmLTLEE 14 266,866 288,584
Interests in associates and joint ventures REE AR REaEhEIER 15 4,124,391 3,031,604
Prepayments, deposits and AARIE-ZE Kk
other receivables Hhpe 1A 19 301,883 55,245
Restricted bank balances PR 114 SR 17 45 B 21 3,672 =
Other non-current assets HMIERENE E 2,593 1,946
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE EE 26 26,397 24,384
Total non-current assets EREEELEE 5,261,870 3,975,162
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Inventories T8 17 281,279 183,863
Trade debtors and hills receivable JFE U B R e B U 2 4 18 97,996 82,887
Prepayments, deposits and FAARIE-ZE Kk
other receivables H fh g Y T8 19 160,028 167,551
Financial assets at fair value through FRBEmBAFTETEZ
profit or loss MBEE 16 587,129 273,338
Restricted bank balances PR 1% 3R 17 45 8% 21 3,183 3,627
Deposits with banks with maturity period over 27X EABE@ =188 Z $R1T1F
three months 4,284 -
Cash and bank balances B & KMIR1T 45 6% 20 2,529,663 1,857,441
3,663,562 2,568,707
Assets classified as held-for-sale NEARFFELHEZEE 34 184,730 306,051
Total current assets TMENE EMAE 3,848,292 2,874,758
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade, bills and other FETBR N~ FES 245 Kz
payables H g I 22 518,084 313,627
Accruals FEst & A 23 136,069 122,612
Contract liabilities BHEaE 5 103,962 107,108
Deferred income 3% 3 WA 24 1,199 2,100
Income tax payable FE{IFT1SR 13,320 13,610
Lease liabilities HMESR 12 123,689 135,312
Financial liabilities at fair value through HBEmBRAFESEZ
profit or loss mEas 16 - 456
896,323 694,825
Liabilities classified as held-for-sale NEARFEFLHEZEE 34 - 39
Total current liabilities TMEN B E4EEE 896,323 694,864
NET CURRENT ASSETS MRENEEFE 2,951,969 2,179,894
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BERERRBAE
LIABILITIES 8,213,839 6,155,056
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4 & B4 ik R &R

As at 31 December 2021

R-_E_—F+"RB=+—H

2021 2020
—EZ—F —EEH
NO’[QS HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FAET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred income IEIEUT A 24 6,560 7,710
Other payables H g I8 2,469 5,899
Lease liabilities HEaRE 12 362,630 273,476
Bank loans BITEM 25 - 1,256,000
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 26 87,738 80,669
Total non-current liabilities JERBEE4EEE 459,397 1,623,754
NET ASSETS BEFE 7,754,442 4,531,302
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders of KNBHERTFTEA
the Company FE(h =
Issued capital B E{TAR A 27 481,062 474,817
Perpetual convertible bonds KA AR E S 29 810,621 933,646
Reserves B 30 6,324,594 2,920,908
7,616,277 4,329,371
Non-cantrolling interests JESERE HE T 138,165 201,931
TOTAL EQUITY W iE%E 7,754,442 4,531,302

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March

2022,

Li Ning
=<z
F&
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FEFRTHAEE

The notes on pages 116 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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EEg e

Li Chunyang
&G
Executive Director
HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2021

SEmEER

BHE_ZT_—F+_B=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FAREEREAER

(Accumulated
Share  Perpetual Exchange losses)/ Non-
Issued premium  convertible Share option  fluctuation Reserve retained controlling
capital account bonds reserve reserve funds eaznmgs Total interests  Total equity
23t
B&T Bi3 kAKA R BRE EREH B8/ Fl2ad
& BB &% e e GEEE  RERY @it i EREE
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HizE TER TER TER TER TER TR TR TER TR TR
1 January 2020 “2"%%-B-H 443217 2543460 1,139,046 139,815 (353,834) 11,799 (902,206) 3,021,297 38298 3,059,595
Profitfor the year FERia - - - - - - 1192392 1,192,392 7203 119959
Other comprehensive income/oss) EREMZERE/ (F8B)
for the year:
Exchange differences on transiaion of foreign BB EB 2 ERER
operations - - - - 326,339 - - 326,339 9,617 335,956
Reclassfication adjustment upon REBSHE—EHE AT
partial disposal of an associate ERNEEY - - - - 56,562 - - 56,562 - 56,562
Share of other compreensive loss of HME—BHEATZ
an associate Ht2EESE - - - - (1,906) - - (1,906) - (1,906)
Total comprehensive income FRZAKELE
for the year - - - - 380,99 - 1192392 1,573,387 16,820 1,590,207
Acquisiion of subsidiaries I EEk B A - - - - - - - - 146813 146,813
Equity-settled share option arrangements DR %Z@% REzH 28 - - - 5,862 - - - 5,862 - 5,862
Transfer of share option reserve upon the RERERINEE R
forfeiture or expiry of share optons BRBRERE - - - (17,834) - - 17,834 - - -
Share of associates's reserve MEBENE 2l - - - 271,330 - - - 27,330 - 21,330
Conversion of perpetual convertile bonds to~ EEHK A Tﬁ—ﬁﬁﬂﬁxfﬁ%
ordinary shares AEBER 31,600 173800 (205,400 - - - - - -
Diidend paid BiRE 4 - w5 - - - - - (9850 S 98505
Transfer {0 statutory reserve g%"?i‘ﬁﬁﬂ% - - - - - 13,612 (13612) = = =
As at 31 December 2020 and Z22ZF+2A=t-H
1 January 2021 &_7_ £-F—-H 474817 2418,755" 933,646 185,173 27,161 25411 294,408 4,329,371 201,931 4,531,302
Profit for the year EREF = = = = = - 4562639 4,562,639 (88,385)  4474,254
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year: EREMZ Elzs/ (B4 :
Exchange differences on tranafion of forelgn  REBINER 2 ERER
operations - - - - 157,296 - = 157,296 2,064 159,360
Reclassffcation adjustment upon patal REBAHE—RBE AR
disposal of an associate BENNERE - - - - (7,443 - - (7,443) - (7,443
Share of other comprehensive loss of an AME—EBE ARz Efh
associate 2EEE - - - - (2,346) - - (2,346) - (2,346)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of P E — M BA BB MRk
a subsidiary ERfE - - - - 3,212 = = 3,212 - 3212
Reclassfication adjustment for a foreign REEEFH-BEEINER
operafion, deregisted during the year KEMHERE - - - - (625) - - (625) - (625)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for  ERZ EWE / (58) BE
the year = = = = 150,094 - 4562639 4712733 (86,321) 4,626,412
Acauisifon of non-controling interests R ER - - = - - - (22,813) (22,813 (1,845) (24,658)
Share issued upon exercise of share options BB IR EETERETZRM 3,245 46,207 - (17,002) - - - 32,450 - 32,450
Equity-setfled share option arrangements NREEEz BRERH 2 - - 42,085 - - - 42,285 - 42,85
Transfer of share option reserve upon the RERERRKAE AR
forfelure or expiry of share options B EGRE - - = (31,448) = - 31,448 - - =
Share of associates' reserve MEBENE 2 s - - - 26,370 - - - 26,370 = 26,370
Conversion of perpetual convertble bonds to ﬁ?&ﬂd\?—ﬁﬁﬂﬁ &%
ordinary shares ALE 3,000 120,025 (123,025) = = = = = = =
Capital contibutions received from 1%3??’%&%%?2 HEH
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - 69,580 69,680
Dividend paid to non-controling shareolders M3 EERBETRE 2 BB - - - - - - - - (45,180) (45,180)
Diidend paid BiikE 4 - (1504119 - - - - - (1504119 = (1504119
s 2t 31 December 2021 RZE_—&t-B=t-H 1062 1080868 810621 17538 17725 bl AGhG82 7616277 | 138185 T/5A

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$6,324,594,000

*

(2020: HK$2,920,908,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

ZEHEROEEAMBRIRRZE
& #6,324,594,0008 T (CE_F4F :
2,920,908,0005 7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_E_—F+_HA=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
T —E-THE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FABT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING EEBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BR A% Al g A1) 4,509,989 1,213,362
Adjustments for: HEE
Finance costs ﬁﬂ“ﬁﬁzzts 6 37,049 65,140
Share of profits less losses of TEHﬁﬁﬁ’z}T& b
assoclates and joint ventures ia BB 18 (492,571) (266,393)
Net gain on disposal of partial interest Hj R—EB=E A8
in an associate 45%% ZH&E&E‘@E 5 (3,338,753) (1,022,999)
Deemed dilution gain on decrease of B D —E = AT 2 R
interest in an associate EEZRIEE S NG 5 (977,982) =
Interest income ) B U A 5 (13,176) (18,250)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment REMEZ ATE WH)
properties 518 13 (74,830) 1,400
Fair value gain on financial assets/liabilities ~ BB BHIZAFETEZ
at fair value through MBEE &Balx
profit or loss NEEW = 5 (20,110) (3,623)
Provision/(reversal of provision) GERS - (BEED)
for inventories 7 822 (5,798)
Gain on bargain purchase EHEUWE W R 5 - (245,300)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZEFEK
plant and equipment mBZEE 5 4,780 2,680
Depreciation e 12 160,340 95,046
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHHE 14 32,352 34,140
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BRBAR 2 WE 5 (52,867) -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERFEEZEE 14 - 7,390
Impairment on intangible assets BT EEZRME 14 - 130,107
Gain from early termination of lease, net TR IETAE 2 W mF 5 5 (5,915) =
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment HBEEZ (BE
loss on financial assets-net B51R#E L)
BERE PR 7 (9,166) 274
Impairment on property, plant and ME--BERKREZHRE
equipment 12(A) 16,048 5,054
Impairment on right-of-use assets FREEEZFE 12(B) 71,111 23,363
Equity-settled share option expenses S #ESE 2 BRERS 28 42,285 5,862
(110,594) 27,455
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =5 ogm R (92,826) 43,824
(Increase)/decrease in trade debtors and FE U AR TR R FE U ZE 4% (38 0) 7
bills receivable PN (2,776) 178,071
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TETRIE ~ % & H A E U
deposits and other receivables ;IERL (8 00) 18,092 (1,440)
Increase in other non-current assets HMIEmEn=E EEm (590) (1,358)
Increase in trade, bills and other payables FE AT BE 70~ FE T 2245 I LA
P& (T =R IE L 0 180,153 46,055
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities SH8E CRL) /g (6,175) 36,336
Increase/(decrease) in accruals FESTERIEM, CRL) 9,848 (4,980)
Decrease in deferred income 45 SIS A R D (2,546) (1,750)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EiEEE (FTA) /Fi8RE (7,414) 316,213
Income tax paid EfFTER (30,326) (21,834)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from EEEE FTA) FRRER
operating activities =538 (37,740) 294,379

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (& S IR RER

Year ended 31 December 2021

BE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
g% —ECEH
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KREEEZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BEMKREZ
plant and equipment Fri§snia 11,724 2,750
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, —HE—REMHRB AT 2
net of cash FriS =858 (J0BRIR ) 34 364,186 =
Dividends received from associates Bl =E AT 2R E 15 82,247 68,058
Net proceeds on disposal of HER—BME AT Z
partial interest in an associate E D m 2 FTiS FRIEF 28 15 3,786,880 1,493,480
Interest received B W F &2 13,176 15,450
Increase in deposit with banks with maturity ~ ZRER@B =188 Z R1TEN
period over three months 10 (4,284) -
Increase in restricted bank balance PR 1 14 R 17 45 BR 12 0 (3,121) -
Purchases of items of property, BEYE MEKREER
plant and equipment 12(A) (90,439) (23,079)
Purchases of intangible assets HBEERTEE 14 (3,222) (7,322)
Prepayment for the acquisition of property U BB 2 2 TR 7B (253,177) =
Payment for financial asset at fair value BREREATESEZ
through profit or loss MBEENIE 16 (298,485) (271,874)
Net proceeds from acquisition of subsidiaries, U B& R B A &) PR 18 71 385 28
net of cash (0FRIRE) - 124,095
Payment for the acquisition of non-controlling L 8% JE 2= B #8 25 P =% 1< 3k 18
interests (11,427) =
Net cash flows generated from KREEHMEZ
investing activities REMEFEE 3,594,058 1,401,558
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METEFZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid BENFEE (16,078) (47,942)
Repayment of bank loans BIRIBITEM 25 (1,256,000) (54,829)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares HREETHERETEER
upan exercise of share options Frigsn1s 27 32,450 =
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders  [A13F 128 B% A% B8 & 228 > PG 2 (45,180) =
Special dividend paid to shareholders ENREZHFKRE (1,504,080) (298,505)
Payment of lease liabilities HEsEZTXR (169,114) (103,685)
Capital contribution received from a RIEERG R BB E ~ H B A
non-controlling shareholders 69,580 3,745
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEREFMBREREFEE (2,888,422) (501,216)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERFAEEBYIEMEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 667,896 1,194,721
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E4)IR & MIFS HEY) 1,857,441 649,262
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  4NEEFE R &8 » 52 285 58 4,326 13,458
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRAETEEY
AT END OF YEAR 2,529,663 1,857,441
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HERIRNEEBMEROHN
CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances IR MR 1TAEER 20 742,481 982,537
Non-pledged time deposits with original FEBEEPALR=EBAZ
maturity of less than three months JEIR R EHRFRR 20 1,787,182 874,904
Cash and bank balances as stated in the R BT RIRZIRE K
statement of financial position IRIT 4L BR 20 2,529,663 1,857,441

The notes on pages 116 to 220 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

BI6E20B B MERZFTHEEYH
BRZHEMED -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBmRMEE

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the ordinary shares of which are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Principal activities
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) were involved in the
following principal activities:

° research, development, design, marketing and sale of multi-brands
apparels and footwears; and

° operation, service provision and investment of sports destinations (including
sports parks, sports centres and ice-skating rinks), sports competitions and events
as well as an e-sports club.

Li Ning Company Limited (“Li Ning Co"), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2331), is an associated company

of the Group, whose principal activities include brand development, design,
manufacture, sale and distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel, equipment
and accessories in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

CITIC Land Co., Ltd (“CITIC Land"), a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability and a directly owned subsidiary of CITIC Group Corporation,

is an associated company of the Group, whose principal activities include
property development and operation; property management; hotel investment
and management; construction project and facilities contracting and equipment
installations; decoration units; landscaping; property development consultancy.

Shanghai Double Happiness Co., Ltd. (“Double Happiness"), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, is an associated company of the
Group, whose principal activities include manufacture, research and development,
marketing and sale of principally table tennis and badminton equipment under its
own “4L £ = (Double Happiness)” brand and other sports accessories.

These financial statements are presented in HK$, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations (“HKFRSs"). The consolidated financial statements also include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

° certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and
investment property — measured at fair value; and

° assets held for sale — measured at lower of the carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 3.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time
for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendment early:
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concession
beyond 30 June 2021

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRS for the year ended 31 December
2021 has had no material impact on the amounts reported in these consolidated
results and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated results.

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)  New Standard issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that

are not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting period and have not been

early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have a material

impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated

from the date of acquisition, being the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset and liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group's accounting policies.

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not

control. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of

accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,

and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's

share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's

investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the

acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the

cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate's

identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it

has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

When the most recently available financial statements of an associate is different
from the Group's reporting date, the Group may take advantage of the provision
contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the attributable share
of associate’s results based on the financial statements drawn up to a non-
coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than three
months. Adjustments shall be made for the effects of significant transactions or
events that occur between that date and the date of the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in an associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is not individually
tested for impairment. Accounting policies of the associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective

evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case,

the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the

recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the

amount adjacent to ‘share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures’ in

the profit or loss.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group'’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified as the management that makes
strategic decisions.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment primarily consist of buildings, leasehold
improvements, machinery and office equipment, furniture and fixtures, and
motor vehicles. They are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as

a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic

benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the

item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is

derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

2.5% t0 5%

15% to 33% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

7.5% t0 33.3%

9% to 33.3%

9% to 33.3%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Machinery and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Where parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other income and other gains — net’ in
the profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
interest under an operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. Such properties

are measured initially at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property under construction or development for future use as an investment

property is classified as investment property under construction. If the fair value

cannot be reliably determined, the investment property under construction will be

measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or construction

is completed.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the profit or loss as part of a valuation
gain or loss in ‘other income and other gains — net’. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

(@ Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, represents the excess of

the consideration transferred over the Group'’s interest in net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Impairment reviews of goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries are
undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b)  Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is

an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

2. FEEHHHRHE@®

RERRKREDPEZ TRNFETYES
BRERREYE -HATEEEVERE
EREBRBEMERENLFE BEEQT
B FEEHE T AL

N EEFH T B $A%%E§@WA&

E%Wm#ﬁLzﬁ@W TR —
CIRBEHNHERBEYEZEM WD W%

EER%EI&EZEWf? m ST o

HIREE

@ EE

BEECERBENBAR  MAEERHRE
ENEBBAEEAEWKEL ZTH#HNE
E-BBERRARAEBBEZATFEFIERER
BAHZEEREZATERGEZZE
B o

MEEAEME  EEFaHPREZH
E2e ok ESEREELEM (ReEE
B)) NIRESELENAE BRI REH
WFEMERERN BHERDEESEE
TRETHETEREABEREEFERR
EEARZEBEER - BEEKEDEE
RETEE

HEWENBAREENEE ZHER
BFEET NMEAVBEREBE BT
FHRERE BEERE MR - MHEEmENER
TELEBUZREGERIKRIHE (ERE
BRAFERHERTRSE) LR E[
BEARNRKEESAX AT BEZERIE
EEIE

b)) EEEE BERIN

18 51 U 8 = S 712 BB E ) 2 e o8 B 3% B AN
B-AEEXEZOHBERUEBZETLEEN
ARZEEERNWERMZATE BT
BEZUEAFHRTLSERAER-
RfEREMARZENEERERENHET]
fERFHEE > WERT S E ] ft 1A
BEFREETRENG - AIEREHER
ZEVEEZHBBENRBIELEZEINE
B RFEEEE BETRE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S ¥

123



124

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually

either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets

are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is

reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to

be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to

finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks and licensing right ana membership

Separately acquired trademark and licensing right and membership are shown

at historical cost. Trademarks and licensing right and membership acquired

in business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Trademarks and licensing right and membership that have finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and membership over their estimated useful lives.

Operating rights

Acquired operating rights are shown at historical cost. Operating rights acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They
have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of operating rights over their estimated useful lives
of 15 to 20 years.

League qualification and home and away co-operation agreement

League qualification and home and away co-operation agreement have

definite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. They are initially measured at fair value
of the consideration given to acquire at the time of the acquisition. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of league
qualification and home and away co-operation agreement over their estimated
useful lives of 9 years.

Players’ registration rights

The costs associated with the acquisition of players registrations are capitalised
as intangible assets at the fair value of the consideration payable, including

an estimate of the fair value of any contingent consideration. Subsequent
reassessments of the amount of contingent consideration payable are also
included in the cost of the individual's registration. This assessment is carried out
on an individual basis. The costs are amortised over the period covered by the
individual's contract of 1 to 3 years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using the straight-

line method over the following periods.

° Trademarks and licensing right and 2-20 years
membership

° Operating rights 15-20 years

° League qualification and home and 9 years
away co-operation agreement

° Players’ registration rights 1-3 years

Leases
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease component,

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E_-_—F+_H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also

included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments
based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance

cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant

periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received

° any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings
that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do
so for the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

The group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, which extended the practical expedient to
lease payments that were due on or before 30 June 2022,

The amendment provides an optional practical expedient allowing lessees to
elect not to assess whether a rent concession related to COVID19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may account for qualifying rent
concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct

consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions

are met;

o the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before 30
June 2022; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill, intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets
not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and those
to be measured at amortised cost. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. At initial
recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business

model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt

instruments:

o Amortised cost; Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain

or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate ling item in the statement of profit or
|oss.

° Fair value through profit & loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value through profit & loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit & loss is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

° Fair value through other comprehensive income: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses

associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment

methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

For further details on the Group’s accounting policies for management of financial
assets, see Note 37 credit risk.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency
contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income
and later reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Permetual Convertible Bonds

Perpetual Convertible Bonds issued by the Group gives holders the right to
convert these Perpetual Convertible Bonds into a fixed number of the Company's
ordinary shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per share, subject to
adjustments as provided in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The Perpetual
Convertible Bonds have no maturity date and are not redeemable. They are
treated as equity instruments and are not remeasured in subsequent years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

determined using the weighted average cost method. The cost of finished goods

comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production

overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

Trade debtors and bills receivable and other receivables

Trade debtors and bills receivable are amounts due from customers for goods sold
and services rendered in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
debtors and bills receivable and other receivables is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade debtors and bills receivable and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade debtors and bills receivable with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 18 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade debtors and bills receivable and Note 37 for a description of
the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have

been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and bills

payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or

less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and bills payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are

added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the

profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

(b)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the

carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets

are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Held for sale

Subsidiaries and investment properties are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. Subsidiaries are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell and
investment properties are carried at fair value.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or services is

transferred to the customer. Depending on the business model, terms of the

contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods and services may be

transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods and services is

transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation, depending
on the nature of the good and service to be transferred, is measured based

on one of the following methods that best depicts the Group’s performance in
satisfying the performance obligation:

o direct measurements of the value of individual services transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

° the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple goods, goods followed by related services,
or multiple services, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending on the
availability of observable information.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When either party to a contact has performed, the Group presents the contract

in the statement of financial position as a contract asset or a contract liability,

depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the

customer's payment,

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services that the Group has transferred to a customer. Contract assets and assets
arising from costs to obtain or fulfil a contract that are recognised in accordance
with HKFRS 15. The Group uses practical expedients to recognise the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred as the amortisation
period of the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or
less.

If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers a good or service

to the customer, the Group presents the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is made. A contract liability is the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration from the
customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for the principal revenue
streams of the Group:

(@)  from providing services including integrated sports content production

and distribution, sports talent management, community development consultancy
service and sports park facilities and ice-skating rinks hiring, in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue

is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to be provided because the customer
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously;

(b)  from the sale of goods, when control of the goods has been transferred to
the buyer, which is upon the acceptance of the goods.
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31 December 2021 —E_-_—F+_H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the

Group is a principal if it obtains control through one of the following way:

o Control the good or services before it transfers to the customers;

° Has the ability to direct another party to provide the service to the customer
on the entity’s behalf; or

° Providing a significant service of integrating services and obtains control
of the inputs to the specified good or service and directs their use to create the
combined output that is the specified good or service.

If control is not clear, the Group will analyse the three indicators (1) who is the
primary obligator; (2) who has the inventory risk and (3) who has the discretion in
establishing the price to assist the analysis of control. Sometimes, control are not
always clear and judgement are need in analysis of whether the Group is principle
or agent.

If the Group is principle, revenue will be recognised at the ‘gross’ amount paid
by the customer for the specified good or service and record a corresponding
expense for the commission or fee that it has to pay to any agent, in addition to
the direct costs of satisfying the contract. If as an agent, will record revenue the
commission or fee earned for facilitating the transfer of the specified goods or
services (the ‘net” amount retained).

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease terms;

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of other
income and other gains-net.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised on a time proportion basis in accordance with the

substance of the relevant agreements.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options or shares is recognised as an
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options or shares granted on
grant day:

° including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's share
price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a specified period of
time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that

are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised.
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31 December 2021 —E_-_—F+_H=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely the Mandatory

Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and a defined contribution

retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes

Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”), for all of its employees in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income
with @ maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,500 per employee are made by
each of the employer and the employees. The employer contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries
are made by the employer and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO Scheme. The rates of
contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of each
employee at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be reduced by the
relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in central pension schemes operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund
Scheme, which is a contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund
Board in Singapore.

Foreign currency translation

(@  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign

exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange

rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings

used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost
in foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
translation dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the translations. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire

interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a

subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint

control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal

involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign

operation), all of the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in

respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of
accumulated currency translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

() Impairment of gooawill and intangible assets

Indefinite life intangible assets and goodwill are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. An impairment exists when

the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. Both calculations require the use of estimates. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. In estimating the value in use of
assets, various assumptions, including future cash flows to be associated with the
non-current assets (such as future sales forecast, expected capital expenditure
and working capital requirements) and discount rates, are made. If future events
do not correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts will need to

be revised, and this may have an impact on the Group’s results of operations or
financial position.

The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU with goodwill. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs with goodwill have been determined based on
value in use calculation which use cash flow projections or fair value less costs
of disposal calculation which use an enterprise value-to-sales model. These

cash flow projections are derived from the approved business plan which has

a forecast covering a period of 5-10 years and have incorporated necessary
updates. The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations or fair value
less costs of disposal calculation are set out in Note 14. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s goodwill as at 31 December 2021 were HK$81,516,000 (2020:
HK$79,360,000).
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(i) Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting period in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2.3. This requires an estimation of the value
in use and fair value less cost of disposal of the asset. Estimating the value in
use for the impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the asset using key assumptions such as the estimated future
store performance, economic environment and the sales growth rate and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amounts of the Group's property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021 were HK$120,766,000
(2020: HK$92,622,000) and HK$321,502,000 (2020: HK$277,077,000),
respectively.

(i) Provision for inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at the end
of each reporting period, and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The assessment
of the provision amount involves management judgements and estimates by
considering historical sales patterns and expected subsequent sales based

on internal budgets and certain market factors. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in future is different from the original estimate, such differences will
have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and provision charge/
writeback in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition,
physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order
to determine whether provision needs to be made in respect of any obsolete
inventories identified. Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period and is satisfied that sufficient provision for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories has been made in the consolidated financial statements.
The carrying amount of the Group's inventories as at 31 December 2021 was
HK$281,279,000 (2020: HK$183,863,000).

(v} Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired through business
combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations,
which requires the Group to record assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their
fair values on the date of acquisition. Significant judgment is used to estimate the
fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired, including estimating future cash
flows from the acquired business, determining appropriate discount rates, asset
lives and other assumptions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management is the Group's chief operating decision-maker. The management
reviews the Group's internal reports periodically in order to assess performance
and allocate resources.

The management considers the business from a product/service perspective. The
management separately considers the different products and services offered,
and for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group is organised into two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  the multi-brands apparels and footwears segment engages in research,
development, design, marketing and sale of sports and lifestyle consumables; and

(b)  the sports experience segment engages in operation, service provision and
investment of sports destinations (including sports parks, sports centres and ice-
skating rinks), sports competitions and events as well as an e-sports club.

During the year, the Group redefined its business segments to align with its latest
strategic planning and organisational structure for the purpose of managing

its strategic direction. Therefore, “Sports and lifestyle consumables” segment
information was presented in “Multi-brands apparels and footwears” segment, and
“Sports destinations development” and “Sports-team and event management”
were combined and represented in “Sports experience” segment. The comparative
segment information has been reclassified to conform to the current year's
presentation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before income tax.
The adjusted profit or loss before income tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit or loss before income tax, with interest income, fair value changes
in investment property, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, gain on bargain purchase, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, net gain on
disposal of partial interest in an associate, deemed dilution gain on decrease

of interest in an associate, equity-settled share option expenses, impairment or
reversal of impairment loss on financial assets and intangible assets — net, share
of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures, finance costs, as well as
corporate and other unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4., RBEFHES @
Multi-brands
apparels and Sports
footwears experience Total
HE_S--F ‘ .
Year ended 31 December 2021 +ZB=1+—-HLEE % mi R EEER )
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TER TAR
Segment revenue: HE A
External ShEp 851,222 530,415 1,381,637
Segment results DEEE (312,587) 23,583 (289,004)
Reconciliation: EELIE
Interest income IV N 13,176
Fair value gain on investment property REMZEZ A B 74,830
Fair value gain on financial assets/fabiltes at FRBREATEIEZ
fair value through proft & loss MREE/QEATENA 20,110
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EWBARZBE 52,867
Net gain on disposal of parfial interest in an associate HER-BHERD 2B r#m L
W3 3,338,753
Deemed dilution gain on decrease of nferestin an associate D —FIME AT 2 BHAEEZ
GEdBEn 977,982
Equity-Settled share option expense DREES 2 BRERS (42,285)
Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets — net RO BEEZRESESE 9,166
Corporate and other unallocated expenses EERHMRDERX 3 (101,128)
Share of profits less losses of associates and joint PMEBE AT RAELE 2B
ventures B 492,571
Finance costs A (37,049)
Profit before income tax BRFT SR AELEA 4,509,989
Other segment information: Hit &N
Depreciation & 122,966 33,002 155,968
Add: depreciation related to corporate m:At£EMzNE 4,372
160,340
Capital expenditure on property, plent and equipment NE BERREZEEEX 78912 11,480 90,392
Add: captal expenditure on property, plent and ecuipment i1 A B2 ME BERRHE
related to corporate ZBRRY 47
90,439
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31 December 2021 —EBE-_—F+-HB=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4, REFHEFR @
Multi-brands
apparels and Sports
footwears experience Total
HE_Z-EE
Year ended 31 December 2020 +ZA=+—HLEE LRBER EoER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAr TEn
Segment revenue: A
External shE 438,994 380,042 819,036
Segment results NEEE (93,454) (18,306) (111,760)
Reconciliation: HER
Interest income FIEWA 18,250
Falr value logs on invesiment property Eiﬁ%%Z’/}Fﬁﬁﬂﬁ (1,400)
Fair value gain on financial asses/liabilies at fair value through FRBRRATENE
profit & logs F%EE/BBATY ﬁzm 3623
Net gain on disposal of partia interest n an associate HER-EHENFZ BN R
W F 8 1,022,999
Gain on bargain purchase ZENERR 245,300
Equity-settled share option expense NREES 7 ERERS (,862)
Impaiment on infangible assets EVEEZRE (130,107)
Impairment loss on financial assets - net MEEEZRERETH (274)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses TEREMRA RS (28,660)
Share of profits less losses of associates and joint AMEHERAREGECEZ BT
ventures B 266,393
Finance costs BERA (65,140)
Profit before income tax BRER SR AR A 1,213,362
Other segment information: HithpBER
Depreciation & 57,224 28,868 86,002
Add: depreciation related to corporate m:AtEE@ZNE 8,954
95,046

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment

Add: capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment

related to corporate

NE BERRBZAXHER 4,215
m: 2EEEMzYE BERRE
ZEXER

18,803 23,068
N

23,079
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31 December 2021 —E_-_—F+_H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately HK$295,956,000 was derived from an individual
customer, which is a related party as disclosed in Note 33, for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: HK$201,180,000). There is no other customer
contributing more than 10% of total revenue.

Geographic information

The Group’s revenue from external customers and non-current assets other than
interests in associates and joint ventures and deferred tax assets, by geographical
location, are detailed below:

4, BEQEHEF @

FEEFRZEH
REE_E_—S+-_B=+—HLHE
FE » #9295,956,00078 75 2 W 2k B — & 1@ Bl
BE (AMECHEENREEAL) (T8
T4 1 201,180,000/ 7T) o i EMEK B (L42
U ZE10% L E o

EH

AEEZRMBUBES D ZREIIBERZ
WmMIFRBEE (RHEARDRGERE
ZRemMIESERRIBE ERIN 2B ¢

2021 2020
S —E_EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT

i) Revenue from external customers i) REIIHBEEZWE
The PRC (including Hong Kong and Macau) E (BiEEERRM) 1,309,752 778,371
Singapare F N3 71,885 40,665
Total st 1,381,637 819,036

ii) Non-Current Assets i) IERBMEE

The PRC (including Hong Kong and Macau) HE (BEEBRRM) 1,071,748 900,654
Singapore i 39,334 18,520
Total 4mst 1,111,082 919,174
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31 December 2021 —F——F+-A=+—H
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS — NET 5. Uz~ Hth U A B Bt U 25 % 28
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and other gains — net are as AEFBKR EMBAREMBEFEZ
follows: DA -
2021 2020
—E-—-F b3
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
Revenue Iy &
Sales of goods HEESm 874,666 447,978
Sports content production and distribution BERNSRMERETIRA
income 226,925 193,054
Sports park facilities and ice-skating rinks BEERI KB KEZHEIR
hiring income and other service income A B E A AR S WA 226,262 150,856
Sports talent management income REAZTEEWA 34,125 17,836
Community development consultancy & RAARBUA
service income 5,987 1,223
Gross rental income & U A 4B ZE 13,672 8,089
1,381,637 819,036
At a point of time e 874,666 447 978
Overtime i B [ 506,971 371,058
1,381,637 819,036
Other income Hthlk A
Government grants BUJRF 48 B 34,092 33,187
Interest income A E U A (a) 13,176 18,250
Royalty income EFEIWA 12,075 4,544
Others Hh 22,122 7,406
81,465 63,387
Other gains - net Hthg 38R ‘
Fair value gain on financial assets/liabilities at ZEIBBIIZ A TP ETEZ
fair value through profit or loss MEEE,/ BBRZATE
e 7 20,110 3,623
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment property B2 AT EW G,
(B 18) 74,830 (1,400)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME -KERKEZEE
equipment R (4,780) (2,680)
Foreign exchange (I0ss)/gain ER (B8 WaE (1,358) 27,855
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FENB ATz W 34 52,867 =
Gain on bargain purchase S EWEEmE - 245,300
Net gain from early termination of leases AN I E 2 W F R 5,915 —
Net gain on disposal of partial interestinan ~ tH &R —EHHE A B 2 o #
associate _ mZ WP 15 3,338,753 1,022,999
Deemed dilution gain on decrease of BMO—BBME A REES
interest in an associate ZREEE W 15 977,982 =
Others Hih 2,302
4,466,621 1,295,697
4,548,086 1,359,084
Notes: MsE -

(a) Total interest income on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost for the
year was HK$13,176,000 (2020: HK$18,250,000 at amortised cost).

(b) Revenue recognised during the year that was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the year was HK$99,692,023 (2020: HK$52,657,000).

() FRNRBFEAAFENPHFEERNRT S

WA 213,176,000 7T (Z B - © %@
18,250,0005 7T) °

b SAFHENER

BaR FRN RS R

599,692, 023%71: (_ =~ T4 152,657,000 7T) ©
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCGOME AND OTHER GAINS - NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with

customers:

5. Wem -~ HthATRE ik /358
(%)

MEN R ERET

FEBERIENIEATRENERNER:!

2021 2020

—E-_—F —E_EFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FABT

Contract liabilities — receipts in advance BHBBE-TAWFIE 103,962 107,108

As at 31 December 2021, included in contract liabilities was an amount of
HK$9,682,000 (2020: HK$24,589,000) received from associates, which is
based on normal commercial terms offered by the Group to major customers.

RN_E-_—F+"_B=+—H>BHELQ
S W EY 2 189,682,000 5 (B _ZF
24,589,000/ 7T) hEt AGHNEE ) L iIRE
AEERFERFRBZ ESHERNE
}'_jgo

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BAFEpkZS
2021 2020
—EC-—F —ECEH
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B Bt 5 F#ET FEBT
Interest on bank loans IRITETF B 16,078 47,942
Interest on lease liabilities HEEGEHNE 12(B) 20,971 17,198
37,049 65,140
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7. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

The Group’s profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

31 December 2021

BRFR13 7% Al i A

7.
f%ZI‘%Fﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ?&ﬂE

) FHIRIRER !

B —&+"RB=+—H

R (5

2021 2020
—B_—F —E-EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &% FET FABT
Cost of sales HE A
— Cost of inventories sold —BEEFERAK 448,414 221,135
— Provision/(reversal of provision) for —FERE (BEED)
inventories 822 (5,798)
— Cost of services provided — P 1 AR 7% A A 360,019 272,911
Depreciation e 12 160,340 95,046
Amortisation of intangible assets mLE EEE 14 32,352 34,140
Auditor's remuneration 1% 2 6T B <&
— audit services — IZ IR TS 5,575 3,910
— non-audit services —IEZEARTS 3,349 4,041
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ B 2 @A~ (BFEE SIS
remuneration (Note 8)): (ffF¥8)) -
— Wages and salaries —ITE K= 313,349 184,851
— Equity-settled share option expenses —URRREE 2 B ERS 42,285 5,862
— Contributions to defined contribution —EREHFCRIRET 8 2 HR
retirement plans” 33,435 9,056
Impairment on intangible assets mEBEZRE 14 - 130,107
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment loss BA S E E 2 CREEE
on financial assets-net B0 R (EREE 37 (9,166) 274
Impairment on property, plant and equipment  #) 2~ BR = K 5% 6 2 BB 12(A) 16,048 5,054
Impairment on right-of-use assets FREEEZRE 12(B) 71,111 23,363
Net fair value (gain)/loss on investment REMEZ ATFE (WR)
properties Ei= PRt 13 (74,830) 1,400
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) EREE (W) 5 1,358 (27,855)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BEMSZEZEIE
equipment FEE 5 4,780 2,680
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets HERFEEE ZEETE 14 - 7,390
Fair value gain on financial assets/liabilities at BB IBHIZ A FETEZ
fair value through profit or loss EE BBz ATFERR 5 (20,110) (3,623)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BNBRE 2 Wm 5 (52,867) -
Gain on bargain purchase ZBEUWE WS = (245,300)
Net gain on disposal of partial interest in HER—RBEEQE 2872
an associate e 2 W 35 5 (3,338,753) (1,022,999
Deemed dilution gain on decrease of BLO—EBE AR 2 ERESL
interest in an associate ZREE B 5 (977,982) =
*  For the Group's contributions under defined contribution retirement plan, f A EREREEREEITRAKREES
the amount of forfeited contributions used by the Group to reduce existing HNHFME  8E_FT_—F+_8
level of contributions for the year ended 31 December 2021 under the —t+—HIEFERER  EFERER
Occupational Retirement Scheme in Hong Kong was HK$53,000 (2020: RETE B IREIR B ® K FERR UK
nil), and the balance of such forfeited contributions as at 31 December =& 28 453,000 T (ZE-_ZF .
2021 was nil (2020; HK$53,000). ) MZERREERNR B —F
+TZR=+—HW&HAZT (ZZZ
T4 1 53,0008 7T) °
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EXEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIFEFEBATEFIFEI3MNER AT (KE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of EEMEER) ROABHEBE2FEES
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows: =T
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEHF
HK$’000 HK$'OOO
FHET FABT
Fees B 1,743 1,595
Other emoluments: Hp = -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R RBYET 14,133 15,609
Equity-settled share option expenses IR REEE 2 BB R 15,535 =
Pension scheme contributions BREET BN 126 91
29,794 15,700
31,537 17,295
During the current and prior years, certain directors were granted share options, REFERBEFFE HBTESHHEAX
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of EERRERBMEBHEA A BERES 2IE
the Company, further details of which are set out in Note 28 to the financial SHERE BRE—TDHEBHNHBRR
statements. The fair values of such options, which have been recognised in profit eFcse ZEEREZ AFTENREMEE S
or loss over the relevant vesting period, were determined as at the respective B EEmESR > URAERKRH BREE
dates of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current Mt ARFERBRFR ZHIBEFT A LX
year are included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures. Frif ez MM o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
An analysis of the directors’ remuneration, is as follows:

Note
i3
2021 -
Executive directors: BiTES:
Mr. Li Ning FEEE
Mr. Li Chunyang ZEREE
M. Li Qlin FTHBAE
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Mr. Victor Herrero Victor Herrero%s 4 (a)
Mr. Ma Wing Man B s
non ive di BUFHTES:
Mr. Wang Yan LS
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin HE®RTE
Mr. Li Qing ks
Note
i3
2020 ket -3
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. Li Ning FEEE
Mr. Chan Ling RELE ()
Mr. Li Chunyang THEBRE
M. Li Qlin FHBEE
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Mr. Ma Wing Man Bax s
non. ive di BUFHES:
Mr. Wang Yan LS
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin HE®RTE
Mr. Li Qing ks
Notes:

(a) Mr. Victor Herrero, appointed on 14 January 2021.

(b) Mr. Chan Ling, resigned with effect from 23 March 2020.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the Directors

31 December 2021 —EBE-_—F+-HB=+—H

8. EEME @

AN °
EEMEOMAT
Salaries, Equity-settled Retirement
allowances and Discretionary share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind Bonus expenses contributions remuneration
#E 2R MRE#EREZ BAEHE
ik BEMEN BETEA BRERS 3 & 4st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
200 11,759 - 786 18 12,763
200 537 - 4,490 90 5,317
200 1,837 - 2,245 18 4,300
600 14,133 - 7,521 126 22,380
193 - - 6,735 - 6,928
200 - - 673 - 873
393 - - 7,408 - 7,801
250 - - 202 - 452
250 - - 202 - 452
250 = = 202 - 452
750 - - 606 - 1,356
1,743 14,133 - 15,535 126 31,537
Salaries, Equity-settled Retirement
allowances and Discretionary share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind Bonus expenses contributions remuneration
e 2R MgEE BAEE
ik RWER BBTEA BRERX HR & 4@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
200 11,733 - - 18 11,961
45 663 - - 4 2
200 537 - - 51 788
200 2,316 360 - 1 2,8%4
645 15,249 360 - 91 16,345
200 - - - - 200
200 - - - - 200
250 - - - - 250
250 - - - - 250
250 = = = = 250
750 = = = = 750
1,595 15,249 360 - 91 17,295
Mt :

@  Victor Herreroe M &2 -_—F—HF+MAH
BT

b BREEER-ZZFE=F-+=H#
fEo

FRAEESERETNESEZAME  1F

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss #0500 A 2 & B 89 £2 [B) 3% B B 4
of office (2020: Nil). There was no arrangement under which a director waived or B(CEIEZFE B FAMBEENE

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2020: Nil).

HEEREEANEZZH (CEZF

:Ht)o

70N
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included four directors (2020:
two directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2020: three) highest paid
individuals who are neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company are as

9. HaREHMAL

FRALBERSHMALEENLES CF
“EFE I MBER)  HMEFBHEIN L
XHfFs e FAHEBF—% (ZTFTF | =
2) FERBDEFNTHESR Z RS MA

follows: TZIEFEBWT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R KREYER 15,544 9,328
Equity-settled share option expenses DS HEE 2 BRERS 12,427 5,862
Retirement scheme contributions BINEFTEIHIR 36 44
28,007 15,234

The number of the non-director and non-chief executive highest paid individuals
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HNBUATHREZFEERIFTHBHZ
KoM AT Z ABIT

Number of employees

EEA#
2021 2020
—EB_—fF 22
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 75 2,000,000 7T = 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 75 & 3,500,000 7T = 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 75 210,500,000 7T = 1
HK$28,000,001 to HK$28,500,000 28,000,001 75 £ 28,500,000 7T 1 =
1 3

In prior years, share options were granted to the non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid individuals in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid individuals remuneration disclosures.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i
31 December 2021 —EB-—F#+"H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FRIEMR

2021 2020
—E_—F —E_EH
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5% FET TFET
Current tax — Hong Kong FHRIE—FE
Charge for the year FRZH 704 1,134
Qver-provision in prior years BEFEBREER (1,020) =
Current tax — other jurisdictions FHRIE-—HMBEEZEE
Charge for the year FRZH 31,199 13,285
Under-pravision in prior years BEFEEETE 331 3,880
Deferred tax IRIERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary B 5 &= RB Y 2= A& R %[0
differences 26 4,521 (4,532)
Income tax expense FTi8R > 35,735 13,767
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on EBMNERERFARS BRI ZGEE

BRI E16.5% (ZEZFF : 16.5%)
REBEFH RPHERFEHZFBEEZER

the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The PRC
corporate income tax provision in respect of operations in the PRC is calculated
mainly based on the statutory tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the estimated SREBEEEZTENRERABIRTER 2E
assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation, interpretations and B A FEE G ERER AN U25% (Z
practices in respect thereof. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been TTTF I25%) ZAERESNE -TFHM
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the MEEFEREFN ZRIE HIREAERZE
Group operates. BREFMEBRR REEEZIRTHRES
ﬁ o

RRABRERBLOMBABFIEREEE
ZHERRERFTEMRENERN Z Fr S f < 2

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before income tax
for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

domiciled to the tax charge is as follows: MIELH 2 HIRWT ¢
2021 2020
e % —EIEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax FRETISIR AR F 4,509,989 1,213,362
At the statutory/applicable income tax rates of BARBAE AT, BRFRE
different jurisdictions MEHE 724,172 185,056
Tax effect of profits less losses attributable to BENTREG ﬁ EEMRARE
assoclates and joint ventures BNRBERE (83,247) (45,534)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BERBIMA 2R ?/ ! (748,540) (238,879)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AR NBE & 42,671 54,978
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE (BREERB) TBETRE (689) 3,880
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEBEBE I RBETE 90,823 53,031
Tax effect of tax losses utilised EHRAREBEERZRBZE (4,726) (1,837)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences AERERFEEIRBETE 2,384 3,072
Withholding tax on the disposal of a PRC subsidiary — H € — RS AR I fft B /A =) =2 TR 1R 12,474 =
Others Hih 413 3
Income tax expense TSR 35,735 13,767
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

11. PROFIT PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts for the year ended 31

December 2021 and 2020 is based on the profit for the year attributable to

equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue and participating equity instruments during the years.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts for the year ended

31 December 2021 and 2020 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company after adjustment to the dilutive effect of share of
profits in an associate arising from its potential ordinary shares; and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares after adjustment for the effect of deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares at no consideration

at the beginning of the year. For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,

the effect of the outstanding share options were included in the computation of
diluted earning per share as they were dilutive.

. ARTRERFEARGERET
BHE_ ST _—FKR_ZFE-_ZF+_H

=+-— EtfﬁfZQHy%Z!K%%'J%QEE$E

BARANBEGEFEBEABHERN G RERN
BT ERKR2HEKRAT BMEFEHE

=

BHE_ZTE-_—FR_ZEZZEF+_A

=t+t— EIJtEF“Z&Hﬂ%E,é%%'J%@EE*E
Tﬁﬁ’&T% 1A ARGEREY (ERE
Lﬁyéizﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂj gl
Z%%ﬁ FEFLHER) hEBRMEFEH
EmGERENHSAEBTEIBHRE
BEFMEEBETEZBRTEFHAR) 51
B-BE"_ZT_—GR-_ZT"_ZTHE+_A
=+—HBLEEE HRBERTENBRE
BRENE AR BESRBEERNF
EsthERTEBREZZE-

2021 2020
—B-—% C—T-%&
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, ARRFIESREXREF] Z A AT
used in the basic earnings per share calculation @B ARG (FHT)
(HK$'000) 4,562,639 1,192,392
Adjustment to the share of profits in an associate ~ RIBfE#E Z @R MAE D (h—
arising from its dilutive potential ordinary shares Bt E A 2 aH (FAT)
(HK$'000) (4,523) (1,218
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, BRRFIEESRBERZF Z KA T
used in the diluted earnings per share calculation & IF A AEMEER (FE7T)
(HK$'000) 4,558,116 1,191,174
Number of ordinary shares LiERE%E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in Bt EeREARBHN 2 BET
issue and participating equity instruments used in LERMBERAT B N
the basic earnings per share calculation (000) EHH (TR 11,296,273 11,264,333
Equivalent dilutive shares arising from potential RBEZSEBRMEE Z#EER
ordinary shares ('000) PR (FRR) 57,175 579
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and ~ IR st EEREERF 2 Z @K
potential ordinary shares used in the diluted K BT E BRI 9 E
earnings per share calculation ('000) (:Fﬁx) 11,353,448 11,264,912
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREKRRZH GB) 40.39 10.59
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) EREERH GB) 40.15 10.57
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2021 —EBE-_—F+-HB=+—H

12(A) ME -BERR%E

Machinery
Leasehold and office Furniture and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment fixtures vehicles Total
HRRMA
127 HAEmEEE R REAREE RE Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET FERT FET
31 December 2021 ZEZ-%+ZHA=1+—-H
At 1 January 2021: RZ2Z—f—F—§:
Cost A 11,854 53,222 97,228 2,163 3,864 168,331
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REHTERAE (326) (20,097) (51,599) (1,449) (2,238) (75,709)
Net book amount REFE 11,528 33,125 45,629 714 1,626 92,622
Opening net book amount FREFE 11,528 33,125 45,629 714 1,626 92,622
Additions RE - 59,339 21,275 1,135 2,690 90,439
Disposal BE (11,489) (2,669) (1,918) (126) (302) (16,50)
Depreciation cherge FEE (176) (18,626) (14,787) (606) (567) (34,762)
Impairment HlE = (15,494) (528) 26) = (16,048)
Currency translation differences ERERE 137 3,175 1,572 73 62 5,019
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE - 58,850 57,243 1,164 3,509 120,766
At 31 December 2021: RIZ_-F+-F=+—-H:
Cost Bz - 110,205 122,777 3,053 5,167 241,202
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Rt rERAE = (51,355) (65,534) (1,889) (1,658) (120,436)
Net book amount EEEE = 58,850 57,243 1,164 3,509 120,766
31 December 2020 —Z-ZE+ZRA=+-H
At 1 January 2020: RIZ2Z2F—F—H:
Cost B 11,106 54,279 67,017 4,390 5,561 142,353
Accumulated depreciation and impairment R MERAE (61) (24,878) (35,838) (3,791) (3,629) (68,197)
Net book amount IREFE 11,045 29,401 31,179 599 1,932 74,156
Opening net book amount FREFE 11,045 29,401 31,179 599 1,932 74,156
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B AR - 12,630 11,546 364 53 24,593
Additions RE - 7,255 14,057 1,684 83 23,079
Disposal BE - (5,066 (249) (1,312 @) (6,629)
Depreciation charge wEE (246) (10,138) (10,907) (592) (503) (22,386)
Impairment A = @,775) (2,202) (30) 7 (5,054)
Currency translation differences ERER 729 1,818 2,204 1 11 4,863
Closing net book amount ERIREFE 11,528 33,125 45,629 714 1,626 92,622
At 31 December 2020; RI2Z2F+°"H=1+—A:
Cost D% 11,854 53,222 97,228 2,163 3,864 168,331
Accumulated depreciation and impairment KA MEREE (326) (20,097) (51,599) (1,449) (2,238) (75,709)
Net book amount REFE 11,528 33,125 45,629 714 1,626 92,622

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the management of the
Group considered that certain leasehold improvements of the Group were subject

to impairment because of the challenging retail market due to the spread of
COVID-19 in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

BE_ZT_—FKR-_FE-_ZTHF+_A
=+—HLEEE - FEBEEEIRTE
ERoEEYERELRBE SER
COVID- 19 REI At R BB EIERTET S
AR PRE o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
The management estimated the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
as follows:

“bossini” and “bossini.X” cash-generating units in relation to the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The recoverable amounts of the “bossini” and “bossini.X" cash-generating units
comprising from each store have been determined based on a value in use
calculation which was approved by the management using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering the remaining useful lives of the respective
items of property, plant and equipment. Key assumptions used for the value in use
calculation as at 31 December 2021 were as follows:

12(A) ME- -BRERRE @
EEEGMHREELEM T KBS EN
g

ERYE - BERRBURERESEN
I'bossini 1 #1 M bossini.X 1IR & E L E (il
[bossini J & Mbossini. X 1 IR ELE B AL (HEE
TERBMR) WAL EFERESIEEIH
/ﬁﬂ’]fﬁﬁuuif’g EU D‘I’%Z@ﬁﬁﬁ?fﬁfgﬁ 2
HREREFNERNEREZYE BERR
BEEFR T ERFHAZ T HEERETH
RIE-_—F+"BA=+—HsE8EFERE
EFRBZEEBRWNT

2021

—E—F
“bossini” “bossini.X”
cash-generating cash-generating
units units
Ibossini | Ibossini.X |
REELENU REEEEN
Sales growth rate THE T R 0% Note
Gross margin rate ETES 44% — 70% 31% — 59%
Discount rate AR IR = 13% - 14% 14%

Note: Sales growth rate for “bossini.X" cash-generating units was based on the budgeted
sales approved by the management for the year ending 31 December 2022, 100%
sales growth for the year ending 31 December 2023, further 50% sales growth for
the year ending 31 December 2024 and remain stable thereafter.

The management determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate
based on historical operation data, the expectation of future market development
and taken into consideration on the continuous impact from the COVID-19.

Impairment provision on property, plant and equipment of HK$16,048,000
(2020: HK$5,054,000) was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2021,

@ Sensitivity analysis on the impairment assessment of "bossini”
cash-generating unit in relation to the property, plant and equipment and
right-or-use assets

As at 31 December 2021, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December

2022 applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini” cash-generating units had

been higher/lower 10%, an impairment charge of approximately HK$13,834,000

lower or HK$20,134,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

Bt @ Thossini X IREEEEMMFHEEX
IEREEBMBEE_S__F+_H~
=t+—HIEEEMAZTAEHEERE 8E
TE =+ ZRA=1+—HILFENH

EMERAI00% BHE_ST _NE+—
B=+t—HBLEENHEEERTE—D
A050% * BE B RIFIBE °

BB REREEEYE  EARRD R
55 R A 5 ROOVID- 190 R B R I Lt 8
B ERRERNE.

L E NS =YE 1%2[2@%*1@60480007%75
(ZZE T4 :5,054,0008m) ENEE
E_—F+_A=1t—HBLEEEZEH

@ BEYE BERREUAREFEE
ZE B9 Thossini ) 38 & 2 4 BE A1 B (B 7F 152
HRE DT

A _E_—F+__B=+—H WEAR

I—bOSS\ﬂIJ Eﬁ%}%é‘f LLZL%%MLE%E E'J

HE_TE__F+_-_B=+—HLEFEEZ

FERSHEE I, R 10% D B EBURE

& 5 /D #913,834,00078 7T 3 3 A020,134,00078
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

12(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

“hossini” and “bossini.X” cash-generating units in relation to the

property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

@ Sensitivity analysis on the impairment assessment of "bossini”
cash-generating unit in relation to the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December

2022 applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini” cash-generating units had

been higher/lower 20%, an impairment charge of approximately HK$21,375,000

lower or HK$41,055,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2021, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection
for “bossini” cash-generating units had been higher/lower 1%, an impairment
charge of approximately HK$752,000 higher or HK$772,000 lower, respectively
would be resulted.

(b)  Sensitivity analysis on the impairment assessment of "bossini. X" cash-
generating unit in relation to the property, plant and equipment and right-or-
use assets

As at 31 December 2021, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December

2022 applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini.X" cash-generating units had

been higher/lower 10%, an impairment charge of approximately HK$5,480,000

lower or HK$7,985,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2021, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December
2022 applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini.X" cash-generating units had
been higher/lower 20%, an impairment charge of approximately HK$9,669,000
lower or HK$19,369,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2021, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection
for “bossini.X" cash-generating units had been higher/lower 1%, an impairment
charge of approximately HK$459,000 higher or HK$474,000 lower, respectively
would be resulted.

In early 2022, the Hong Kong government has taken more vigorous measures
to restrict the spread of COVID-19 in Hong Kong, including further tightening
of social distancing rules and bans on incoming flights. In light of the rapidly
increasing number of confirmed cases in February and March 2022, additional
precautionary and control measures were added. This recent development has
impacted businesses and economic activities in Hong Kong and the directors
considered that it will impact the performance and the determination of the
recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs in the future. The management will
continue to monitor the impacts to the Group.

31 December 2021 —EBE-_—F+-HB=+—H

12(0) ME-BRERRZE @
ERME - BERREURERESEN
Tbossini 1#1 " bossini.X 1 3R & E 4+ B (i (48)
@ BEYE BERREUREHES

BB bossini | 322 ZE £ B B B 5715 2

HRE DT (B)
N_E_—F+_B=+—H ' WEAR
Mpossini I IREELEEMNZIRER=TEAZ
BE_Z__F+_-_B=+—HLEEFEZ
AR E AN, B 20% 0 1D B EBUEE
&R/ #921,375,00078 758138 041,055,000
TDO

N_E_—F+_B=+—H WEARK
Mpossini IS EEBENZIRSREBAZ
BEIRRE 0 R 1% D B BB E &
1 AN%9752,00078 7T 3R 772,0008 7T ©

b BEYE BERREUREHFHEE
EE R bossini X ) T8 & BE 4 B (7 3 (B 5F 1
ZEREST

R_E_—F+"_HA=+—H HEARAR

MpossiniX I RS EFE BN 2HESRETEA

2ERE_E__F+"A=1+—HBILEE

ZFERIEEER M, R 10% 0 B9 B EBUR

B &R/ £95,480,00078 75 24 1 /107,985,000 74

JT °

R —F+_HA=+—H HEAR
MpossiniX I RS EF BN 2HESRETEA
2ERE_E__F+"A=1+—HBILEE
ZFERIEEZIN, R 20% 0 5 D B EBUR
fE & R L 499,669,000 7T 5 18 /019,369,000
BITe

N_E_—F+_B=+—H ' WEARK
Mpossini X I IREEEBAUZRERETEA
ZBRIREE AN R 1% 1D B BRI E
B 12 AN049459,00078 75 IR L 474,00078 7T ©

RIZBEZ &9 EBRNERDNESA
Ak EtﬂﬁE%‘JCOV\D 19N EBNERE SFE

— SRR BRI KRB IEMIE AL
ER"T__FAKR=ZABIZHRIE=
R T BUR A0 BR S0 TR R B 3 I HE 7 o Lt
CHERETEEANBERKELS
EERAHRBHRRBFAREELEEMN
B ENREREEELELE B
BREBEREAERNTE-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

12(B) LEASES

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases
when the Group is a leasee:

128) #HE

() REBKRRERNRE
BIBRR RS RUTRE (REEFA AR
A) HERARE ¢

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEHF
+-_A=+—8 +=-HA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Right-of-use assets FREEE
Buildings EES 321,502 077,077
321,502 277,077

Lease liabilities HEAE

Current REN 123,689 135,312
Non-current JER B 362,630 273,476
486,319 408,788

No right-of-use asset was acquired through addition and acquisition of
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 20271 (2020: HK$192,043,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s management identified certain retail shops
which continued to underperform. The recoverable amounts of the “bossini” and
“bossini.X" cash-generating units have been determined based on value in use
calculation which was approved by the management using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering the remaining lease terms. Details on the
key assumptions used for the value in use calculation of “bossini” and “bossini. X"
cash-generating units are disclosed in Note 12(A).

An impairment provision on right-of-use assets of HK$71,111,000 (2020:
HK$23,363,000) was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2021,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

HE_ S _—F+_B=+—HLEET
HEBBAE R UREEM B A S M p A
HEE (CEEF 192,043,000 7T) ©

A B —F+_"_HB=+—H AEEE

EBE#ETRERBERNENSEESH-
[bossini | Az Tbossini.X | I8 <& 2= 4 B i 19 BT UK
CEiEFAEEEBRMENIRERETENR
AEz2GREEEE ReRERNER
HEG N EEFH T BEEETE - A H
[bossini | # T bossini X | IREEEEMWETE
FERBEMRAZEIERREBEEME
12(A)I B8 o

EREEEZREE#H71,111,0008 T (&
T4 1 23,363,0008 ) ERNEBHE_SE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

12(B) LEASES (CONTINUED)
(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

12(8) HE @
(i) MIEERERHRNIE
BRFRIWRUTHERRRIE !

2021 2020
—E_—F —ECEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets TREEEITESE 125,578 72,660
Impairment on right-of-use assets EREEEZRBIE 71,111 23,363
Interest expense (included in finance cost) FMERZ GtAMF ) 20,971 17,198
Expense relating to short-term leases and variable %2 #AFE & K nl £470 & 4 FAERI B 2
lease payments (included in cost of sales, selling (Gt ASHE B A~ $HE Fe D iH B
leases and distribution expenses and administrative 2 WA & 1T BUE H 1 )
and other operating expenses) 67,904 39,896

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
HK$237,018,000 (2020: HK$143,581,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for
The Group leases various offices, sports parks, ice skating rinks, retail stores

and staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to
20 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales
generated from a store. For certain stores included fixed and variable payment
terms, the variable payment terms are with percentages ranging from 1% to
26% of sales. Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly established stores. Variable lease
payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

(v) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases
across the Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.

HE_E-_—F+BA=+—HIEE"
FAEENAIR S M 4B %58 24237,018,0008 7T
(ZEZF4F : 143,581,0005 7T) ©

(i) EEZHEEFIRAEARSGE
FEFEREZEMAG -REE B K
B EEESARBIES -HESNERER
1E205F 2 [E EHR 5T 17 » 0 & R RUIZ (8 Al
BEED TE3ZEFBRERRREMS -
HEHZEAMMERRZE EHEEET
SREEEREFRY -

(iv) ATEFHE SR
ETYEHEelEHELENHERR
W ENRER - E T ERFEE KA
BAORBERNERMES > &N RERN
T E ZERI1%ZE26% © F A o] B4 KA
FERERE GEENXREHNEEMREE
HERIME-BURNRIHEEM ol B E L™
REEZENRNKRGEELENPABRRIE
AR o

(v BREEEMREAEREE
FrEENETHRMEHNECIEHEZERE
MEIEEEEZR - EERLAEREER
WEEMS %S EEENERENER
RIRIFEREZRRAE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. BREME

Note HK$'000
B =% TET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 N ZECEF—F—HZEEE -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B i 8 A B 205,100
Fair value loss NYE{EEIE (1,400)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 and NS EF+_"_A=+—HkK
1 January 20271 T —F—H—HZKEE 203,700
Fair value gain NFEW =S 74,830
Transfer to assets classified as held-for-sale EBEFSEABEHEZEE 34 (184,730)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 N_E_—F+_A=+—HZEHEE 93,800
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for 2021 2020
investment properties MREMEZIEGHRR TR —E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Rental income WA 6,648 3,838

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations
for future repairs and maintenance (2020: Nil).

The Group's investment property was valued as at the end of the reporting

period by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$93,800,000 (2020: HK$203,700,000). Each year, the Group's management
decide to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuation
of the Group’s property. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The Group’s
management have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation result when the valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment property are included on page 221.

162  VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JE R, E AR AR A E]

R TE T —F+"RA=+—H FxEEL
BEBVERBEZRREERFRESE

(ZTEZZF 1@\
AEBREYERBIUIBESERG
B EERRIEERATNBESHR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 13. KEME @
Fair value hierarchy NEEZRE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s TRHBPAER CREYE L NFEFT=
investment property: K8 .
31 December 2021 —EZ—5+ZH=+—H
Fair value measurement using
RAZATENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
EDN EDN
T IR AHE FrRIER
hinRE AU AR et
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(E—B EZR) (B=R)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FTET THET
Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMEATESZ
Industrial property T - - 93,800 93,800
31 December 2020 —EEF+ZH=+—H
Fair value measurement using
KRz ATEGE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BX BX
g GIE-E: IR 2
mIHRE A BUE WARE s
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
E—B) EZB) (F=/E)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET FHET THT
Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMEANTESZ
Industrial property TEME - - 203,700 203,700
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —ZBE——%F+_H=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: nil).

As the investment property is measured initially at cost, there is no movement of
fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value is estimated using a direct comparison approach. Under the direct
comparison approach, fair value is estimated by using the direct comparison
method on the assumption of the sale of the property interest with the benefit of
vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment property,
which include the location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion

and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market price. The fair value
measurement is based on the above property’s highest and best use, which does
not differ from the actual use.

The key input is the unit market price (2021: approximately HK$4,500
(2020: HK$3,300) per sa.ft for industrial building and HK$2,000,000 (2020:
2,400,000) for car park). A significant increase/decrease in the market price
will result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
property.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

31 December 2021

=t e

— =

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BREE
League
Qualification
and Home
and Away Players
Trademark and Operating Co-operation Registration Member-
Goodwill Licensing Right Rights Agreement Rights Ship Total
BEERR
Rk EX80 133
[k A ERE EER i Heg uE EeH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TET TET TERT FTERT FTERT
At 1 January 2021: RIB2Z—F—A—H:
Opening net book amount FREFE 79,360 76,540 14,749 87,320 8,547 22,068 288,584
Additions HE = 816 = = 2,406 - 3,222
Amortisation charge HBHE - (8,205) (1,029) (12,621) (4,914) (5,583) (32,352)
Currency translation differences ERER 2,156 1,729 M7 2,350 208 552 7,412
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 81,516 70,880 14,137 77,049 6,247 17,037 266,366
At 31 December 2021: ATET—fF
+ZBA=+—-RH:
Cost WA 242,605 100,252 17,014 118,116 17,038 28,397 524,322
Accumulated amortisation and impairment S EHERAE (161,089) (29,372) (2,877) (41,067) (11,691) (11,360) (257,456)
Net book amount IRAEFE 81,516 70,880 14,137 77,049 6,247 17,037 266,866
At 1 January 2020: RIZZTE—F—H:
Opening net book amount FREFE 206,742 65,258 14,71 93,500 17,574 25,845 423,690
Acquisition of subsidiaries BN B A S - 14,000 - - - - 14,000
Additions RE = 144 = = 7,178 = 7,322
Amortisation charge B - (6,854) (956) (11,740) (9,398) (5,192) (34,140)
Disposal EE = = = = (7,390) = (7,390)
Impairment charge (note i) BEE (¥isEi) (130,107) - - - - - (130,107)
Currency translation differences ERER 2725 3,992 934 5,560 583 1415 15,209
Closing net book amount FRIRAEFE 79,360 76,540 14,749 87,320 8,547 22,068 288,584
At 31 December 2020: RIZB_EE
+ZB=+—-H:
Cost [DES 235,843 96,978 16,527 114,739 15,047 27,585 506,719
Accumulated amortisation and impairment S RAE (156,483) (20,438) (1778) (27,419 (6,500) (5,517) (218,135)
Net book amount REFE 79,360 76,540 14,749 87,320 8,547 22,068 288,584
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations are mainly allocated to the
following cash-generating units (‘CGUs"), which are separate business operations,
for annual impairment testing:

° Sports parks CGU
° Esports CGU
o lce-skating rinks CGU
° Other CGUs

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU with significant amount of
goodwill:

I\\ﬁ/ﬁé (ﬁnﬁn)
ﬁi%"/ﬂifﬁlﬁhﬁ
EREBEHESHNBEIEZNEETY
3%4%?“ ﬁﬂ’]fﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ(rfﬁﬁéi
B1i)) > TEERENR :

REREREEEEN
EBHEeELEEN
BAKBIR S EE B
HMIBEEE B

HENREESIEESBESHERANR
TELEE

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Sports parks CGU EEERESELEN 5,410 5,410
Esports CGU ERReELB 33,646 32,684
ce-skating rinks CGU BKGIRSEAE BN 41,743 40,550
Other CGUs HMIREELEA 717 716
81,516 79,360

(i) Sports parks CGU

The recoverable amount of the sports parks CGU has been determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a ten-year period approved by management. Management considers

it is appropriate to apply a financial forecast covering a ten-year period in the
VIU calculation based on the factors including: (i) predictability of the trend of
operating scale; (i) expected sustainability of business growth; and (iii) length of
period to achieve business targets. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 24.4%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the sports parks CGU beyond the ten-year period is 2.0%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the sports parks CGU
for 31 December 2021. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill;

2.0%—27.5%
14.1%—28.0%
24.4%

Revenue growth rate:
EBITDA margin:
Pre-tax discount rate:

The revenue growth rate is for the ten-year forecast period. The cash flow

projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of ten years and have incorporated necessary updates.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

() BEEREELEEN
BEEREELESEMUNTWEEETIRE
FREETEERRESRERN ENEE
BHIENHETFHNGHESR) MEE -
BEERA ERUTER E"ﬁ%fﬁ“iﬁ
STERERRETFHRB MBREAS

B 2EREEE ()ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁéﬂzﬁﬁ}i
pilKies '(ii)%ﬁﬁﬁ¥?&ii52—_f FEM )S’z(iii)%‘
HEXREHEZEHE - FANREE A=A
BRI AIEEIRE 224 4% c BN EE RS E
REELBNBE+FHNRERENIE
RER2.0%°

AStE_E-_—F+_BA=+—HWES
ERSEFBUNCABEEREH 7 R&
R THMTEEBETHERENR
MR RER /\JFﬁ%ﬁ’:‘E’\]’1§1 BRRR

it B 2.0%—27.5%
EBITDAFI S = 14.1%—28.0%
PRI ATARIRE © 24.4%

35 00 B T S+ =R AEAR c R
SR O LB ZHBR
BRETERNENLERALEEHE
Ko



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the ten-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, management believes that a reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the sports parks CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

(ii) Esports CGU

The recoverable amount of the Esports CGU has been determined based on

a fair value less costs of disposal calculation using the comparable company
method under the market approach, prepared by Roma Appraisals Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer engaged by the Group, to assist in the
determination of the fair value less costs of disposal.

The following key assumptions were used in the estimate of fair value less costs
of disposal of the Esports CGU as at 31 December 2021 in connection with the
impairment testing of goodwill:

()  the enterprise value/sales multiples observed from a group of comparable
companies engaged in the same business ranged from 2.3 to 2.9 as at 31
December 2021;

(i) adjustments factors, such as illiquidity discount that market participants
would generally consider when estimating the fair value of the Esports CGU
(2021:20.6%); and

(i) appropriate amount of cost of disposal.

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

14, B.EE @

EBITDAME Wz 2 B o b &+ E 78 R HR S B9 5
HE A JHE R B AR B ok E I
SEEE DL BRFEHR SR 2R T S AR ©

PRER AR IR R SBRMATEE R > I R BR A B
REETBUZRHERR-

BE_T_—F+_A=+—HLEFE"
BEERS F AR ERRAAELRN
CEHEHR I EENESERSELBQ
HIRREE BB E AT R [ 288 -

(i) BERREELEN
ERRTELBANTKREISELRAT
BEETAWRARE REQATFERE
EMAFE HEUEXEERGEME
EERTEERLAAGN  AEEEZRHE
HEEE A FERE EMA -

REmENREls sot8 -2 - —&F
+ _A=+—HMNERREELBMUNMG
SHAFE B ERAREFE R U T EER
%

) MIEBE_—F+_HA=+—H 8=
NEBEHEEFNETLERATEHEBN
Fo3E2 M #EBE, HERDSH ;

iy HAEBERBOUMB2EEMAERE
EEXEBUATFERESZEENIER
FERTR (CEZ—F :206%) ; &

(i) BEMNHEMKETEE
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, management believes that a reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the Esports CGU to materially exceed its recoverable amount,

(iii) lce-skating rinks CGU

The recoverable amount of the ice-skating rinks CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by management. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 20.5%. The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the ice-skating rinks CGU beyond the five-year
period is 2.0%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the ice-skating rinks
CGU for 31 December 2021, The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

2.0%-13.8%
26.0%-32.6%
20.5%

Revenue growth rate:
EBITDA margin:
Pre-tax discount rate:

The revenue growth rate is for the five-year forecast period. The cash flow

projection is derived from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of five years and have incorporated necessary updates.

The percentage of EBITDA of revenue is the average percentages over the five-
year forecast period. It is based on the current margin levels, with adjustments
made to reflect the expected future market conditions.

The discount rate used is pre tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

mIEE @)
B2 % Er-A=t OLEE
B B 83 % L (o B 218 A T A 1 R
ABEHE S ABRERA LR 0
REEABBELTRESE

(iiiy BAKBREELEEN
BAKGREEEBEMNTWE BT RE
FEREETEFCHRESR=EEA (EREE
B AENRE L FRANMETES) MEE -
EERBEEREEINGRATARIRES
20.5% ° BN ENEKIZIRE EE BIBES
FHNREERENIE EERA2 0%

EHE T —F+ " A=1+—HKIEX
CRETETBUNERABERERT R
R UTHMTEEBETHERENR
MRS REBTRAMENNSERRRR

WmiEEEX 2.0%—13.8%
EBITDAFI = : 26.0%—32.6%
PRI ATAGIR = ¢ 20.5%

KRS EEDHE EEBENBE - Be R
SEANBOCHELBEHE ZHBR
EREREBNENLERASEEHE
Ko

EBITDAMG W 2t = B 90 EE 4% 1 A T8 R HA RS B9 °F
BB Eﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬂxm$IWﬁ
a8 B DU BRIBHASR SR A 35K 0 ©

FRER BRI R B ERNAT L X > I 2 BR A R
REELEUZRERR-



14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no impairment loss was recognised
(2020: HK$130,107,000), management believes that a reasonably possible
change in any of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount
of the ice-skating rinks CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

(iv) Other CGUs

During the year ended 31 December 20271, no impairment loss was recognised
on goodwill and other intangible assets of other CGUs in profit or loss (2020: nil).

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

31 December 2021

]HEZ

B —&+"RB=+—H

14, B.EE @

—— S+ HA=+—8HI1LtHE
E TEBRIREGEE (T _TF
130,107,0007&7T) » EIEE 04 Lt (E RS
BRROUIEHENSESEFHRE I ERS

KSHEEELEBUNKREEBBHEIWE

ERE e

(ivy HtIREEEEBN

R&EEZ

B_—F+_A=+—HLF
E-@BEREaRAERNERAREELS

UNEEREMETLEENRERE (CTF

“EFE -

15, REtE AR REELRERZER

2021 2020

T —ECEHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Associates /N 4,123,956 3,031,113
Joint ventures aE b 435 491
4,124,391 3,031,604

Interests in associates

The following is @ movement of interests in associates during the year:

REEQB 2 #m

LT B SRR EAR Y #2E) :

2021 2020

B2 —F _EEH

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

B 5% FHET FET

At 1 January n—B—H 3,031,113 2,939,185

Share of profits less losses for the period DGR R A R & 18 492,641 267,175

Share of other comprehensive loss DMEEMEEEER (2,346) (1,906)

Share of reserves DMEEE 26,370 27,330

Dividend received B E (82,247) (68,058)
Change in interest in associate due to partial  EHFSEF 0 HE R B /EE S ER

disposal and deemed dilution REE AT NERED (@),() 522,412 (413,568)

Currency translation differences P& &7 = 28 136,013 280,955

At 31 December BR+_B=+—H 4,123,956 3,031,113
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

371 December 2021

15.

(a)

B —F+"RFB=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

The Group entered into a placing agreement (“the 2021 Placing”) with

J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited on 18 May 2021 to sell
60,000,000 Li Ning Co Shares. The Group's investments in Li Ning Co is
considered as investments in associate and accounted for using the equity
method before and after the 2021 Placing. Upon the completion of the
2021 Placing on 21 May 2021, the Group derecognised the carrying value
of the associate proportionate to the percentage reduced, reclassified a
proportionate amount of exchange fluctuation reserve previously recognized
to the consolidated financial statement, resulted in net proceeds of
HK$3,786.9 million and gain of HK$3,338.8 million. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18 May 2021,

On 27 October 2021, Li Ning Co, Viva China Development Limited (the
“Vendor”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group) and J.P. Morgan
Securities plc and Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Placing
Agents”) entered into the placing and subscription agreement, pursuant
to which (i) the Vendor has agreed to place, through the Placing Agents,
on a fully-underwritten basis, an aggregate of 120,000,000 Li Ning Co’s
shares held by the Vendor (the “Top-up Placing Shares”), at the price of
HK$87.50 per Top-up Placing Share (the “Top-up Placing Price”); and
(ii) the Vendor has agreed to subscribe for 120,000,000 new Li Ning
Co's shares (the “Top-up Subscription Shares”) at the price of HK$87.50
per Top-up Subscription Share (the “Top-up Subscription Price”) which

is equivalent to the Top-up Placing Price (the “Top-up Placing and
Subscription”).

The placing of the Top-up Placing Shares held by the Vendor (the “Top-up
Placing”) was completed on 1 November 2021 and the subscription of the
Top-up Subscription Shares by the Vendor (the “Top-up Subscription”) was
completed on 3 November 2021.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

15.

REEATRREETEZER
€))

N_ZE_—FHA+/\B>» A&EEH
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited 5J
VhEEWHE (T2021EFE)) U
60,000,000 FE A B - NER
REZERFNRERERSNBE QG
I E & K2021Bc E S IERI B A%
BEAR- R _E_—FRA-+—
HEp2021Bc EFIHE  REEK I
ERMENB DGR LB ZER
HE > REAER B REREEZ
LB EREEH D EELRSHBREK
EE L PR1S AIEF %83,786,900,000/48 7T
Kz W #53,338,800,00078 75 © B BEEE 1R
F2RARBHBEAZZE_—FAHA
+NAHHNASE

R_E_—FE+H-++tH EERQ
B JENPEERERAE ((EH]
KEBNE2EMN B AB) KJ.P. Morgan
Securities plcA1FHE B (FE) BRELQ
B (MEEREBDITIUIEERIER
FOEBEIL (EHFEREEARERE
REHAHEEREEHFAENGH
120,000,000l == AIKRMN (THER
MEEERD)) EBREERNRER
7 %87.508 T (TCERMEEREL) ;
RINEHEREZBENRLERNE
EBNLCERTRBESRLERT
RERD87.508 T (THERNTDE
&) sRE8120,000,0000 5 == AT &
o THRERMDBERMD)) (TLEEN
BLERBEBERE])

REEAFANLERMEERND
(TEERFEESE) BN _-F
—F+—HA—HEM -BEHRBEL
=RMRERD ((RERFTIES
HN)ERZZEZ—F+—A=H%
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15.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(Continued)

On 27 October 2021, the Group held 271,201,543 Li Ning Co’s shares,
representing approximately 10.9% of the issued shares of Li Ning Co. The
Group’s shareholding in Li Ning Co was decreased from approximately
10.9% to 6.1% upon completion of the Top-up Placing and was restored
to approximately 10.4% upon completion of the Top-up Subscription.

The deemed dilution gain arising from the Top-up Placing and Subscription

with a decrease of 0.5% shareholding in Li Ning Co was HK$978.0 million.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28
October 2021 and 3 November 2021,

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Name Notes registration
ML
%18 BsE  sEMith RS
2021
T —F
Li Ning Co (a) Cayman Islands 10.4%
FERF HEHEE
CITIC Land (b) The PRC 29%
RiEE% FE
Double Happiness (c) The PRC 10%
Aes lE]

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

15, REIE AR REGELERZER

(b)

€=))

(&)

R_E_—F+8_+tH &~&H
FA271,201,543REERB KD > 15
TENABBITRMNAI09% RAiE
BHEESERNE AEERERE
NEMIFRERLI10.9%RES1% > i
RNEERTABEBETHAEBMEEL
10.4% ©

HEERMEE RDBBEFEM AL
FENFLNRENRIFEF RS
978,000,00078 7T ©

BER#E F2HAATHBEAZS
—_—&E+A-+NBR-ZE-_—%
+—A=ZHZ AL

FEBZIBHMERTZFBOT -

13.3%

Percentage of ownership interest

directly attributable to the Group

SEEBEEEGEGEERZ
BALE

Principal activities

FEEH
2020

b Tt V2

—_—=—

Brand development, design, manufacture, sale and
distribution of sport-related footwear, apparel,
equipment and accessories in the PRC

MRAREIR A E e S B R EEEE  AREM
BMEREGNmEERE Rt RS-
T & R #Hh 3

29% Property development and operation; property

management; hotel investment and
management; construction project and facilities
contracting and equipment installations;
decoration unit; landscaping; property
development consultancy

BEHERE - KE MEEE BERE
B BRI I MREZE ; &£
B TR ; EMiR(L ; BtEES
AR5

10% Manufacture, research and development,
marketing and sale of principally table tennis
and badminton equipment under its own ‘AL &
= (Double Happiness)” brand and other sports
accessories

SUE I S RIHEEB A RMEIA
E= B NEITEERKRPEEKREM
REMBE B4

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S ¥

171



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the market value of Li Ning Co’s listed shares was

HK$85.35 (2020: HK$53.25) per share. The number of Li Ning Co ordinary

shares held by the Group as at 31 December 2021 was approximately

271,202,000 Shares (2020: 331,202,000 Shares).

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s
principal associate extracted from its financial information or financial statements
after adjusting for the impacts of adjustments made at the time of acquisition and
adjustments for differences in accounting policies, if any (the one extracted from
Li Ning Co is after adjusting for the impacts of adjustments made at the time of
acquisition and adjustments for differences in accounting policies, if any, and for
non-coterminous periods between the Group and Li Ning Co):

15. RIZEATIREGELEZER
(48)

R_E - —F+_-_B=+—H FEQT
EHRMzHEBAERSS (DB T (T
T 1532585m) cRZEZ—F+ZH8
—t+—H AEEFEZETEQNTEZE
BB 4 4271,202,00008 (ZE _FF .
331,202,00088) °

TRETEAERTEMELT ZBENFH
B ARENDEEREEMBEN M
BRE (ERRNWERFLZAREEF
EHERESBRERE (WA) (FHHAE)
(ZERBREFERTDZEHTERIN K
BRELZABRZEFLABRKRMTER
HFTERNTAZEGFHRNEERE WA &
AEE SR FHAR)

2021 2020
T % —ETHE
Li Ning Co Li Ning Co
FENT =S /NE]
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET TET
Gross amounts of the associates HBE AT ZEEEE
Current assets MENE E 21,919,778 11,923,332
Non-current assets ERFEE 16,951,086 7,996,079
Current liabilities mENBIE 9,423,166 6,625,226
Non-current liabilities ERBER 1,781,625 876,369
Net assets BEFE 27,666,073 12,417,816
Revenue for the period EA W 24,161,773 15,790,515
Profit/(loss) for the period HrEF], (E518) 4,119,487 1,771,367
Other comprehensive loss Hith=mEE (55,269) (14,134)
Total comprehensive income EWmIEEE 4,064,218 1,757,233
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests in FEBRKE QS NWERRHER
associates
Gross amounts of net assets attributable to the BE AT IEEAEBLREES
equity holders of the associates B4B%E 27,662,946 12,414,778
Group's effective interest REBRBEHR 10.4% 13.3%
Group’s share of net assets of the associates NEBELAHMEATNEEFE 2,868,648 1,651,165
Goodwil mE 599,527 751,426
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial PR a B RFROREE
statements 3,468,175 2,402,591

172  VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JERL HE AR SR AR



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 include the Group's share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the
twelve months ended 30 September 2021 and adjusted for any significant events
or transactions for the period from 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021. The
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
include the Group's share of the results and reserves of Li Ning Co for the twelve
months ended 30 September 2020 and adjusted for any significant events or
transactions for the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020. The
Group has adopted the provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to
include the attributable share of associates’ results based on accounts drawn up
to a non-coterminous period end where the difference must be no greater than
three months. There is no non-coterminous period end for other associates and
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no impairment loss of investment in a
joint venture was recognised in profit or loss (2020: nil).

Commitments in respect of associates and joint ventures
The Group has no commitment to provide funding for associates’ and joint
ventures’ capital commitment as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

31 December 2021 —E-—F+"HB=+—H
15. RBEATIREELEZER
€=))

AEBHE S _—F+_B=+—HLt
FEZEREUBRREELAERDHEE
NEBE_E_—FhAB=1+HILE+ 1@
BzxBR#EEIMBE-_ZE-_—F+8—
HEE_ZE_—F+-_A=+—HLHH
ZREAEREHIRZELHAE AEE
HE_ T _TFE+_A=+—HLEEEZ
REMERREEAEEDHETEQTE
FE_E_EFHA=+HLE+_ERZZ%
EREHEIGFE S _SE+H—HEE
TECEF+ " R=+—HIHEBEZEW
BEREAARZEHRAE AEBEEEM
BB G ERFE8SKTE 250 it &
BT AUBE AR AEERRER BERE
EEAEBB=ER) 2IREABEEZEM
BERNBZzxB HMWBMEAAREGED
EEAEERBEER

REETENES
BHE_ET_—F+_B=1+—HILEEE>
BMERN—BaEtEREZREBENIE
TR (CE_ZE ) o

MR E AR REGEEEREE
FEER T —FKR"T-TF+_A
S+ HUIEREMRBMERATREGELREE
FABREES Z &
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

16. ESBEMBATEAEZMBE
E/ 8|

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EHF

Notes Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

B 5 BE afE BE =R

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FET FET TFET

Forward currency contracts 3= BR &S 8 & 4 (@) - - 1,464 456
Loan and interest B EZ K F B

receivables (b) 587,129 - 271,874 -

587,129 - 273,338 456

(a) The carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts as at 31 December 2020
were the same as their fair values. The above transactions involving financial assets/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are conducted with creditworthy financial
institutions with credit ratings from A-1 to A-1+.

These forward currency contracts were not designated for hedge purposes and are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. The net loss in the fair value of these
non-hedging foreign currency contracts amounting to HK$1,008,000 (2020: net
gain of fair value amounting to HK$458,000) were debited/credited to profit or loss
during the year.

(b) Amount represented a loan with principal amount of HK$563,774,000 (equivalent
to GBP53,550,000) (2020: HK$269,484,000 (equivalent to GBP25,500,000)) at
an interest rate of 4% per annum due from Lionrock Capital GP Limited (“Lionrock”).
Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the parties to the Loan Agreement may agree
that, at any time, the principal amount of the loan together with all outstanding sums
accrued under the Loan Agreement may be converted into and/or set off against
any subscription amounts payable by Viva China Consumables Limited (formerly
known as Viva China Entertainment Holdings Limited) a wholly owner subsidiary
of the Company, in order to subscribe for equity in LionRock Capital Partners
QiLe Limited (the “SPV"), a company wholly owned by LionRock, therefore, the
balance is accounted for as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of financial position according to the results of assessment
of business model.

For details of the Loan Agreement, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 28 September 2020.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

(b)
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

17. INVENTORIES 17. &

2021 2020
—EZ—F “EZEHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTET
Raw materials R A7t 10,335 =
Waork in progress Y 5,740 =
Finished goods AN oA 265,204 183,863
281,279 183,863

18. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 18. BRI REWRERE
2021 2020
—E—&% BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade debtors and bills receivable JFE Ukt BE = Ry FE LT 22 4 104,754 99,239
Less: loss allowance B IR B (6,758) (16,352)
97,996 82,887

FEBTERTKRANETRRS  EE
H—HRmn—ER EE2FFARZAULR
EEHERER BRXREFHUEERSEES
REE-mREEECHENARER A&
B ESEBBERRERRREHRTAE
EERRRNEMEREEZRE B
R EWRER/ TR -

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, generally

one month, extending up to six months for major customers. Each customer

has a maximum credit limit. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by

senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade debtors and bills receivable balances. Trade debtors
and bills receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade debtors and bills receivable based on the payment ~ FEUWBRA KR EWZHERBAHEEHE Z R

due date is as follows; BT
2021 2020
—EZ—F “EZEHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Current BPEA 77,465 61,478
Less than 3 months past due #HR/ DR =18 B 18,155 13,518
3 to 6 months past due BH =& 7@ B 2,198 5,549
More than 6 months past due mAREE A S E A 178 2,342
97,996 82,887
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

18. TRADE DEBTORS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 18. FEUERFN R FEUWRE 1% (@)
Information about the impairment of trade debtors and the Group's exposure to ERAEWRANAEURAEEEREES
credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest risk can be found in Note 37. Rg - SMNE R RAIRRERE 2B F2HE
M 5E37 ©
Recelvables that were neither past due nor impaired relate ta diversified A o< 80 HA 2 R 1B < FE WA TE B 2 4 A HR
customers with no recent history of default. RN o = =R = R
Included in the Group's trade debtors and bills receivable are amounts of 5T AZSEE B 2 FE WAR 7R R FE W ZE 5 2 FE UK
HK$26,701,000 (2020: HK$3,861,000) due from associates. Bt 2\ B FUIE26,701,0008 5 (CE T 4F .
3,861,0003 7T) °
19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. FEIRRIE S R HEMEUWKTRIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 F#ET FAET
Prepayments TR RIE 334,252 85,413
Deposits and other receivables & REMBURIE @) 223,672 232,219
Less: loss allowance for deposits and other 78 : 2% R EMMAEWFRIE
receivables gk 37 (96,013) (94,836)
461,911 222,796
Less: current portion B RENEE D (160,028) (167,551)
Non-current prepayment, deposits and other ~ FERENFE FRIE ~ 2%
receivables T ELAth & ISR IE (b) 301,883 55,245
Note: FMI5E
(@  Deposits and other receivables are measured at amortised costs. The detail @ BEAHMEWRERBIHENEASE A
information about the credit risk and impairment analysis of deposits and other s hEMERFBEERE R BESD
receivables can be found in Note 37. Mzt 5B2RMEE37 o
() Included in the Group’s non-current prepayment, deposits and other receivables b)) AHEBERIFENLTIE B KREMEU
are amounts of HK$253,177,000 (2020: nil) down payment for the acquisition of RIECEARWEBUNTE SN EN
properties located in Shanghai, PRC. EHHI & 88253,177,0008 T (CE &
FiF)o
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20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

20. HERIRITHEER
(a) RERRITEREE

2021 2020

B —F —ECEHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET FET

Cash and bank balances other than time depaosits T HEALIINZ IR E RIR1T45ER 742,481 982,537
Time deposits — less than three months EHER—LR=@EAH 1,787,182 874,904
Cash and bank balances RE& MIRTTAEER 2,529,663 1,857,441

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$472,345,000 (2020:
HK$459,196,000), approximately HK$368,152,000 (2020: HK$385,718,000)
of which was domiciled in the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies in the PRC, however, under the PRC'’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks other than time deposits earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one and three months depending on the short-term cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates.
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of

default.

(b) Net debt

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for

the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

RIEHR  ZEBUARKFEZIES
R SR TS B4 /472,345 0008 5 (ZB 2=
£ 1 459,196,00077T) » HH149368,152,00078
T (ZE 4 © 385,718,000 1) 20
e \E¥RAHEATERRHRAEME
Mo SATT » AR ¥ (P B IMBE B BRI ) e K45
E-EEKNESERE)  ~NEBEES
BEREETIEER ZRTBRARER
BmAHMEK.

RTRE (EREFERGEN BRESHERETE
AR A KB E - BRAERE
AmB—=E=2=ERAEF RIEEHEN
R FRME > WIS B EHE TR
REDAB - RTEFREFRNREOEEN
B EERFZIRIT

(b) BEFHEE

AEHEBRE _T_—FKR_ZT_ZTF
+ZB=+—"BLEFENEEFEZIN
KRB FEE EH o

2021 2020
B —F —EEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Net debt B 348
Cash and bank balances RERIBITHERR 2,529,663 1,857,441
Deposit with balance with maturity period over EFEHREBB=EA 2 RITFEM
three months 4,284 —
Restricted bank balances PR &l M4 SR 17 45 B 6,855 3,627
Borrowings — repayable after one year BE-RN—F%&EE - (1,256,000)
Lease liabilities mEaE (486,319) (408,788)
Net debt B %48 2,054,483 196,280
Cash and bank balances B& RIBTHEER 2,529,663 1,857,441
Deposit with balance with maturity period over EFEREBA=ER ZR1TEXR
three months 4,284 =
Restricted bank balance PR &l 4 SR 1T 45 BR 6,855 3,627
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BB —EEHZE (486,319) (408,788)
Gross debt — variable interest rates B AR — FEF = - (1,256,000)
Net debt B3 %E 2,054,483 196,280
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED) 20. REKXWITHEER @)
Liabilities from financing activities Other assets
REMEEHZEE HittEE
Deposits
with banks
Cash  with maturity Restricted
Bank and Lease and cash period over bank
other loans liabilities Sub-total equivalents  three months balance Total
BTk RER =Rz R 1 4
HitE™® HEaf Nt REEEY HBITER RITEER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Net debt as at 1 January 2020

TET TERT THET TET TERT TET TET
RIZEZRF—F—HZ

BHIR (1,256,000) (184,638)  (1,440,638) 649,262 = 3,342 (788,034)
Cash flows Rene 102,771 103,685 206,456 1,023,968 = = 1,230,424
Interest expenses FIRRHE (47,942) (17,198) (65,140) - - = (65,140)
Acquisttion of subsidiaries B AR (54,829) (273,064) (327,893) 170,753 = 57 (167,083)
Addition — leases RE—E - (38,954) (38,954) = = = (38,954)
Termination — leases RIE—AE - 12,623 12,623 - - - 12,623
Foreign exchange adjusiments INERE - (11,242) (11,242) 13,458 - 228 2,444
Net debt as at 31 December 2020 and RIE_ZF+_A=+—HkK
1 January 2021 “EC—5-A-RZEBIE (1,256,000) (408,788)  (1,664,788) 1,857,441 = 3,627 196,280
Cash flows Rewe 1,212,078 169,114 1,441,192 667,896 4,284 3,121 2,116,493
Interest expenses FERS (16,078) (20,971) (37,049) = = = (37,049)
Addiion - leases RE—E - (262,880) (262,880) - - - (262,880)
Termination - leases ®IE—TAE = 49,239 49,239 = = = 49,239
Foreign exchange adjusiments SMNERE - (12,033) (12,033) 4,326 - 107 (7,600)
Net debt as at 31 December 2021 RI2_—F+"A=+—H2Z
BHIR = (486,319) (486,319) 2,520,663 4,284 6,355 2,054,483
—_ &,
21. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 21. [RHIM4IRITAER
2021 2020
—E_—F —EEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Restricted bank balances PR &4 SR 17 44 &5
Current ikl 3,183 3,627
Non-current JERE 3,672 =
6,855 3,627

The restricted bank balances were pledged as security for the operation of sports [RHIMRTEFEIRFEARBRERNEE

parks and as security for bank guarantee for subsidiaries of the Group. ZHERKRIEANEBRBARBITERZ
FEfRo
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22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 2021 —F

22. BRM EBAREREMEM

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

—F+"A=+—H

TAIE
2021 2020
g% “EZEHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade payables &1 BR R 233,478 112,493
Bills payable 1T ZH% 11,693 -
Other payables HMEA I 272,913 201,134
518,084 313,627
The normal credit period for trade payables generally ranges from 30 to 60 days. ENRAZIEEEEH—RKNFI0ECOK -

Ageing analysis of trade payables based on due date at the respective balance

sheet date is as follows:

REBEABRXRB BEMRIABZE

HERMAVERES DO T

2021 2020
g —F 3. 3
HK$’000 HK%’OOO
FHET FTET
Current BR AR 211,923 92,759
Less than 3 months past due A DR =@EB 17,909 18,744
3-6 months past due BA=Z/NEH 2,640 60
More than 6 months past due HAREEENEA 1,006 930
233,478 112,493

23. ACCRUALS FEst&H
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK?@’OOO
TFHET FET
Accruals FEstE A 136,069 122,612
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31 December 2021 —E-Z—F+-B=+—H

24. DEFERRED INCOME

The movements in deferred income as stated under current and non-current
liabilities are as follows:

24, BRI A
FIARERIERFEBE N 2IRIEWA Z
BEMT

2021 2020

—E-_—F —E_EFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FABT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—BZEKAEE 9,810 10,831
Government grants received during the year FERNE BT #ERL - 32,372
Credited to profit or loss st AE@ (2,300) (33,187)
Currency translation differences b 12 = 2 249 (206)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+_BA=+—HZKEE 7,759 9,810
Less: current portion B mEER (1,199) (2,100)
6,560 7,710

Deferred income mainly represents government grants obtained for the purpose
of subsidising subsidiaries’ operation. Government grants received are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as deferred income
and are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the grants are intended to compensate.

25. BANK LOANS

ESE U A 3 B 45 7 A B I B A ) 2 OB T
BN 18 2 BT 8 B o B UR BRH I B 4 5 1 A
AMBRRENRDAEERA U E R
490 B 1 7 B 51 B0 F 4 1 2 BR RS 4 9B 3
8K o

25. $RITE™

2021 2020

T —fF - Jol 3.+ 3

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFABT

Bank loans, secured IRITER > AL - 1,256,000
Less: Current portion B ORENEE D - =
- 1,256,000

Bank loans bear floating rate of HIBOR plus basis.

As at 31 December 2021, no asset have been charged as security. As at 31
December 2020, loan represented collateralised bank loan which is secured
by interest in an associate with an estimated carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,315,718,000, and the loan is subject to certain covenants requirement
relating to the quoted price of the associate.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has bank facilities of HK$205,890,000
(2020: HK$1,256,000,000), of which HK$193,138,000 (2020: nil) remained
unutilised at 31 December 2021,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

IRITEMREBRTAZFEMEERS R
ZEBAEER -

R_E _—F+_HA=+—H>&xEEW
EIRBEEMMEER RS _TF+ =
B=+—H EXEHER—RBEBEQAFTZ
B (st EREEANA1,315,718,000%8 7T)
EBRIFZBIRFRETERN BZERZR
RAZHMENT ZREMENE TLER
ﬁ_'io

R_E_—F+_HA=+—H> xEE#
BIRITRIE 205,890,000 T (ZE_ZF4F .
1,256,000,0004 75) » EH1193,138,0007%8 7T
(ZE2EZE2EF  B)REBE—F+ZA
=+—HEXREAB
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26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

31 December 2021

26, BEERIEEERAE
ERGEVMBERIRED ZELERIEE E

B —&+"RB=+—H

position are as follows: FEUWT
2021 2020
—B_—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HKEBE’OOO
FET FAET
Deferred tax assets IEIEFRIBE B 26,397 24384
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE (87,738) (80,669)
(61,341) (56,285)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows: FRIELEREBEERBEZEBNT
Impairment and
other temporary
Deferred tax assets movement differences Lease liabilities Total
1B R E Ath
RIEFRIEE EEE YRERE HEaRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 noE—E&E—F—H 21,654 2,046 23,700
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEMT B A B 389 — 389
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss P& G0k st A (2,502) 1,440 (1,062)
Currency translation difference FE R A% 1,357 = 1,357
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RIZEZEF+"A=+—HEK
—E-—4#—A—H 20,898 3,486 24,384
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss RigE G0k 5T A (2,320) 3,615 1,295
Currency translation difference BEE 2 = &8 483 235 718
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-_—&#+-"B=+—8H 19,061 7,336 26,397
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

BRIEMEEERER @

Revaluation
of investment Intangible

Deferred tax liabilities movement properties assets Others Total

B
BERIEGEES BREME BREE Hith s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAT TAET FTAT
A1 January 2020 RIZ-=E—FA—H - (49,488) (50) (49,538)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERB AT (31,652) (2,118) - (33,770)
(Charged)/credit to profit or loss B (0 /FtA (481) 6,075 - 5,594
Currency translation difference Eﬁ%@ﬁ = (2,952) &) (2,955)

At 31 December 2020 and 1January 2021 ECEE4+RA=+—HRZE

——f-F—A (32,133) (48,483) (53) (80,669)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss RER G0R) /FtA (12,347) 6,531 - (5,816)
Currency translation difference ERER - (1,251) @ (1,253)
At31 December 2021 R-Z-—&+-A=+-8 (44,480) (43,203) (55) (87,738)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$1,365,534,000 (2020: HK$1,150,637,000), subject to the
confirmation of tax losses from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. These
tax losses are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group also has tax losses arising in the PRC of
HK$474,623,000 (2020: HK$398,275,000) that will expire within five years

to offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in companies that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had estimated tax losses arising in
Singapore of HK$72,702,000 (2020: HK$58,430,000) and in Malaysia

of HK$5,367,000 (2020: HK$5,367,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax liability has not been recognised for withholding taxes that would
be payable on certain portions of the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC as
all of those profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by
the Company to its shareholders.
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A ZE - —F+ZA=+—H > &xEERK
EBEERIEEEA1,365,534,00058 7T (Z
T -FF :1,150,637,000587T) * EBEE B
MEBERRNIBEER MZEREBEA
ERBREFEREEBEE AR ZRKERR
EA o

A ZEZ—F+ZHA=+—H > &xEET
R E EEFRIER18474,623,0008 7T (CZE
— 4 1 398,275,000% 7T) © B AR K EE R 2R
J?Eu%ﬁ, Ao BEEREEBEEBERAERL
MeHRZERABDEBFERE KRB M
BREZRR N TERIKHESBRESREY

BEARX BULENZFTHERDELER
BEE -

A B —F+_B=+—H &A&EE
RN AR ERBEEE Gt RIES
EBHRA72,702,000ET (T2 F .
58,430,0007 7T) £5,367,0008 T (ZE - =&
& 15,367,000 7T) @ Al ER AR AR EIREE &=
S HEEABHBZERRER o

KEEWARRE THRPEKILZHNERE
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31 December 2021 —EBE-_—F+-HB=+—H

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. g7
Shares B 15
2021 2020
:g:_ﬁ —_— 7 —_—= E
Nominal value Nominal value
A& |fE
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$'000
R E TER EEE TET
Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREENB T ZER
(‘Ordinary Shares’) (ME3Em)) 20,000,000,000 1,000,000  20,000,000,000 1,000,000
Redeemable convertible preferred shares of SREE0.0178 T2 = A
HK$0.01each (‘Preferred Shares’) ERELR (B%K)  6,000,000,000 60,000  6,000,000,000 60,000
Total 4zt 26,000,000,000 1,060,000 26,000,000,000 1,060,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRERE
Ordinary Shares ZER 9,621,242,726 481,062  9,496,332,726 474817
A summary of the movements in the Company's issued capital during the years BE_ZE_— kK- Z2-_ZF+_A
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows: —t+—HIEFERRB B ZETRAE T
AN -
Issued Capital BETRE
Number of
Ordinary Share
Shares in Issued premium
issue capital account Total
BT
BER#E BRITRE R HER 4t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= TET TET TERT
At 1 January 2020 “EZH—H—H 8,864,332,726 443217 2,543,460 2,986,677
Issue of ordinary shares §§ﬁ B AR (@) 632,000,000 31,600 173,800 205,400
Dividend paid ENRE - - (298,505) (298,505)
At 31 December 2020 RZFZBE+A=1+—H 9,496,332,726 474,817 2,418,755 2,893,572
Issue of ordinary shares BITLER (b) 124,910,000 6,245 166,232 172,477
Dividend paid BfBE - - (1,504,119) (1,504,119)
At 31 December 2021 RW_E-—&#+-A=+—A 9,621,242,726 481,062 1,080,368 1,561,930
Notes: MsE -
(@ 632,000,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upon conversion of part of the perpetual @ —E_ZTZERREZD Kﬁ‘lﬁﬂ?ﬁiﬂ%%%%
convertible bonds during the year of 2020. B2 3£ 17632,000,00008 i 78 % o
() 64,910,000 Ordinary Shares were issued upon exercise of certain share options b ZE_—FRNEAETEREETE ﬁ'ﬁ
for proceeds totalling HK$32,450,000 and 60,000,000 Ordinary Shares were issued 2£1764,910, 000k ZER > BEMEREBEGH
upon conversion of part of the perpetual convertible bonds during the year of 2021. The 32,450,00078 75 » A Z DK A M 0] R EH

proceeds of issues upon exercise of certain share options had been applied towards general 2 2 1760,000,0008% 58 A% o (A& T BB AL #

working capital of the Group.

T2 AR B ARl > — &
BAERES.
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

() Share option scheme of the Company

(A) 2010 share option scheme

On 29 June 2010, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a share
option scheme (the “2010 Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives

to participants to contribute to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
high-calibre employees and/or attract human resources that are valuable to

the Group. Participants of the 2010 Scheme include employee, officer, agent,
consultant, business associate or representative of the Company or any subsidiary
or otherwise contributes to the success of the Group, including any executive,
non-executive or independent non-executive director of the Company or any
subsidiary, who, as the board of directors or a committee comprising directors and
members of the senior management of the Company (as the case may be) may
determine in its absolute discretion, is regarded as valuable human resources of
the Group based on his working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors, and subject to such conditions as the board of directors or such
committee (as the case may be) may think fit.

The overall limit on the number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2010 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not,

in aggregate, exceed 30% of the number of Ordinary Shares in issue from time
to time. In addition, the total number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted together with all options to be granted under
the 2010 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must
not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all the Ordinary Shares
in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2010 Scheme (the 2010 Scheme
Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from time to time, refresh the 2010 Scheme
Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of the shareholders in general meeting.
Once refreshed, the total number of Ordinary Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2010 Scheme and all other share
option schemes of the Company under the limit, as refreshed, must not exceed
10% of the number of Ordinary Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshment by the Shareholders.

The 2010 Scheme Mandate Limit amounted to 878,060,472 Ordinary Shares
following the approval of refreshment by the Shareholders on 16 June 2017.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(A) 2010 share option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of Ordinary Shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the 2010 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the Ordinary Shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date
of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders' approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2010 Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the board of directors or such committee, save that such
period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board
may otherwise determine, there is no minimum period required under the 2010
Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or such
committee, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Ordinary Shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Ordinary Shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Ordinary
Shares.

The 2010 Scheme was valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on 29 June 2010 and expired on 29 June 2020. Upon expiry of the 2010
Scheme, no further share options should be granted thereunder. The share options
granted under the 2010 Scheme which remained outstanding immediately prior
to the expiry of the 2010 Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of grant and the 2010 Scheme.
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(B) 2021 share option scheme

On 18 January 2021, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to adopt a
new share option scheme (the “2021 Scheme”) for the purpose to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions that participants have made or may make to the
Group, to provide incentives and/or reward to participants for their contributions
to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees and/
or attract human resources that are valuable to the Group. Participants of the
2021 Scheme include employee, officer, agent, consultant, business associate
or representative of the Company or any subsidiary or otherwise contributes to
the success of the Group, including any executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director of the Company or any subsidiary who, as the Board

or a committee comprising Directors and members of senior management of
the Company (as the case may be) may determine in its absolute discretion, is
regarded as valuable human resources of the Group who has made important
contributions to the development of the Group based on his work experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors, and subject to such
conditions as the Board or such committee (as the case may be) may think fit,
The 2021 Scheme will remain in force for period of 10 years commencing on 18
January 2021.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2021 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the number of Shares in issue from time to time. In addition,

the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options

to be granted under the 2021 Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the nominal amount of all
the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2021 Scheme (the “2021
Scheme Mandate Limit"). The Company may, from time to time, refresh the 2021
Scheme Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of the shareholders in general
meeting. Once refreshed, the total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2021 Scheme and all other
share option schemes of the Company under the limit, as refreshed, must not
exceed 10% of the number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshment by the Shareholders. On the basis of 9,496,332,726 Shares in issue
on the date of adoption of the 2021 Scheme, the maximum number of shares
that may be issued upon exercise of share options that may be granted under it
is 949,633,272 Shares. As at the date of this report, the share options available
for grant under the 2021 Scheme is 663,699,939, representing 6.87% of the
existing number of issued Shares.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(B) 20217 share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the 2021 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the proposed date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2021 Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the Board or such committee, save that such period shall not
be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless the Board may otherwise
determine, there is no minimum period required under the 2021 Scheme for the
holding of an option before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board or such
committee, but shall be at least the highest of () the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Shares on the date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)
The following share options were outstanding during the year:

At 1 January 2020 RN_E-_ZTF—F—H

Forfeited/expired during the year RERRIEIH

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 C:%:;EEwL “A=+—HkK
B2 —%#—HF—H

Granted during the year RERRH

Forfeited/expired during the year RERRYEIH

Exercised during the year RERTTE

At 31 December 2021 N _E_—&F+_"_A=+—H

Equity-settled share option expenses of HK$33,922,000 (2020: HK$5,862,000)
was recognized in profit or loss in respect of the share options granted under the
2010 Scheme and 2021 Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2021,

Notes:

(a) 66,425,000 (2020: 94,729,000) share options granted under the 2010 Scheme
were forfeited/expired during the year ended 31 December 2021.

(b) The fair values of the share options granted under the 2021 Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2021 were approximately HK$55,938,000 in aggregate, which were
estimated as at the respective dates of grant using a binominal model, taking into account

the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the

inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)
Expected life of options (years)
Risk-free interest rate (%)

Bz B (%)

TEHA R R (%)
BREERER (F)
=R AER%)

(c) Total 64,910,000 (2020: Nil) share options granted under the 2010 Scheme and
2021 Scheme were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

(d)  Asat 31 December 2021, the Company had 283,690,000 share options
outstanding under 2021 Scheme, which represented approximately 2.9% of the Ordinary
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021,

(e) The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:
2021

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period

BREHE TEE TR

('000) (HKS$ per share)
(F%) (FRAET)

890 0.67 18 Jan 2021 to 17 Jan 2023
94,267 0.67 18 Jan 2022 to 17 Jan 2027
94,267 0.67 18 Jan 2023 to 17 Jan 2028
94,266 0.67 18 Jan 2024 to 17 Jan 2029

283,690

2020

Number of options Exercise price™ Exercise period

EREHE B TEHE
('000) (HKS per share)
(F12) (%)
64,425 0.8 20 Jan 2019 to 19 Jan 2021
20,000 0.478 5 Sep 2019 to 4 Sep 2021
2,000 0.478 15 Aug 2020 to 14 Aug 2022
20,000 0.49 5 Sep 2020 to 4 Sep 2022
20,000 0.49 5 Sep 2021 to 4 Sep 2023
126,425

The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustment in the event of
any capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation, sub-division or reduction of the share
capital of the Company (other than issuance of Ordinary Shares as consideration in respect
of a transaction)
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31 December 2021 —E_-_—F+_H=+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

() Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the exercise in full of the outstanding share
options under the 2021 Scheme would, under the present capital structure

of the Company, result in the issue of 283,690,000 additional Ordinary

Shares and additional share capital of HK$14,184,000 and share premium of
HK$175,888,000, before taking into account any transfer of share option reserve
to the share premium account.

(II) Share option scheme of a subsidiary

Bossini, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 592), operates a
share option scheme (the “Bossini Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the operations of the Bossini Group.

Eligible participants of the Bossini Share Option Scheme include executive
directors, non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors),
and other full-time or part-time employees of Bossini, and its subsidiaries. The
Bossini Share Option Scheme became effective on 12 November 2013 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of ordinary shares in the share capital of Bossini (the
“Bossini Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to

be granted under the Bossini Share Option Scheme and any other future share
option schemes of Bossini (excluding share options forfeited in accordance with
the terms of the Bossini Share Option Scheme or any other future share option
schemes of Bossini) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
on 12 November 2013, the date of the annual general meeting that Bossini
sought the approval of the shareholders of Bossini for the adoption of the Bossini
Share Option Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Bossini Share
Option Scheme was 162,077,939, which represented 10% of Bossini’s shares
inissue at 12 November 2013. As at the date of this report, the total number
of Bossini Shares available for issue under the Bossini Share Option Scheme

is 60,758,000, representing 2.46% of the existing number of issued Bossini
Shares. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
participant in the Bossini Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the total number of shares of Bossini in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

(Il) Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder

of Bossini, or to any of their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of Bossini, or to any of their respective associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of Bossini in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(hased on the closing price of Bossini's shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders” approval
in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by

the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Share
options granted during the term of the Bossini Share Option Scheme and remain
unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the Bossini
Share Option Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their
terms of grant within the exercise period for which such options are granted,
notwithstanding the expiry of the Bossini Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may
not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of Bossini's
shares on the date of grant of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of Bossini's shares for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of Bossini’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
(Il) Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued)
The following share options were outstanding during the year:

At 1 January 2021 RW_E2_—F—F—H

Granted/adjusted during the year RERRH BE
Forfeited/expired during the year RERRIEIH

At 31 December 2021 A —F+"F=+—H

Equity-settled share aption expenses of HK$8,363,000 (2020: nil) was recognized
in profit or loss in respect of the share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2021,

Notes:

(a) 15,925,000 (2020: Nil) share options granted were forfeited/expired during the
year ended 31 December 2021 upon the resignation of certain grantees during the year.

(b)  The fair values of the share options granted during the year ended 31 December
2021 were HK$22,300,000 in aggregate, which were estimated as at the respective dates
of grant using a binominal model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) % B2 (%)
Expected volatility (%) & HA R 1R (%)

Expected life of options (years)
Risk-free interest rate (%)

BIRERRER ()
i B R ) 2 (%)
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59.81-67.59
5.6-6.0
0.37-1.11



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
(Il) Share option scheme of a subsidiary (Continued)

(c)  The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021

Number of options

Exercise price* Exercise period

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

. Bkt (|
() MEBABZEKRESS (&)
(0 MRREMARBRTEBREZTEER
TTRBABET :

ZEE—H-HBEZZAE+Z
CE_CZE—H—-HREZZAE+C
—E_NE—-B—HEZZE-AE+Z

BREHE TEE* THEHE
('000) (HKS per share)
(F%) (FR&ET)
25,610 0.456 1 Jan 2022 to 31 Dec 2026
25,616 0.456 1 Jan 2023 to 31 Dec 2026
25,667 0.456 1 Jan 2024 to 31 Dec 2026
666 0.510 1 Jan 2022 to 31 Dec 2026
666 0.510 1 Jan 2023 to 31 Dec 2026
668 0.510 1 Jan 2024 to 31 Dec 2026
3,332 0.620 8 Aug 2022 to 7 Aug 2027
3,334 0.620 8 Aug 2023 to 7 Aug 2027
3,334 0.620 8 Aug 2024 to 7 Aug 2027
6,660 1.060 16 Nov 2022 to 15 Nov 2027
6,670 1.060 16 Nov 2023 to 15 Nov 2027
6,670 1.060 16 Nov 2024 to 15 Nov 2027
108,893

*

The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustment in the event of
any capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation, sub-division or reduction of the share

capital of Bossini (other than issuance of Ordinary Shares as consideration in respect of a
transaction)

ZE__HE—HF—HEZZEZAE+Z
ZE_=H—HF—HEIZTZAREL+Z
“E_NE—HF—-HBEZZEAE+ZA=
“E-__E)\BN\BEZZ=-t&/\BtH
“E-=HE)\BN\BEZZZ-t&/\BtH
—E_MENANEBEZE-_tE/\BtH
—E__F+—B+AHEZZZ-t&H+—H+HH
:§::$+ B+XBE-ZE-t&%+—H+AH

E_ME+—B+ABEZZE=-tF+—B+AH

CI:IJ ZI:IJ ZEIJ .IIJ an
TUE e T pe et

TEE
OmIMommm

BRETEETNREMRETEMERT
BT R RAGH  IFMASEIR GETTEBER
ERRZABERIN BEHAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S ¥

193



194

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

29. PERPETUAL CONVERTIBLE BONDS
The perpetual convertible bonds issued are as follows:

KA AR &S
BETZKAETBRKRESNOT -

2021 2020

—EB—F —E_EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Perpetual convertible bonds KA MR ES 810,621 933,646

On 30 August 2013, the Company entered into the Deed with Victory Mind
Assets Limited and Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited to advance the
timetable for the possible issuance of earn-out perpetual convertible bonds in
relation to the acquisition of approximately 25.2% equity interest of Li Ning Co
in December 2012, The execution and performance of the Deed were approved
in the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders on 4 November 2013. The
earn-out perpetual convertible bonds with a fair value of HK$1,140,000,000
were issued in advance in November 2013 and were classified as equity and
the related derivative financial liabilities were derecognised at the same time,
the financial impact of which was based on the fair value of earn-out perpetual
convertible bonds upon the Deed becoming effective.

Perpetual convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$19,500,000 (2020:
HK$205,400,000) were converted into 60,000,000 Ordinary Shares during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 632,000,000).

30. RESERVES

() The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

(i) The share option reserve represents the fair value of share options vested
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy of
share-based payments in Note 2.3 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when the related share options
are exercised, or transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses should the
related share options lapse or be forfeited.

(i) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-owned enterprise, a

portion of the profits of the Group’s wholly-owned-subsidiary which is established
in the PRC has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

N ZE—=F/\B=+H>&2aE HVictory
Mind Assets Limited5zDragon City Management (PTC)
Limiteds] Z B> UERMN S —ZF
+:)§H&E%?@’ATN’J%.Z%JMEWT i
TERAENKAM TR ESFNERRE-
ﬂﬁz S MBI _E—=%+—8B@X
EIﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁy%%ﬁb:ﬁiaé’éﬁ%?tt)&o’/}
F{E431,140,000,00078 7T 2 B ] 8 71K A4
MK EFsER _E—=FE+—HARA#%
ToUREAED R HEATERFE

BERLER HMBERERENZE
EMENRAENDKAETBRKRESZA

FiEsE-

HE_Z - F+ZB=+—HBLEEE"
A& S EEA19,500,0008 T (CE_BF !
205,400,00087T) Z KA TR ESE
i 460,000,000 ZER (CBE_FF .
632,000,00088) °

30. f#E
il *~EERFI—FEFAEBEH#HESEE
H e e aRsgesRN I o

iy BEFGBECHEBERTERRE
2RV E E—FFBHNMBRRME
2P IR EMNZ BB R -BAEEE
RN ARBREETERBEER N ®E
AR 0 SRS 7 R R AR SR R T AR R WA R 8
ERBEN,REEE

i) WEBEZ2BEBEEXZHEBERRZE
R AEBRPENILIZEZENE QRS
DN EBARRHBRZEHEEE-
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

As lessor

As at 31 December 20271 and 2020, the Group leased sports park facilities
and investment property to independent third parties under operating lease
arrangements, with each lease negotiated for a term of 1 to 10 years.

As at 31 December 20271 and 2020, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

31 December 2021 —F

REHERH
W%&ﬁk

KRB — A" EEEF+_RA=1—
B> AEERBEEHAERFABILE=
Rk EYE EBEE

HHEEE EE
KiEmr AN EI0E-

O AR AR 5 5 T e
ERE MR FIUBM IS B REAEE

—F+"A=+—H

2021 2020
B —F —EEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year — &R 7,821 11,394
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRLF (BEEEME) 11,305 6,389
Over five years HEEMUE 5,770 2,726
24,896 20,509
32. COMMITMENTS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 32 B ZKIE
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had the following commitments N TE T EFER_ETEF+_A=Z+—
for capital expenditure: H> ARE@EES U TN E R AE !
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BETAERERE .
Property, plant and equipment ME-BEMERE 101,944 10,026
Capital contribution/acquisition of joint ventures/associates S+ & WS = %
/N 19,847 17,349
121,791 27,375
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with related parties in the ordinary

33. ERFAEALRS
BRI BB REMIBOFAHERZ TS
Sho REBENB BB IBR T L RS

course of business during the year: ATETUTEARRZS :
2021 2020
—E—F —_ECEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By &% FET FABT
Marketing service income from associates REBE AR 2 HIGEE
ARFS UL A (i 229,106 199,695
Purchases from an associate m— R E QB RE (il 9,542 7,543
Sales of goods to an assaciate m—REEEABHEESm (i) 67,637 3,974
Office and car-park rental expense MBS AR MW AER
to associates EEGEERS (iv) 2,889 1,947
Dividend received from associates BB ERBTIZKRE V) 82,247 68,058
Consultancy and other service income RE—EEE AR 2R &
from an associate HMARFE UL A (vi) 2,618 586
Sales of goods to a non-controlling m—%IEERRREE S M
shareholder (vii) 2,191 -

(i) Marketing service income from LN Group™ and Double Happiness® in
relation to some sports events and competitions and the endorsement of brand
products of LN Group™ and Double Happiness* managed by the Group, was
charged in accordance with the terms negotiated between the related parties.

(i) Purchases in relation to brand products of LN Group*, was charged in
accordance with the terms negotiated between the Group and LN Group™.

(i) Sales of goods in relation to brand products of the Group to LN Group*,
was charged in accordance with the terms negotiated between the Group and LN
Group™.

(iv)  During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group leased
certain offices and car-parking spaces from LN Group* and Double Happiness®.
The lease rates were determined after arm's length negotiations between the
related parties with reference to current prevailing market rate.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

) PEFXEREEZETESREERE
ERFEERRAEE ZREBERNEM
NFEER RAALE BN HIGHERERS
WE A ¥ A AR R B] 49 75 173 RE 2 IR RSB o

(i) HFTEEEWEELHEBRBREIE
I £ 2= = £ (B4 RE PO AR AR UK ER ©

iy HEFEEEEWNAEEREERS
i ERIER A E E R FEEE R EMNK
FUTEY o

) RBE-S-—GER-E-_ZE+=
B=+—BLEE s&ERRATEEE"
RAME ZETHATREEM - BHAE
SEBEMTOASERTDHKTEA
TREGEE-
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(v)  The dividend received were made pursuant to the dividend rates proposed
and declared by Li Ning Co™ and Double Happiness™.

(vi)  The consultancy and other service income was charged in accordance with
the terms of an agreement entered into between the Group and an associate.

(vii)  Sales of goods to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary was
charged in accordance with the terms negotiated between the Group and the non-
controlling shareholder.

Mr. Li Ning and Mr. Li Qilin, the nephew of Mr. Li Ning, are common directors of the
Company, LN Group and Double Happiness.

(a) Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as included in revenue, other
income and other gains-net, trade debtors and bills receivable are disclosed in
Notes 5 and 18 to the financial statements.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Details of directors’ emoluments and highest paid individuals are included in Notes
8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.

All related party transactions set out in this note did not fall within the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

34. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-
SALE
34(a) Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H
3. EARAEALRS @

v BURREDLREBEFEEAG KIAES"
BEMEIRZKREEETE -

V) ERREMRFBEARESERR—
BBt E A B 5T 1L 2 17 5% BY R AR UER ©

Vi) M—FENBATN—RIFERRKRRH
EERNREBERERERAZIFERRRGE
ZIRRRE -

FERERFTHEBITE (FEEENET)
REABFEEARAMEEHFES-

(a) PAEANLZRMEER

A5 B 5T A W ~ E AU A R H Ath i = 0%
B BRI R BN RE 2 E A L& ER
ZHBEMFRARWEO K165 EE -

(b) FERETEEIEAESZHH
EEEMNERESHFALZESE D5
NN T E N ELYREE

KW 2PMEBEA TR Z T AER
GEM_Em#RBISE20Z B N e (R 3 57 ]
o IFERER S o

4. PHEATESEEREGR

M) NEATEHEAEE

Notes 2021 2020

B 5 & = Jal- <3 2

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFABT

Investment properties KREY (b) 184,730 =
Stock of properties MEES (a) - 305,411
Other receivable HAh g W18 (a) - 640
Total 4a =t 184,730 306,051
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

34. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR- PDEAGESEREE®
SALE (CONTINUED)
34(b) Liabilities of disposal group classified as held-for-sale Uh)DEAFEHSER
Notes 2021 2020
Igﬁ.g\f :g:_ﬂi —v—vﬂi
HK$’000 HK$ 000
F#ET TET
Other payables HpE [ #IE @) - 39
Notes: M =%
(@  Asat 31 December 2020, the assets and liabilities classified as held for sales was @ RIE_ZFE+_HB=+—H ' DEAF
related to Yangzhou Viva Property Development Limited (the “Target Company”), a non- EEERBEABZM 3?)1%1’@% B ?’fﬁ [RAE]
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. (TEERT)) B 2o ArEBIEREN
BAF
In the fourth quarter of 2020, the management of the Group decided to sell a parcel of AT _TEFNSE AEBEEFATLE
vacant land adjacent to Yangzhou Li Ning Sports Park which was originally acquired for — RSN FRESENZEE i TR
commercial and residential development of Yangzhou sports community. The Group had MERBRIEBNESHENBEXRETER
initiated a program to locate a buyer for selling the Target Company which held the vacant AEBEME A8 PEERULERARE
land. Therefore, the associated assets and liabilities were presented as held for sale in the EfMPNBEREAT A HEEEREERZ
financial statements as at 31 December 2020. f{ ﬁg—f— ZR=+—HHNEBBREXFENA
~F /E = °

On 16 March 2021, Viva China Yangzhou Community Development Holdings Limited (the
“Seller”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the share purchase
agreement with Yangzhou City Huacheng Property Development Limited (the “Buyer”),
pursuant to which the Seller agreed to sell and the Buyer agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital in the Target Company at a consideration of RMB313.69 million.

In March 2021, the Seller has transferred 90% issued share capital of Target Company to
the Buyer in according to the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement. The Transaction had
been completed after the transfer of remaining 10% issued share capital of Target Company
to the Buyer in October 2021,

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 16 March 2021.

Total cash consideration for the disposal was HK$375,801,000 (equivalent to
RMB313,690,000), net assets disposed of were HK$319,722,000, exchange
fluctuation reserve previous recognized to the consolidated statement of profit or loss of
HK$3,212,000 was reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss resulting
in a gain of disposal HK$52,867,000. Net cash inflow arising on disposal of such was
HK$364,186,000, net-off bank balances and cash disposal of HK$11,615,000.

(b)  On 30 December 2021, Rapid City Limited (“Rapid City", a wholly owned subsidiary
of Bossini), Shine Wealthy Limited (“Shine Wealthy”, an independent purchaser) and Knight
Frank Hong Kong Limited (the “Agent”) entered into two provisional sale and purchase
agreements (the “Provisional Agreements”) for the sale and purchase of two properties
held by Rapid City at the aggregate consideration of HK$184,729,500. Pursuant to the
terms of the Provisional Agreements, Rapid City and Shine Wealthy entered into the formal
agreements on 13 January 2022. The transaction was completed on 15 March 2022,
Therefore, the associated assets were presented as held for sale in the financial statements
as at 31 December 2021,

Details of the above were set out in Bossini's announcements dated 30 December 2021,

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

B —F= EJr/\EI’ZIK’ E?F%ﬁl‘ﬁ%/&
TﬂF)'LEF‘I%z N4t (& FH 2 1R

bl
4%1&%@ UL Eﬁ@%‘itﬂ ’ﬁ'ﬁ%‘iﬁ@%‘\
WEBEABE2MBEETRE KEAA
313,690,0007T °

ST —F =5 > BHERBEBRIGENER

H—JEW TEUQOO/OE§*1THRZK$§ED§%DEE K=
—_—F+BEBRAARKRAGRNI0%EETR

Kﬁiiiu%émi%iﬁ@ aZﬁQ%EmEEO

BB A2RARBHBRAZE " —F=4
+RBZRG.

3W9 722, OOO%TV?EHUE’?%?S?E %%6’@ 3
B E3,212,0008 LB DB E S S8
B4 H B W& 52,867, ooo%moﬁﬁ Hj%ﬁﬁ
HIIE 4 7 AR B8 4364,186,00038 70 (K305
ISR T A5 R R ELS11,615,00038 70) ©

b RIEZ—F+"B=+H>EFHEBR
NE (TEAE > AEMEZ2ERBAT) =
BERAR (TR —RBILER) R (F
) ARAE (MIEBA) ﬁ’f,\/\EE%*'Ji&hﬁE’]
Wﬁf%%ﬂifﬁfﬁﬁuﬂ BB ((ERRFiREl) -
(B A184,729,5008 7T - IRIBERFF 758 2 (&
Tw%%lJiﬁJzéﬂh@EﬁA T _F—HF+=H%]
VUERXpZ -ZRZEN _E__F=ZHA+=%
Hem At HEAEENR _SE _—F+_H
=+ —HMEEREPE2IAFELE -

LREENFBEHNEMERMNS T —F
+TZA=1THHAH-
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021: B2+ "_HB=+—HFFENRBAA

Company name

DB

Viva China Development Limited
ERFEEEBRAE

Winner Rich Investment Limited
XA EREERAT

Viva China Sports Holding Limited
FERFEREERERAR

Viva China Community Development Holdings Limited

FAREHEREZRERAT

HEREFNREEEXCEXREREE
B (BREH)

BN REEERRAT

KEREFNEERBEERRAR

BEMEEREX(ERRAH

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and

operations
MR SR
R

BV
RERZES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BE

BV
HEREZES

PRC
FE

PRC

e

PRC
e

PRC
FE

PRC

e

PRC
e

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H
35. B ATIHE

SHBERIMTE

Issued
ordinary
shares/paid up Percentage of equity Principal
capital  attributable to the Company activities
BRITEER
BERE FARAEGKRAIEIE TEEH
Direct Indirect
B# iEE
US$1 & HK$2,079,000,000 100% - Investment holding
12571 %2,079,000,000% 75 KREER
HK$1 100% —  Investment holding
1B REER
HK$520,000 100% —  Investment holding
520,000 ¢ KREER
US$1 100% — Investment holding
(B REER
RMB150,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
AR #150,000,0007T KREER
RMB38,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
(Note iv)
A #38,000,0007T REER
(i)
RMB125,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
A #125,000,0007T REER
RMB12,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
AR #12,000,0007T KREER
RMB3,500,000 - 100% Investment holding
(Note iif)
A #3,500,0007% REER
(P 3Eii)
RMB300,000 - 100% Investment holding
AE#300,0007¢ REER

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 S ¥

199



200

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

371 December 2021

B —F+"RFB=+—H

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Company name

G-

AT ENEE X CEXERERAH

LBBEUENEEZRERAT

FRPERE (LB) BRAS

LBERREERAR

FEREH (L) HEBFRAR

HBEEES X ERRAF

BEEAUBEXIEARAR

N EMEF X ERRAH

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and

operations
SR FE
REEME
PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

I

PRC
HE
PRC

HE

PRC
I

RETREREERBXERRERERERA PR

HE

Issued

ordinary
shares/paid up
capital
BRITLER/
BRRAE

RMB500,000

(Note i)

AR #500,00075
()

RMBO
(Note x)
AREZR

(Bfy=Ex)

RMBO
(Note xi)
AREBZ T

(P Exi)

RMBO

(Note xii)
AREST
(Bf i)

RMBO

(Note xii)
AREBET
(Bft i)

RMB2,000,000

(Note xiv)

A #2,000,00075
(Ffd 3xiv)

RMB100,000
AE#100,0007%

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007%

RMB300,000
AR #300,0007%

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

35. MEBATIFE @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

FRAREEREE R
Direct Indirect
H# %

- 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

Principal
activities

TEEH

Retailing and distribution of garments

MREERD#H

Retailing and distribution of garments

MREERD#H

Retailing and distribution of garments

HREERDH

Retailing and distribution of garments

BRREERDH

Provision of supply chain management
services

RHRHEEERRS

Sports park management and operation

EEEEEREE

Sports park management and operation

REEEEREE

Sports park management and operation
REREENER

Sports park management and operation
BREEENEE



35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Company name

AR

BNFEREEX(EERAT

BT ENEEEEERAT

ERAUEEXIEERAT

BEMEERESX(LARAH

REMEEEE X CERARSEAT

HBBEECHREEERRAF

FNEHEEZR ObR) BRAT

ERENEHEEHEEEEEARA

FENER 8) BERKERBRAR

ol

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and

operations
AR B R
RS E

PRC
e

PRC
e

PRC
e

PRC
FE
PRC
e
PRC
e

PRC

e

PRC
FE

PRC

FE

Issued

ordinary
shares/paid up
capital
BRTEER/
HRRE

RMB300,000
AR #300,0007%

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007T

RMBO
(Note vi)
AREZ

(Pt 5vi)

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007T

RMB100,000,000
AR #100,000,0007T
RMB102,100,000

(Note i)

AR #102,100,0007T
(Pt 5
RMB25,000,000

AR #25,000,0007T

RMB2,000,000
(Note v)

AE#2,000,00075
(Bt )

31 December 2021

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

FRAREMGREERL

Direct Indirect
E# iEE
- 100%

= 100%

= 80%

= 100%

- 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 70%

B —&+"RB=+—H

35. MEBABFE @

Principal
activities

TELH

Sports park management and operation
BEEEEREE

Sports park management and operation
EEEEEREE

Sports park management and operation
BEEEEREE

Sports park management and operation

EFREEKEE

Sports park management and operation
BEEEEREE

Project investment and property
development consultancy services

BERE KRB ERRERRS

Sports talent management, competition
and event production and
management, and sports-related
marketing and consultancy service

BEATER BEREDHRE
REERESEMTGHEE
KBRS

Provision of development consultancy
Services

RUFELARSE

Provision of scientific physical
rehabilitation training and health
management services

RENBEEREIRREEE
EIR%
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Company name

G-

LBREBHAARRAT

FMNEANKERBRAF

LBAINKERBRAF

LBRBRBENKABRAF

FNEBERNKERBRAT

BRRER bR) BEERBRAF

fERBRA (L) BkALSERAR

RETEERARSARERAR

MINGEREEX(EBRAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and

operations
SR FE
REEME

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC
I

PRC
HE

PRC
I

Issued

ordinary
shares/paid up
capital
BRITLER/
BRRAE

RMB100,000

AE#100,0007%

RMBO

(Note xv)

ARBZT
(=20

RMB100,000

AE#100,0007%

RMBO

(Note vii)

ARBZT
(B i)

RMB825,000
(Note ix)

AR #825,0007¢
(ED))

RMB14,312,160
AE#14,312,1607T

RMB5,000,000
A K #5,000,0007%

RMB5,000,000
A #5,000,0007%

RMB500,000
AR %500,00070

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

35. MEBATIFE @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

FRAREEREE R
Direct Indirect

Hi% &
- 100%

= 100%

99%

= 99%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

Principal
activities

TEEH

Production and distribution of sports
content, management and marketing
of sports talents

BENBRERET BEAL
BERMGHE

Production and distribution of sports
content, management and marketing
of sports talents

BENBRERET BEAL
BERMGHE

production and distribution of sports
content, management and marketing
of sports talents

BENBRERET BEAL
BERMGHE

production and distribution of sports
content, management and marketing
of sports talents

BENBRERET BEAL
BERMGHE

production and distribution of sports
content, management and marketing
of sports talents

BENBRERET BEAL
BERMGHE

Operation of ice-skating rinks
SEBAG

Operation of ice-skating rinks
EERKS

Operation of ice-skating rinks
SEBAG

Operation of ice-skating rinks
EERKS



35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Company name

AR

FMm2BEERAREX(EBRAR

RET2HERKBENEERAT

REERNEXERAT

Active Link Limited
ShBERAR

Bossini Clothing Limited

Bossini Distribution Limited
EREMHEERLE

Bossini Enterprises Limited
ERRECERRAT

Bossini Onmay International Limited
EfRE L XERBRAF

Bossini Garment Limited

Bossini Investment Limited

Bossini International Holdings Limited

EhEEREERRAT

Bossini Retail Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and

operations
AR B R
RS E

PRC
e

PRC
e

PRC

HE
Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
)

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
)

BVI
HEEUHE

Bermuda

BRE

Hong Kong
B

Issued

ordinary
shares/paid up
capital
BRTEER/
HRRE

RMB500,000
AR #500,0007%

RMB5,000,000
AR #5,000,0007T

RMB35,000,000
(Note vii)
AR #35,000,0007%
(e

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 7t

HK$2
2B

HK$1
187

HK$2
2B

HK$2
2B

HK$2
2B

US$11,928
11,928% 7T

HK$164,383,000
164,383,000 70

HK$2
2B

31 December 2021

B —&+"RB=+—H

35. MEBABFE @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ERAEEERET AT
Direct Indirect
E# iEE

- 100%

= 100%

= 70%

= 70.7%

= 70.7%

= 70.7%

= 70.7%

= 70.7%

= 70.7%

= 70.7%

= 70.7%

= 70.7%

Principal
activities

TEER
Operation of ice-skating rinks
HERAS

Operation of ice-skating rinks
SEBKS

manufacturing of shoes

EEHT

Retailing and distribution of garments
RREERDH

Retailing and disribution of garments

AT &R

Retailing and distribution of garments
RREERDH

Retailing and disribution of garments

AT &R

Retailing and distribution of garments
RREERDH

Distribution of garments

A 35

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REER

Retailing and distribution of garments
RREERDH
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 35. MiEBAEFHE @
Place of
incorporation/ Issued
registration ordinary
and shares/paid up Percentage of equity Principal
Company name operations capital attributable to the Company  activities
SR FE BRITLER/
RE4TE REEME HRERA ERATEGREEAL  EEEH
Direct Indirect
H# if
Bright Star Fashion Limited Macau MOP$25,000 - 70.7% Retailing and distribution of garments
REREBRAE HP 25,0002 75 MREE RDH
BENTERREEBEERAT PRC RMB1,010,000 = 70.7%  Retailing and distribution of garments
HE AK#1,010,0007c BREERDH
ENERRESZERAE PRC RMB148,000,000 = 70.7%  Retaling and distribution of garments
HE AR #148,000,0007T RREE R D
J & R Bossini Fashion Pte, Ltd. Singapore 5G6$2,000,000 - 70.7%  Retailing and distribution of garments
FiE 2,000,000%f A03% 7T BREERDH
Lead Commence Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 70.7% Retailing and distribution of garments
URBEEERAT ) 2BTT MREE RDH
J & R Bossini Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 70.7% Investment holding
EHRREEEERAR ) 28T REZK
Kacono Trading Limited BYI HK$2,000 - 70.7% Investment holding
ERELHES 2,000 7T RERR
Key Value Trading Limited BvI US$100 = 70.7% Investment holding
EBERUHE 100%7T REZK
Land Challenger Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 70.7% Investment holding
BEERAT ) 2BTT RERR
Burling Limited BVI US$100 - 70.7% Licensing of trademarks
AMERATE EBERUHE 100370 Bl
Rapid City Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 70.7% Property holding and letting
RERHAERAE ) 2BTT MEFBERHEE
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

() The registered capital of ‘RN TIENBEEXIEEXERERAT is

RMB1,000,000.

(i) The registered capital of IEN4BHFE R EE (ER) BRAF is
RMB150,000,000.

iy The registered capital of BRBHEZIFNEEREEIEF R AT is
RMB5,000,000.

(iv)  The registered capital of Bk /B2 ZmE B 5% B R A & is RMB100,000,000.

(v The registered capital of JE LB (BkE) AR ERERBR AR i

RMB3,333,333.

(vi)  The registered capital of FEE T EZRE B XEBRATE is

RMB10,000,000.

(vii)  The registered capital of =78 PRI B A8 45 F 2B R 8] is RMB100,000.

(vii) ~ The registered capital of 2R & ZE R 1 #£ 25 R A Al is RMB45,000,000.

(i)  The registered capital of &k & &= Rl 2 E AR E is RMB1,000,000.

(x)  The registered capital of E/BEBHIENEXEZRERAT i
RMB300,000.

(x)  The registered capital of JF R AFEE A (=78) A BRA A is RMB5,000,000.

(xii)  The registered capital of = /8421 AREEH PBRAF is RMB500,000.

(xiii)  The registered capital of JEFL4ERE (L78) (LIESEA R AT is

RMB1,000,000.

(xiv)  The registered capital of #8848 58 B X {65 IR A & is RMB5,000,000.

(xv)  The registered capital of #K N Z&ARHEHZ AR A is RMB1,000,000.

Apart from BRBEZFFNBRER S XICEZFREREEED L
(B BR & 8) being registered as limited partnership, all the other principal
subsidiaries of the Company are registered as limited liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

35. fEATEE @

W&t

0 FYFENEBEXCEXELZREREARZ
EMEAS AR 1,000,0005T ©

(i) FEFESEEHEE ER) BRAEZEM
EARA AR %150,000,0007T °

iy HRERBIFNEEREEERRARZEE
ME A% AR #5,000,0007T ©

vy HEEERZEZERABZAMELRS
A R #8100,000,0007T °

v JERLER B BEREZEEAERATZ
EMEAS AR 3,333,33370 ©

vi EEMEEBEXEERARZEMESR
2 A\ R #10,000,0007T ©

Vi) EBANEEESETEERARZEMELSS
AR #100,0007T °

vii) REBEBRNBEEZFBRABDZFMELARA
R #545,000,0007T °

i BINEBBEERREERERARZAMELRS
2 AR #1,000,0007T °

N EEEHENCEEEBRABDZAME
54 A R #8300,0007T ©

x) FERMEERF (&
2 A\ R #5,000,0007T °

iy EELERRERRABZAMEARAR
#500,0007T °

(xii) JERLLERE (L8 HEEBRATZAEME
&% AR #1,000,0007T ©

B ARABZFEMER

(xiv) TEEHEES X EERAT ZAEMELSS
AR #85,000,0007 °

) BINBERBREAERABZAMELA AR
#1,000,0007T ©

FIREBRBIFNBREBSXIEEXRER
EEERL (AREB AZMABRER
ShoFRBARBZEMEEZNB AT
MARBRAT -

ERFIERBDZMBAR  EFRD &
SHBLRARAIERNFAEEBNTEL
N AEEEEFEZITEH D - EFR
AV EMKB AR ZENEERRRER
RITEe
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+"B=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE KRB ZMBERARREHEEES

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

206

2021 2020
—EB—F —E-EHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME~ BB R E 1,106 2,066
Right-of-use asset EREEE = 2,133
Investments in subsidiaries KRB A 2 RE 1,376,837 1,376,837
Total non-current assets ERIEELEE 1,377,943 1,381,036
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries AN =N ERE 3,376,610 1,587,620
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE 1 FRIE ~ ?ﬁ%&
H 1t & I =R B 47,903 49,474
Cash and bank balances IR K IRITAEBR 1,908,291 1,220,396
Total current assets MENE EMEE 5,332,804 2,857,490
CURRENT LIABILITIES piik 2 R=R
Due to subsidiaries FE1I Y B8 A =) R 1B 39,477 140,695
Lease liability HEas - 2,412
Other payables and accruals HMENRIBERESE R 5,148 6,157
Total current liabilities B e E4EEE 44,625 149,264
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENBEERE 5,288,179 2,708,226
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BERERREBERE
LIABILITIES 6,666,122 4,089,262
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBEE
Due to a subsidiary FE— M B A BRI 4,990,000 2,361,217
Total non-current liability SERBEELRLE 4,990,000 2,361,217
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,676,122 1,728,045
EQUITY #m
Issued capital B 21T A 27 481,062 474,817
Perpetual convertible bonds KA MR HRRR EH 29 810,621 933,646
Reserves B @) 384,439 319,582
TOTAL EQUITY HEm4azE 1,676,122 1,728,045

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the board of

directors on 18 March 2022.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i

36. ARBZMBRRRRFHEES

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#8)
Note: FsE -
(@)  Reserve movement of the Company @) ZARABZHEEBED
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
BB iE Bk
BIE i g st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET FTET THET
At 1 January 2020 A\_E_EE—-A—H 2,543,460 56,824 (2,444,136) 156,148
Profit for the year and total comprehensive loss for the  ERVRFI R ERL EGIBLE - = 282,277 282,277
year
Shares issued upon conversion of perpetual convertible 7K A M AT HA AR 15 551 0 #A By 3% 173,800 - = 173,800
bonds 1285
Equity-settled share option arrangements R EEE  BRETH = 5,862 = 5,862
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture or R BE RRAE A2 UR B0 2 m B % = (17,834) 17,834 =
expiry of share options PR
Dividend paid ENRE (298,505) - - (298,505)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R_E-FF+"F=+—H 2,418,755 44,852 (2,144,025) 319,582
kZZ2Z—F—F—H
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for ~ EFLRFI R ER L E I A5 - - 1,385,824 1,385,824
the year
Share issued upon exercise of share option ERERTERE T RO 46,207 (17,002) - 29,205
Shares issued upon conversion of perpetual convertible 7k A M PTHRAR (B 5 1€ R 1A B 3% 120,025 - - 120,025
bonds TZR%B
Equity-settled share option arrangements REER 2 BRERH - 33,922 - 33,922
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture or AR EBIRAEH R I T /@ T B 8 438 - (30,387) 30,387 -
expiry of share options PR
Dividend paid EftlE (1,504,119) - - (1,504,119)
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—£+-B=+-8 1,080,868 31,385 (727,814) 384,439
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of financial instruments in
its ordinary course of operations and in its investment activities. The Group does
not have written risk management policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors of the Company meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures
to manage the Group's exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest risk and other price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. Generally, the
Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk management. The Group

enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts.

The purpose is to manage the foreign currency risk arising from the Group’s
operations. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed are
discussed below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has interest-bearing assets and liabilities in relation to cash at banks and bank
loans, details of which are disclosed in Notes 20 and 25, respectively, to the
financial statements. The Group has not used any financial instrument to hedge
potential fluctuations in interest rates. The exposure to interest rates risk for the
Group’s cash at banks and bank loans are considered minimal.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument (excluding investment in associates) will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group operates in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Macau and Singapore. Most of the sales and frading transactions are settled in
RMB and HK$. Amounts invested into various bank deposits are denominated

in RMB and HK$. As at the end of the reporting period, foreign currencies were
translated into HK$ at the closing rate. As at 31 December 2021, cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB and domiciled outside the PRC amounted
to HK$104,193,000 (2020: HK$73,478,000), cash and bank balances
denominated in GBP amounted to HK$15,794,000 (2020: HK$269,484,000),
cash and bank balances denominated in SG$ amounted to HK$26,453,000
(2020: HK$23,541,000), cash and bank balance denominated in MOP
amounted HK$9,599,000 (2020: HK$13,670,000) and the remaining balance
of HK$2,373,624,000 (2020: HK$1,477,268,000) was mainly denominated
in HK$ and domiciled outside the PRC or denominated in RMB and domiciled in
the PRC. Moreover, financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
denominated in GBP amounted to HK$587,129,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$271,874,000). It is the Group's policy to enter into forward currency
contracts to mitigate foreign currency risk arising from material fransactions
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollar. The policies to manage
foreign currency risk have been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

37. WBEAKREEBRKREER

AEERENAEEBARRETHREA
ZUHBTEARYBRRE AEBTES
HEREEEBRRRES AM ARRES
SEHBTER oM AHIETERUERE
AEBAZZTHERAR (BFEINEREE T
KERREMERER)  REBEEREER
EERR - —RME > ~EEXRAEERAR
EERE - AEFHTUZENERZ T2
BERPEBEGHN HENSEEREE
BEBREEZINERRE KSEBFAR
ZEREBRUYHFRBRIE T XA

2= L b
MERERTSEMB TR Z AFEHRE M
EgBEHmEANXEHMER NS ZERE
o-rEBAFREERBRE P RIRTER
T MIRITTER - BRAFBORRMBRE
MY 5E20 82 254K B8 o A 5 B i oK {68 R AR AT 75
TENPEBEEFNR IS cEEBETHEE
RIRITERZH) R R AR S o

4 1 [ Bz

EERRIESETE FaERB=EA G2
BE) ZATFESAKEBEE RS BEXRS
FmEEZz A e REBMNHE FE B
FIRHFINEEE A DHEREER 5
DANR¥EKRBTEE RENRZHEIRITZ
HEEUNRE R BITEHE - RIS HIZR > 4b
IR ERBREAB T KRB - —&
+-HA=+—8 ' UARBsELEFERR
BN 2 IR RIBITAER2104,193,000
B (CETEE 73,478,000 70) 0 U HE
FEETEMNIR S RIR1T4585215,794,00058 7T
(ZE T4 269,484,000 7T) > LUEMO
Wt st ER IR K IR 1745 6% 426,453,000
BT (ZEZZEF 23,541,000 5w) » UL
P TTstE 2 IRS RIB1T4A5 88 7%49,599,000
BT (ZEZEH :13,670,00085T) »
MERZE2, 373,624,000 (ZE-_E4F .
1,477,268,0007%8 7t) Bl EEBLUBTEHEL 7
MR R EIR N U A R ESTELFERIR T
BiER- I M B —F+_/F=+—
H> MEFEAENEBEZREAFESE
2B E BE4A587,129,0008 T (ZF
A D 271,874,000 7T) c AEE B R
A IEAE SN LURELUE T UG
A BEZEARZESE 2 NS A o 2
EERNBEHE—BHETINE R EER
RO URBZEBRTZAM
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to

foreign currency risk at year end date.

If RMB appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results of the Group
would be increased/decreased by approximately HK$5,210,000 (2020:
HK$6,287,000).

If GBP appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results of the Group
would be increased/decreased by approximately HK$29,674,000 (2020:
HK$22,663,000).

If SG$ appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results of the Group would
be increased/decreased by approximately HK$1,326,000 (2020: HK$983,000).

If MOP appreciates/depreciates against HK$ by 5%, the results of the Group
would be increased/decreased by approximately HK$480,000 (2020:
HK$571,000).

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligations under the terms of the financial instrument and
cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its operations.
The carrying amounts of trade debtors and bills receivable, deposits and other
receivable carried at amortised cost and cash and cash equivalents included in
the face of the statements of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

The Group generally has established long-term and stable relationships with

its customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group generally
allows credit period of one month extending up to six months to its major trade
customers. The credit risk of other receivables arises from that borrowers fail to
repay loans on time. The Group has assessed the credit status of each borrower
and the value of the collaterals has been taken into account when calculating the
provision for impairment. The Group's historical experience in collection of trade
and other receivables falls within the recorded allowance and the directors are of
the opinion that adequate allowance for credit loss for uncollectible receivables
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

fiA 75 L B

HRE DT
THERESTERBNRELR AR ZI
HRBREE -

EERERREE @

i AR #E %mﬂﬁ/ﬁz{m%:ﬁuzl:%l
BRI, 495,210,000 T (ZEZ
T4 © 6,287,000 7T) ©

MEERBTHEZE% B AEEE
SN R 492967400058 T (ZEZ
T4 22,663,0005 7T) ©

W TR ABTHE,BZES @ BARE
B SR, R 491,326,000 7T (Z=
_VE : 983,0005 7T) °©

W3R T RBITHE,ZE% > B AER
BRI, R 49480,0008 T (CBE IS
£ 1 571,00057T) ©

EEmE
EERBEVBIAZXZH A RERE
MHITAZERBTHEER 2 F-&EX
RUBBERZAR AEBARZEER
SETERENAEEBBETAZTRET
ZIEE - BUWERM KR E W RE -~ % 88
Kt BZREREMBWREBENRRE R
RESEYZREESAMBRRE K
REAEEMEMBEEAR ZRSEER
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JTele]
9N

FEESZEERTRFREUIRMBREZH
FRoAEBEEFRIEHRUEFRAE RIFE
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TEESERPRERHZEERNTFIER =6
R+ F - HithEURIER 5 & A KRR
RERNEEZRHEEEER AEED T
BB ERARGEENRD > W55 R E &
W St R IR AV EE - AE B EWEUE
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents with reputable banks in

Mainland China and Hong Kong, therefore the directors consider that the credit

risk for such is minimal. The credit and investment policies have been followed by

the Group since prior years and are considered to have been effective in limiting

the Group's exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model to financial assets measured at
cost, including trade debtors and bills receivable, deposits and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalent.

Impairment on trade debtors and bills receivable, and deposit and other
receivables is measured as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition by considering available, reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

Trade debtors and bills receivable, and deposit and other receivables are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there

is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in payments, and the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. WHEEKREEBERBE @)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Trade debtors and bill receivables FE Ut BR R R FE U ZE 48
To measure the expected credit losses, trade debtors and bills receivable have A EEREEBE BURERAEWKRE
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. BEEREBEEENGEERMEE R aIRXE
D#H o
Less than 3t06 More than
3 months months 6 months
CGurrent past due past due past due Total
BELR ABZER bk chebc)
BN =R 88 ~NEA At
31 December 2021 “2—%+ZHA=+—H
Expected loss rate FEHEEE 0.2% 0.3% 15.4% 97.2% 6.5%
Gross carrying amount BEREE 71,623 18,208 2,598 6,325 104,754
Loss allowance BiEEE (158) (53) (400) (6,147) (6,758)
77,465 18,155 2,198 178 97,996
31 December 2020 “EEE+"A=+—H
Expected loss rate TBHEBIEX 0.2% 2.5% 33.3% 84.8% 16.5%
Gross carrying amount BEREE 61,610 13,858 8,319 15,452 99,239
Loss allowance BEEE (132) (340) (2,770) (13,110) (16,352)
61,478 13,518 5,549 2,342 82,887

The movement of loss allowances for trade debtors and bill receivables during the ERNERRTRERERE 2 FEEES

year is as follows: ;N -
2021 2020
—E—F _ECEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
As at 1 January w—B—H 16,352 20,758
Net impairment loss (reversed)/recognised B (&) R EEEPEE (9,893) (5,765)
Currency translation difference b 12 = 2 299 1,359
As at 31 December R+"B=+—8H 6,758 16,352
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deposits and other receivables

The management of the Group makes periodic collective assessments as well

as individual assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other receivables

based on historical settlement records and past experiences looking forward. The

Group measures credit risk using probability of default (‘PD"), which is similar to

the approach used for the purposes of measuring expected credit loss (“ECL")

under HKFRS 9.

° Deposits and other receivables that are not credit-impaired on initial
recognition are classified in ‘Stage 1" and have their credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The expected credit loss is measured on a 12-month
basis.

o If a significant increase in credit risk (specifically, when the debtor is more
than 1 day past due on its contractual payments) since initial recognition is
identified, the financial instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2' but is not yet deemed to
be credit-impaired. The expected credit 10ss is measured on lifetime basis.

o If the financial instrument is credit-impaired (specifically, when the debtor is
more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments), the financial instrument
is then moved to ‘Stage 3'. The expected credit loss is measured on lifetime
basis.

In view of the history of cooperation with the debtors and collection from them,
deposits and other receivables of approximately HK$129,937,000 are classified
in Stage 1 as at 31 December 20271 (2020: HK$118,983,000) and the credit
risk inherent in these other receivables is not significant. The average loss rate of
2% was applied as at the 31 December 2021 (2020: 2%).
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. MHERAKREEEERBE @)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
For the remaining deposits and other receivables of approximately N _E _—F+_"_HB=+—HHE —F&%
HK$93,735,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$113,236,000), it was R EL A FE UK 2R IB 4993, 735,000 7T (2B =
classified in Stage 3 and the loss allowance associated with these deposits and T4 1 113,236,000 7T) EDEAE =MEEL
other receivables was approximately HK$93,735,000 as at 31 December 2021 i 8l 52 5 1% & K H Ah FE Uk 70 18 48 B A9 &S
(2020: HK$93,505,000). BEET E\ E—HF+ZHA=1+—HH%
93,735,000 7t (ZZF ZF £ : 93,505,000
JT) °©
The movement of loss allowances for deposits and other receivables during the ERN - e REMERRIE Z FHEERES
year is as follows: ;N -
2021 2020
T —EEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
As at 1 January n—BE—H 94,836 88,166
Net impairment loss recognised Eﬁﬁwﬁfﬁﬁiﬂé FER 727 6,039
Currency translation difference BAERE 450 631
As at 31 December Eé—f—:)ﬂ =+—H 96,013 94,836
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its

obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash

or another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of

settlement of trade payables, other payables and accruals and bank loans, also in

respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated basis by
carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term financial
liabilities as well as forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day to day and week to
week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 3 months projection. Long-term
liquidity needs for a 180-day and 365-day lookout period are identified monthly.
Net cash requirements are compared to available funds in order to determine
headroom or any shortfalls. This analysis shows if available funds are expected

to be sufficient over the lookout period. The Group maintains cash and short-
term bank deposits to meet its liquidity requirements for 90 days to 365 days at
a minimum. Funding for longer term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an
adequate amount of borrowings and the ability to sell longer term financial assets.
The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon the cash received from its trade
customers.

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Apart from the non-current bank loan disclosed in Notes 25 for the financial
statements, the maturity profile of the Group’s major financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is within one year or on demand and the contractual undiscounted payments
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid assets that
readily generate cash. The Group's existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the

year, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed using contractual rate) and the earliest date the Group can be

31 December 2021

B —F+_RA=+—H
37. MBEAREEBRRER @
TRIRERERANRBRRSHE (B

BRERSONRFABEZFEMR) ZRFS
NEPERESEBRIRERERZEREH

required to pay: AR
2021
“EC-F
More than More than
1yearbut 2 years but Total Carrying
Within less than less than Over  contractual amount at
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 31 December
®+Z8
BBE-FE BEREE BHHRER =t-H
—FR  DREE  OREE  BRLE EAE  ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THT THET TR
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEMBaR
Lease liabilities HEaE 169,900 135,007 206,922 197,259 709,088 486,319
2020
-t 2.3
More than More than
1 year but 2 years hut Total Carrying
Within less than less than Over contractual amount at
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 31 December
R+ZA
BE—F0 HBARFE BHRER =+—H
—FR ORmE  OREE BBREE 2% ZEmEE
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TER TET TET TET TET TERT
Non-derivative financial liabilities EfTEMBaR
Bank loans RITER 36,951 1,292,951 - - 1,329,902 1,256,000
Lease liabilities HEaRE 156,922 82,277 96,428 205,273 539,900 408,788
Derivative financial liabilities TEMBERE
Forward currency contract BHEKEN 456 = - - 456 456
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value risk and disclosures

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group held certain derivative financial

instruments which are carried in the financial statements at fair value, as further

detailed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

() Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

MERREEBRKREE @

ATFERRRKE

HRE BRI |G B 10—
——ER_B-BE+_A=+—H>

KRB SEETHATENAMBRES

FAERBTA

() AFEFRE
TRENAEEAR T - —FR-_ZT-F
F+ZRA=+—HBEAFESFENMZTE
ERER:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1k B B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FTER TER
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ERERRATEHEZHKEE
As at 31 December 2021 RZB_-F+"A=+—H
— Loan and interest receivable —-BRERKRFAE - - 587,129 587,129
Total fast - - 587,129 587,129
As at 31 December 2020 RIB2Z2F+ZA=+—H
— Forward currency contracts —RPEKEH = 1,464 = 1,464
— Loan and interest recelvable —EWERKF 8 = = 271,874 271,874
Total 1t = 1,464 271,874 273,338
Financial Liablliies at fair value through profit or loss ERBERBATEHEZHEERE
As at 31 December 2021 KRB —%#+-A=+—H
— Forward currency contracts —RPEREN = = = =
As at 31 December 2020 AZERE+"H=1+—H
— Forward currency contracts —RPEKEH = 456 - 456

There were no transfers among different categories during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group analyses the financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation

method. Different levels are defined as follow:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such
as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the period. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities.

() Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The fair value assessment methods and related key assumptions and judgements
adopted by the Group’s management are income approach (specifically,
discounted cash flow method), which uses valuation techniques to convert future
amount (specifically, cash flows based on the expected rate of return) to a present

value.

31 December 2021 —E-_—F+_H=+—H

37. MFBEKREEBERBE @
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31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-HB=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37. MBEREEBERBE @

Fair Value Fair Value
As at As at Significant As at As at
31 December 31 December Valuation unobservable 31 December 31 December Range of inputs Relationship of
Description 2021 2020 technique inputs 2021 2020 unobservable inputs to fair value
HK$'000 HK$'000
ATE ATE EPN BAYEHE
RIEZ-% RIEZZE g if RZBZ-%& “2IER FABRRHABEA
+ZB=+-B +tZA=t—-B fhfEki BAYE +ZB=+—-H +:ﬁ =1+—H ATEMRE
it TER TERT
Loan and interest 587,129 271,874 Discounted Discount rate 4.0% 4.0%  The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
recelvable cash flow
A change in the discount rate by 10% does not have a
significant impact on the fair value.
ERERRFE BREE RER= BREER ATEEE.
MEE

BREZYNAEHATEENEAT R

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure optimal structure and shareholder returns, taking into consideration

the future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected capital
expenditure, projected strategic investment opportunities and economic conditions.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group regards total equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position

as capital, for capital management purposes. The amount of capital (total

equity plus total debt) as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$8,240,761,000 (2020: HK$6,196,090,000), which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
forecast strategic investment opportunities.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

BEAEE
FEEZEFAEEEZENNRESRER
ERBEEZENRERRBELRLR
UXFBEEFERIBERARREER-

FAEERBREASHAEEAERR
B UERREEARBRERERR  FE
ETRAEEZARARERFTE BRI A
BRI FBSHREREM S RAER TR

PHERUFABEARB  AEE R EFAE
MRRIKM ZKRE  ARREEE A 5%
THR- AEBULEZRNEMINARESR
RME-BE_T_—FRZTEZTF+T
BA=+—HLEFE FHAEEEXRZEHR
BRI A2 Fr i i g o

MEXAEEMS  AEEFEEHHER
MR ZAABREEGEDR
BEEX R _BE_—F+_A=+—
BEXA (BRZHREMNMEHEERE) 5
##98,240,761,0008 c (S _ T &F :
6,196,090,000787T) » K EZEFAEFE RS
REFRERER SR EEEIADE

BEREKTFo




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78 iR R i i
31 December 2021 —EB-—F#+"H=+—H

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. MEHIANDZMBITA

Other than derivative financial instruments being classified as financial asset/ PREA TR IRARMI ST I6FTINE nfE A B BER
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial ~ E AT Bt EZHBEE BB 2 TEH
statements, all financial assets and liabilities previously measured at amortised BLAEIN PABERA R ER At E 2B
cost which meet the conditions for classification at amortised cost under HKFRS BREEMBERGEAVBREERFHHR

9, respectively.

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

0 BIR E EE A D AR RV R ©

39. AEE

2021 2020
—E_—F —ECEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank guarantee given in lieu of utility and REKEMREBYERE
property rental deposits ZIBITHRR 1,047 5,359
40. DIVIDEND 40. iRE
2021 2020
—E-—F _ECEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Special dividend of HK$0.133 BRI EERR0.1338 T
(2020: HK$0.0265) per share (ZE-ZF : 0.026587T) 1,504,119 298,505

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of

the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BE R -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B 78R R i s

31 December 2021 —F

41.

(@)

—F+"A=+—H

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 3 November 20271, Ample Fame Investments Limited (the “Purchaser”,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), the Company (as the
Purchaser guarantor), Sitoy International Limited (the “Vendor") and Sitoy
Group Holdings Limited (the “Vendor Guarantor”) entered into the share
purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of Sitoy AT Holdings
Company Limited (the “Target Company”) (the “SPA").

The acquisition was completed in early January 2022, at the consideration
of HK$1 and the post-closing payment of EUR2,538,000 (approximately
HK$22,413,000). Pursuant to the SPA, the inter-company loans due

to the Vendor Guarantor amounted to RMB41,137,000 (approximately
HK$50,352,000) as at 31 December 2021 will be repaid by the
subsidiaries of the Target Company to the Vendor Guarantor. The Target
Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
financial results were consolidated into the financial results of the Group
since January 2022.

The Target Company and its subsidiaries own a century-old Italian luxury
leader label brand, Amedeo Testoni (formerly known as “a. testoni”) and
its diffusion line i29 and are principally engaged in wholesale and retail of
leatherware, fashion garments and apparel.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 3
November 2021,

On 30 December 2021, Rapid City Limited (“Rapid City”, a wholly

owned subsidiary of Bossini), Shine Wealthy Limited (“Shine Wealthy”, an
independent purchaser) and Knight Frank Hong Kong Limited (the “Agent”)
entered into two provisional sale and purchase agreements (the “Provisional
Agreements”) for the sale and purchase of two properties held by Rapid
City at the aggregate consideration of HK$184,729,500. Pursuant to the
terms of the Provisional Agreements, Rapid City and Shine Wealthy entered
into the formal agreements on 13 January 2022. The transaction was
completed on 15 March 2022.

Details of the above were set out in Bossini's announcements dated 30
December 2021,

With continuously increasing in the new infections of COVID-19 globally,
and the outbreak of Omicron in Hong Kong since early January 2022,

this will inevitably have an impact on consumption sentiment and the
Group’s business. Taking into account the possible derail of recovery due to
unfavorable macro environment and the pandemic impact, the management
of the Group will stay cautious and react proactively to the evolving market
conditions. The management will continue assessing the impacts of the
COVID-19 on the financial performance of the Group.

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT

HiBEI1E
RIE2EZ—F+—A=H "ERE
ERAE (BRI AR EH B
RED ~EARE ERBFIERA) B
RBEEERARE ((EH)) KERER
ZERAERAR (TEHFEMFRAL SLUE
Sitoy AT Holdings Company Limited ("B &2 A
B11) s1 i R HaE (TR HE) ©

WHEEEBEBER _E - _F£—87%
TR REAIE TR TR BN
2,538,000Bx 7t (£922,413,0005 75) ©
BIEBERGZ N _E2_—F+_H
=t+—HEGEAEFRANATMEE
AR #41,137,0007 (8950,352,0003%
T BEHBEERATZHBATEERT
BEHERA EF@TEJEZ?%Z!K’AT
Z2E2ENBATREMBEER _ T
T RRERAEEMEEEESS
ABRe

BEZERAERENBEATBEE —EE K
B ETELREE R Amedeo Testoni (Bl
f82A T a testoni 1) e BT ARI29 HEE
NMEHFE BFELRENHERTE-

BB F2RAEARTEHAE
——f#+—H=ZRZRAE°

N _E_—F+_HB=+H"> %ﬂiﬁi
BRAE (FERH - AERMECE2E
WEBAS) =EARAT (TSR
—%ﬁﬁgﬁ) K3 (B8) BRA

g (MEA) MEEHREAEEEN
ﬁﬁf‘éﬁf*@ﬁuT_LﬁﬁfnﬁuuﬂéfﬁaTﬁ%m(rﬁ
Friekl) * 48R1E4184,729,5004 75 ©
BEBRBERZEZT FAIMESE
E;E\—v_—ﬁ }%—'— EluT_LIE
AtpE - ZRZER_E__F=1
+HH5EA

EREIEN SR E R R A
T A=+ENAKS

BE = 2 BKCOVID- 195 &Y 2 s Il A i 12
mURBE_E__F—BYEEH
Y4 1% 22 Omicron ’Liﬁﬁaéﬁ/ﬁﬁla “E I
AEBERSERTE- %FEHT%IJE’J

e
REERENUREIEIEERE

B AEEE EE?HT?H%I, BE> F
MmENREBENT R - EEER &

EDWECOVID 191#7-!&%.92‘?‘% By &



Particulars of Properties
MEZFH1E

Investment properties KREWME
Approximate Site
Location Group’s Interest Tenure Area (sq.m.)
1BE 49 1k 3th E 75
i & TEBEDS fH HA (FEFHK)
Units 1 on 9th Floor and 70.7% Medium term 1,894
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor
Cheung Fung Industrial Building
No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
A EE B HEHE23-395% 70.7% A 1,894
RETEXREME
K181 25 R B fiL
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HERBBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements of the Group, is set out below:

UTHEINAERBERLBYRFEZEE
REERGEREREQMBRBRE  HEEE

AEBETSLEEZYHRE

RESULTS E$ 5|
Year ended 31 December
HE+_A=t—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZE--F ZEZZE ZZ-hEFE ZZ-N\FE ZE—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTET FET FET
Revenue g 1,381,637 819,036 625,004 1,134,584 612,467
Profit/(loss) before tax BrigaER/ (558) 4,509,989 1,213,362 834,137 94,723 (108,863)
Profit/(loss) for the year atiributable to equity holders ~ ZAA BT A A EIEER
of the company wA/ (E518) 4,562,639 1,192,392 834,366 76,982 (109,666)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY BEEHGERESHEE
31 December
+-B=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZEZ-F ZEZZE ZZ-hE ZZ-N\FE ZE—tE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET TET FET TET
Non-current assets FRBEE 5,261,870 3,975,162 3,671,737 3,867,676 3,793,409
Current assets REEE 3,848,292 2,874,758 1,194,828 1,193,328 1,351,961
Current liabilities ik 896,323 694,864 327,551 290,979 296,774
Net current assets REEEFE 2,951,969 2,179,894 867,277 902,349 1,055,187
Total assets BEEME 9,110,162 6,849,920 4,866,565 5,061,004 5,145,370
Total assets less current liabiltties EERERTEAR 8,213,839 6,155,056 4,539,014 4,770,025 4,848,596
Equity atiributable to equity holders of ANB DA NEGER
the company 7,616,277 4,329,371 3,021,297 3,891,137 4,003,132

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT



In this annual report, unless the context requires otherwise, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings:

“Board”
===

“Bossini”

MR BEE

“Bossini Group”

ME s £ E)

“BVI'
RERL S

“China” or "PRC"

TR B

“close associate(s)”
i YN
“Company” or “Viva China”
TRRE T IE N AR
“connected transaction(s)”
TRAEEAZ 5 ]

“Directors”
B=c=-4

“GBP”
FIE 5%
"GEM”
' GEM J

“GEM Listing Rules”
FGEM_Em#R Al

“Group”
TR EE)

"HKS"
S

Glossary
Ll

ERFRA BFEXESBREAEIN TIH
REB XY HE :

the board of Directors
-y

Bossini International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Bermuda with limited
liability, the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 592)

ERNEBRRERERAS RNEREAMMILZAERAR  HEBETKR
DR Pr E MR £ (R 5% & 592)

Bossini and its subsidiaries
ERRERERB AT

the British Virgin Islands
HEREUHS

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report, excludes Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China and Taiwan
REARHANE iAFEHRMs > A EEEEH - PEARENE R

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules
HACM LT ARBIPTA F 8 H &

Viva China Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the issued Shares of which are listed on the GEM (stock code: 8032)
FNFREERBRAS KNASESFMMNIIZERAT HEEITR
AHGEM 1 (B& 15 5% © 8032)

has the meaning ascribed to it in the GEM Listing Rules
HACMLEHARRIPTAE F B H &

the directors of the Company
RARES

Pound sterling, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom
HiE o HEAE S

GEM of the Stock Exchange
Hi# 32 FfrGEM

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM

GEMEE 25 L AR Al

the Company and its subsidiaries
KAFREKE AT

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of the Hong Kong
B BRAEERK
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“Hong Kong”
&%)

“Li Ning Co”
E2V T
‘LN Group”

e el

‘LN Share(s)”

"EERIA)

“Macau”
B P

‘MOP$"
FE Pt

“Reporting Period”
MR &5 HA

“RMB’
AR

“SFO”
r3E %5 R MR S 16 )

"SG$"
T3 A0 3% 7 )

“Share(s)”
FRZ 17
“Shareholder(s)”
==

“Stock Exchange”
B 22 P )

“Us$’
M=)

oy
M% ]

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEEAFNITHRE

Li Ning Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the issued LN Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock

code: 2331)

TEFRAT RASHEEMMILZERAT  HEETFERON

B2 PR EMR £ (BRAFUSE ¢ 2331)

Li Ning Co and its subsidiaries
FRATRENBEAR

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of Li Ning Co
TERNBRATSREBEI0EB T Z RN

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI R 1T &

Macau pataca , the lawful currency of the Macau
BT BPFTEE B

the period of 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
S F—-HB—HE_E_—Ft+_A=1+—HKH

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR pBEEEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BB EBIBNERF RBE KRG

Singapore dollars , the lawful currency of the Singapore
FOnIR TT o FANE A E B

ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the share capital of the Company
RATRAPEREBESHTZEEEK

holder(s) of Share(s)
[PAREST=WN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERABMESRXZMMARRAE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
E ZENBERBENEEST

per cent
B

VIVA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED JEFLHRE AR B R AT
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Tseung Kwan O, New Territories, Hong Kong
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- EREME
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